
 
1 of  3 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2018 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL 
 

 
 

A. Call to Order by the Mayor. 
 

B. Roll Call. 
 

C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 20, 2018. 
 

D. Agenda Revisions. 
 

E. Special Order of Business: 
 
1. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances 

relative to design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District. 
 
a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 24, 2018) 

 
b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk. 

 
c. Oral comments. 

 
2. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design 

guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, upon its first consideration. 
 

F. Old Business: 
 
1. Pass Ordinance #2929, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of 

Ordinances relative to the City's floodplain regulations, upon its third & final consideration. 
 

2. Pass Ordinance #2930, rezoning property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business 
Park Addition pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, 
which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, upon its third & final 
consideration. 
 

3. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Amend Restrictions in Deed of 
Dedication relative to property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park 
Addition. 
 

G. New Business: 
 
1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without 

separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be 
considered separately.) 
 
a. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 20, 2018 relative to the 

following items: 



 
2 of  3 

 

(1) Parking along Bergstrom Boulevard.  
(2) Hearst Center and Cultural Programs Presentation. 
(3) Pavement Management Program. 
(4) Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Ordinance Update. 
(5) Review of urban chickens. 
(6) Bills & Payroll. 
 

b. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of August 21, 2018. 
 

c. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2018. 
 

d. Receive and file the FY18 Annual Report of the Public Works & Parks Division. 
 

e. Receive and file the bid received for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 

f. Approve the following special event related requests:  
(1) Street closure, Coventry Lane, September 13, 2018. 
(2) Parking variance, West 2nd Street, September 15, 2018. 
(3) Street closure, College Street, September 20, 2018 & October 18, 2018. 
(4) Grant Wheeler Memorial 5K Run/Walk, October 27, 2018. 
 

g. Approve the application of Masala Market, 913 West 23rd Street, for a 
cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 
 

h. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
(2) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(3) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
(4) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(5) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(6) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(7) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
(8) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of 
outdoor service area. (September 21-23, 2018) 
(9) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. 
(September 7-8, 2018 and September 29-30, 2018) 
(10) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Class B beer & outdoor service - 
5-day permit. 
 

2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion 
without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific 
item be considered separately.) 
 
a. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear 

overgrown vegetation on the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. 
 

b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Utilization of School 
Bus Services for Non-School Travel with Cedar Falls Community School District relative to 
summer travel for the Camp Cedar Falls program. 
 

c. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with the Governor's Traffic 
Safety Bureau (GTSB) relative to funding for traffic enforcement and training. 
 

d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Consolidated Public Safety 
Communications 28E Agreement with participating government agencies in Black Hawk 
County relative to providing consolidated dispatch and communications services. 



 
3 of  3 

 

 
e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. 

Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station. 
 

f. Resolution approving and accepting the bid of Blacktop Service Company, in the amount of 
$136,174.67, for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 

g. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop Service Company for 
the 2018 Seal Coat Project. (Contingent upon approval of Item G-2.f.) 
 

h. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman Concrete for the 2018 
Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 
 

i. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of West Village. 
 

j. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property 
located at 2103 Washington Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion 
Incentive Program. 
 

k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of eleven Owner Purchase Agreements and 
one Tenant Purchase Agreement, and approving and accepting ten Owner's Temporary 
Grading Easements and one Public Utility Easement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street 
Reconstruction Project. 
 

l. Resolution approving three occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of the public 
improvements in Arbors Third Addition. 
 

m. Resolution setting September 17, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the City's FY17-18 
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report for the Community Development 
Block Grant & HOME Programs. 
 

H. Allow Bills and Payroll. 
 

I. City Council Referrals. 
 

J. City Council Updates. 
 

K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to 
City business.) 
 

L. Adjournment. 
 

 
 



 



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 20, 2018 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR JAMES P. BROWN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, in the 
City Hall at Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 7:10 P.M. on the above date. Members present: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Absent: None. 

 
52000 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of August 6, 2018 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
The Mayor then read a proclamation recognizing the 28th Anniversary of the 
Americans with Disability Act.  Black Hawk County Disability Caucus representative 
Eric Donat commented. 

 
52001 -  Public Safety Services Director Olson provided an introduction and Mayor Brown 

proceeded with the Administration of Oath to new Public Safety Officers Cedric 
Danilson, Liesel Reimers and Jose Velasco, and new Paid On Call/Reserve Officers 
Nicolas Erickson and Angela Lindley. 

 
52002 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 10, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Cedar Falls Public Library 
Remodel Project. It was then moved by Darrah and seconded by Wieland that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52003 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 

plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. Building Official Witry and Library Director 
Robinson commented briefly. There being no one else present wishing to speak 
either for or against the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the hearing closed 
and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52004 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Blanford that Resolution #21,223, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the Cedar Falls Public Library Remodel Project, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #21,223 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52005 -  Mayor Brown announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 10, 

2018, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. It 
was then moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of 
notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

-1-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

52006 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written objections filed to the proposed 
plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written objections on file, the 
Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Resler commented briefly. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak either for or against the proposed plans, 
etc., the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of 
business. 

 
52007 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #21,224, approving 

and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 
2018 Seal Coat Project, be adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #21,224 
duly passed and adopted. 

 
52008 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Ordinance #2928, amending 

Chapter 6, Animals, of the Code of Ordinances relative to butchering and disposal of 
dead animals, be passed upon its third and final consideration. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Ordinance #2928 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52009 -     It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #2929, amending 

Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
the City's floodplain regulations, be passed upon its second consideration. Following 
due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52010 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that Ordinance #2930, rezoning 

property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition 
pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, 
which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, be passed upon its 
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, 
Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52011 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Green that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 6, 2018 relative to 
the following items: 

(1) Downtown ordinance revisions related to building design review. 
(2) Bills & Payrolls. 
 

Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of July 23, 2018. 
 

Receive and file the report of the July 23, 2018 Joint Meeting of the City Council & 
the Utilities Board of Trustees. 

-2-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
Receive and file the bid received for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 

 
Approve the following special event related requests: 

(1) Street closure, West 25th Street, August 26, 2018. 
(2) Street closures, ARTapalooza, September 8, 2018. 
(3) Street closures & parking variance, Friends of Western Home Communities 

Annual Breakfast & Family Fun, September 8, 2018. 
(4) Street closure, West 25th Street, September 22, 2018. 
(5) Street/parking lot closures & parking variances, UNI Homecoming activities, 

October 19-20, 2018. 
 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
(1) Main Street Sweets, 210 Main Street, Class B native wine - renewal. 
(2) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal. 
(3) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 

renewal. 
(4) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
(5) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service - renewal. 
(6) Wal-Mart, 525 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class E liquor - change in ownership. 
(7) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore's Pub), 

5307 Caraway Lane, Class C liquor - adding outdoor service. 
(8) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor 

service. (August 25-26, 2018) 
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52012 -  It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #21,225, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Waterloo and Black Hawk County relative to the 
2018-2019 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) funding for the 
Tri-County Drug Enforcement Task Force. 

 
Resolution #21,226, approving and authorizing execution of a First Year Extension of 
an Agreement for Custodial Services with T & C Cleaning, Inc. relative to custodial 
services for city buildings for a period of September 1, 2018 through August 31, 
2019. 

 
Resolution #21,227, approving the partial release of retainage funds to K. 
Cunningham Construction Company, Inc. for the University Avenue Reconstruction 
Project, Phase I. 
 
Resolution #21,228, approving and accepting the bid of Feldman Concrete, in the 
amount of $38,923.88, for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9. 
 
Resolution #21,229, approving final occupancy of the Aldrich Elementary School 
prior to the acceptance of the public improvements in McMahill First Addition. 

-3-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
Resolution #21,230, approving and authorizing Change Order No. 1 to the contract 
with Iowa Bridge & Culvert, LC for the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System Improvements 
Project. 
 
Resolution #21,231, approving and authorizing execution of a Development 
Agreement with JDavis Properties, L.L.C., and approving an S-1 Zoning District site 
plan for the redevelopment of a building located at 6607 University Avenue. 
 
Resolution #21,232, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to 
Agreement for Private Development with BAJR Enterprises, L.L.C. relative to 
commencement and completion dates. 
 
Resolution #21,233, approving and adopting amendments to the City's Low Rent 
Housing Agency Administrative Plan. 

 
 Resolution #21,234, approving and authorizing execution of an Amendment to 

Restrictions Agreement with Tindall Enterprises, LLC (f/n/a BlackHawk Hotel, 
L.L.C.), Eagle View Hospitality LC and Main Street Hotels LC relative to transfer of 
ownership, and approving and authorizing execution of a Subordination Agreement 
relative to a Forgivable Mortgage and Promissory Note, in conjunction with the Multi-
Family (Rental) Unit Production - New Construction Program, Round 6. 

 
Resolution #21,235, approving and authorizing a change order to a Rehabilitation 
Contract with Kirvan Enterprises LLC relative to a Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) housing rehabilitation project at 1622 Clay Street. 

 
  Resolution #21,236, approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory 

Note for property located at 1509 Franklin Street relative to the Rental to Single 
Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program. 

 
Resolution #21,237, setting September 4, 2018 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District. 

 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #21,225 through #21,237 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52013 -     It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the bills and payrolls be allowed 

as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be authorized to issue City 
checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in payment of the same. 
Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Blanford, Darrah, Wieland, Green. Nay: None. Motion carried.  

 
52014 -  Mayor introduced a video update on the ‘Place to Play Park’ and announced the 

groundbreaking ceremony scheduled for September 29th at Greenhill Park. 
 
52015 - Community Development Director Sheetz responded to concerns expressed by 

-4-

Item C. 



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Butch Brown, 421 Spruce Hills Drive, regarding traffic on Greenhill Road.  
 

Building Official Witry responded to concerns expressed by Penny Popp, 4805 South 
Main Street, regarding concrete dust in their neighborhood. 

 
Community Development Director Sheetz responded to inquiries by Rosemary 
Beach, 5018 Sage Road, regarding road conditions on Main Street, speed limits on 
South Main Street and the parking area near the trail. 
 
Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, Executive Officer of Cedar Valley Home 
Builders, announced the Cedar Valley Parade of Homes on August 23-26, 2018. 

 
52016 - It was moved by Wieland and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:45 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-5-

Item C. 



 



 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Brown and City Council 
 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: August 29, 2018 

SUBJECT: Hold Public Hearing for revisions to Section 29-168: Central Business District 
Overlay Zoning and revisions to Section 29-2: Definitions. 

  
The Community Development Department requests that a public hearing be held on 
September 4th, 2018 to consider the revisions to Sections 29-168 and 29-2 of the Code of 
Ordinances pertaining to design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay.  
 
Background: 
The Central Business District Overlay provides guidance for building, site design standards, 
maintenance, and development within the district. City Staff has been working with 
Community Main Street (CMS) to clarify the review process and provide more objectivity to 
the design criteria of this section; specifically for new development and redevelopment. 
Establishing more objective standards in the overlay code will help both City Staff and the 
Planning & Zoning Commission be consistent in their reviews as well as create a vision of 
how the downtown should grow. Developers will also benefit by having a clear set of 
standards to follow. The proposed changes outline best practices of storefront design; many 
of which City Staff and CMS have already been holding developers accountable for but have 
never been clearly outlined in the code. The proposed code amendments aim to continue 
and strengthen the high level of development in the downtown. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the amendments at a public hearing on July 
25, 2018 regular meeting and unanimously voted to forward the proposed changes to Council 
for approval.  
 
Summary of Proposed Amendments: 
Section 29-2: Definitions: 
 Adding a definition for “façade” and “storefront”. Adding the definitions of these two 

terms, which are heavily used in the amendments to Section 29-168, ensures that 
there will be no confusion on their meaning. 

Section 29-168: Central Business District Overlay Zoning: 
• Existing residential buildings with up to seven units are exempted from the Planning 

& Zoning and City Council review process. Currently the overlay exempts only single 
unit homes in the district from the review process. With this amendment there are 9 
other properties (7 duplexes, 1 four unit conversion, and 1 five-unit conversion) that 

-7-

Item E.1. 



would become exempt. All of these properties are on the outer edge of the overlay 
district. Staff, Community Main Street, and the stakeholders present at the July 25th, 
2018 meeting agreed that it was unnecessary to make these individuals go through 
the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council review process if they wished to 
make an improvement to their property. Any new residential dwellings proposed 
within the district will still be required to go through the review process.     

• Allowing smaller front yard setbacks for new construction and improvements. Many 
older buildings in the district are already closer to the street then the current code 
allows, creating a more urban and walkable environment. To keep this character 
throughout the district it is being proposed that all new commercial buildings in any 
zoning district within the overlay will be built to the front and corner of lots with a 
minimum front setback of 0 and a maximum front setback of 10 feet.  For residential 
buildings the minimum front yard setback is decreased from 25 feet to 10 feet. This 
will allow for more flexibility for development and allow smaller lots to be better 
utilized. For commercial buildings this change also encourages parking to be placed 
behind a building to further promote walkability in the district. 

• Adding building composition regulations. The proposed language of this section 
considers how a new building is physically composed. These proposed amendments 
are what City Staff and CMS have already been holding developers accountable for 
but have never been clearly outlined in the code. In order for the code to be more 
objective it was agreed to include language specific to these best practices of building 
composition. These amendments include: 
 The use of vertical breaks or bays in order to break up long building walls. This 

can be done in multiple ways, including the grouping of windows or breaks in 
the wall plane.  

 To avoid flat, continuous, and overly long upper floor facades, the maximum 
length of a wall plane of the façade is 60 feet. Articulation between continuous 
upper floor façade sections shall be accomplished by recessing the façade 1 
foot minimum for a distance of at least 10 feet. At their July 25, 2018 meeting 
the Planning and Zoning Commission requested that the minimum requirement 
for the wall recession be changed from two feet to one foot. 

 Standards that will require or encourage elements that provide visual interest 
and emphasize the storefront. 

 Implementing a 14-foot minimum first floor commercial floor height. This is a 
best practice that has been shown to not only make commercial spaces more 
competitive but also protect and encourage a variety of commercial uses being 
able to utilize a space. 

• Adding window and transparency requirements. These changes promote transparent 
windows at the pedestrian level of a storefront to invite views into the interior of the 
store. This is a common best practice that is necessary for a pedestrian-friendly 
shopping environment.  

• Specifying types and percentages of materials permitted on the exterior of 
buildings.  The goal of this section is to promote higher quality materials in the 
downtown, specifically: brick, stone, or terracotta. However the proposed code still 
promotes architectural variation by allowing up to 35% of a building’s exterior to be 
other materials, for example architectural metal, cement board, and architectural 

-8-

Item E.1. 



CMU. Following best practices, the code also encourages the use of certain types of 
materials on specific locations on a building.  

• Specifying the types of colors permitted in the district. The proposed code 
amendment provides a certain measure of objectivity to the review of color on 
buildings in the district. The proposed code would allow for earth and neutral colors to 
be used on building facades. However language was included to allow other colors, 
e.g. bright colors, neon, etc., to be on a building but only as accents. This section 
does not apply to signage. It is a general best practice for a business logo or 
marketing colors to be primarily displayed in the signage of a building and not on the 
building itself. 

• Adding building entry regulations. This section looks to codify best practices for 
entries that ensure building entries are safe, accessible, and pedestrian friendly. 
These amendments include that a building is accessible from the primary street, 
access to residential units is easily accessible and visible, longer buildings have 
multiple entrances, the main entrance is level with the sidewalk, and that the main 
entrance to a building is prominent in its design.    

• Outlining the types of signs permitted in the overlay district. The current code requires 
anyone looking for signage requirements to refer to various other sections of the 
code. Putting all the signage requirements for this district in one place was one of the 
goals of this proposed ordinance amendment. Most additions in this section are 
collected from the other applicable code sections. However, there are three new 
proposed additions to this section of the code: 
 Allowing for “blade signs”, smaller projecting signs, to be closer to the sidewalk 

as they are purely meant for pedestrians. 
 Limiting the amount of window signs and film to keep windows transparent to 

further encourage a pedestrian friendly shopping environment 
 Decrease the allowable percentage of wall signage from 33% to 10%. This 

decrease in allowable wall percentage is more than what other communities 
allow for wall signage in downtown areas. This is consistent with what is 
currently in the downtown district.  

 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact this office. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager  

-9-

Item E.1. 



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Iris Lehmann, Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 (319) 273-8600 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 29-2, DEFINITIONS, OF ARTICLE I, IN 
GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA AND REPEALING AND REPLACING SECTION 29-168, CBD, 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONING DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 2, 
SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 29, ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA 

 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Central Business District Overlay to provide guidance for building, 

site design standards, maintenance, and development within the district; and 
 
WHEREAS, these amendments clarify the review process and provide more objectivity to the design 

criteria; and 
 
WHEREAS, these amendments outline best practices of storefront design with the intent to continue 

and strengthen the quality of development in the downtown; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the proposed changes to the 

ordinance and recommends approval; and 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1. The Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is hereby amended as follows: 

 
A. Amend Section 29-2, Definitions, Article I, In General, of Chapter 29, Zoning by adding the following 
definitions: 
 

Façade means the entire exterior wall of a building along a street, including all stories. 

Storefront means the façade of the ground-level story of a building. The area of the storefront will be 
calculated using the first 15 vertical feet of the façade, unless otherwise demonstrated by applicant, 
as evidenced by the storefront cornice height or interior ceiling height. 
 

-10-

Item E.1. 



 2 

B. Section 29-168, CBD, Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, of Division 2, Specific Districts, of 
Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 29, Zoning is hereby repealed in its entirety and the 
following Section 29-168, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 
Sec. 29-168. - CBD, Central business district overlay zoning district.  
 

(a)     Purpose and intent. The purpose of the CBD, central business district overlay zoning district 
(hereinafter the "overlay district") is to provide guidance for future development in the specified 
area and to encourage continued successful business development in the downtown Cedar Falls 
area. The overlay district is intended to allow land uses and to encourage appropriate building 
design standards in a manner that complements and strengthens the downtown retail and 
service business sector. Originally developed as a compact, multi-functional, walkable 
environment, the overlay is intended to support pedestrian access and use. The provisions of 
this section shall apply in addition to any other zoning district regulations and requirements in 
which the land may be classified. In case of conflict, the more specific standard shall apply. 

(b)     Boundaries. The CBD, central business district overlay boundaries are generally outlined in the 
image below. The legal description and official zoning map of the overlay is on file in the office of 
the city clerk.  

 
Figure 1 – CBD boundary map 

 (c)  Permitted uses.  

(1)     Allowable uses within the overlay district include typical commercial, professional office 
and service oriented businesses, uses or facilities, including hotels and lodging facilities, 
all such uses currently allowed in the C-1 commercial, C-2 commercial and C-3 
commercial districts unless herein limited. If the underlying zoning district is more 
restrictive than the C-3 commercial district, then only those uses permitted in the more 
restrictive district shall be allowed.  

-11-

Item E.1. 



 3 

(2)    Residential uses are allowable subject to planning and zoning commission and city council 
review and approval. No residential use may be established on the ground floor of any 
building within the commercial area bounded by First Street south to Sixth Street from 
Washington Street east to State Street. Residential uses are encouraged to be 
established in upper levels of downtown commercial buildings (hereinafter referred to as 
“mixed-use buildings”).  

(d)  Conditional uses. Where some question arises whether a particular commercial use is 
appropriate within the overlay district, the use may be allowed subject to planning and zoning 
commission and city council review and approval, provided that the proposed use conforms to 
the prevailing character of the downtown area and provided that the use will not necessitate the 
use of outdoor storage areas. In addition, such uses must not generate excessive amounts of 
noise, odor, vibrations or fumes, or truck traffic. If the underlying zoning district is more 
restrictive than the C-3 commercial district, allowable conditional uses will be those generally 
compatible with the more restrictive standards of the underlying zoning district. Examples of 
uses that may be allowed subject to approval of a conditional use permit are:  

(1)  Auto repair shop.  

(2)  Printing or publishing facility.  

(3)  Limited manufacturing activity that is directly related to the operation of a retail business 
conducted on the premises.  

(4)  Plumbing and heating shop.  

(5)  Sign painting shop.  

(6)  Appliance repair shop.  

(7)  Home supply business.  

(e)  Prohibited uses. In all cases the following uses will not be allowed within the overlay district 
either as permitted or conditional uses:  

(1)  Lumber yards.  

(2)  Used or new auto sales lots and displays.  

(3)  Auto body shop.  

(4)  Storage warehouse or business.  

(5)  Mini-storage warehouse.  

(6)  Sheet metal shop.  

(7)  Outdoor storage yard.  

(f)   Site plan review. Any proposed substantially improved or new building structure or development, 
including proposed residential facilities, must submit a detailed site plan and building plans for 
review and approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city council. Applicants are 
encouraged, but not required, to consult with Community Main Street’s Design Guidelines and 
Design Committee as a design resource. Elements to be considered in this review process are 
proposed use, proposed building improvements or new structural elements, with particular 
attention to exterior building design elements, parking provision (see section 29-177 parking 
regulations), and how the proposed improvement or development will complement existing 
nearby uses and building design elements.  

“Substantial improvement " includes any new building construction within the overlay district or 
any renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the exterior appearance 

-12-

Item E.1. 



 4 

of the structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or doors or altering the color or 
exterior materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, changes, alterations, modifications 
or replacement of existing facade materials will be considered a substantial improvement. 
Included in this definition are any new, modified or replacement awning structures or similar 
material extensions over the public sidewalk area. A substantial improvement also includes any 
increase or decrease in existing building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or 
appearance. 
 
The following shall be exempt from site plan review: 

(1)      Existing detached single-unit and multi-unit dwellings containing less than seven units; 
not including mixed-use buildings.  

(2)     Routine repair or replacement of existing roof materials, awnings, or other minor façade 
elements that do not materially change the appearance, shape or configuration of the 
existing building will not be considered a "substantial improvement".  

(3)     Emergency repairs needed as the result of unanticipated building or facade damages due 
to events such as fire, vandalism, or weather related damages, provided that the needed 
repairs do not alter the appearance of the structure prior to the event causing the 
unanticipated damages. 

 
(g)     Parking: On-site parking in the downtown area will not be required for principal permitted 

commercial, professional office or service business uses or facilities. Any proposed residential 
use established within the overlay district must conform to the parking regulations described in 
section 29-177.  

(h)     Front Setbacks.  

(1)     New commercial and mixed-use buildings shall be placed to the front and corner of lots, 
and set back a minimum of 0 feet and maximum of 10 feet from any street-side lot line.  

(2)     New residential or expansions of residential buildings shall be setback a minimum of 10 
feet.  

(i)    Building design review. All substantially improved or new building structures within the overlay 
district shall be reviewed by the planning and zoning commission and the city council for 
architectural compatibility with surrounding structures. Paramount to this review will be 
consideration of building materials, exterior building materials on all sides, coloration of 
materials, building height, roof line, size and location of windows and doors, roof mounted 
appurtenances, and facades. For the purposes of this section, when a building is located on a 
corner lot the primary street shall be the north-south street, with other streets being considered 
secondary. In addition to consideration of typical physical structural improvements to structures, 
review is also required of any wall painting, mural wall signs or painted artwork or other similar 
applications to exterior walls. The purpose of review of said exterior wall paintings or drawings 
is to ensure that said applications are consistent with the prevailing standards and character of 
the downtown area. The following design elements will be reviewed:  

(1)     Proportion: The relationship of width and height of the front elevations of adjacent 
buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. An effort 
should be made to generally align horizontal elements along a street frontage, such as 
cornice lines, windows, awnings and canopies. The relationship of width and height of 

-13-

Item E.1. 



 5 

windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. Particular attention must be given to the scale of street level 
doors, walls and windows. Blank walls at the street level are to be discouraged. Elements 
such as windows, doors, columns, pilasters, and changes in materials, artwork, or other 
architectural details that provide visual interest must be distributed across the façade in a 
manner consistent with the overall design of the building.  

(2)    Roof shape, pitch and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch and 
direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. Routine repair and maintenance or replacement of existing roof 
materials will not be subject to review provided that the existing roof line and 
configuration is not altered during the course of said repairs or maintenance.  

(3)    Pattern: Alternating solid surfaces and openings (wall surface versus doors and windows) 
in the front facade, sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. 
This pattern of solid surfaces and openings shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building.  

(4)     Building Composition (See Figure 2):  

(i) To create visual interest and visually break up long building walls, facades on 
buildings greater than 50 feet in length shall be divided vertically into bays. 
Façade bays shall be a minimum of 20 feet wide and a maximum 40 feet wide. 
The bays shall be distinctive but tied visually together by a rhythm of repeating 
vertical elements, such as window groupings, pilasters, window bays, balconies, 
changes in building materials and textures, and/or by varying the wall plane of the 
façade.  

(ii) To avoid flat, continuous, and overly long upper floor facades, the maximum 
length of a wall plane of the façade is 60 feet. Articulation between continuous 
upper floor façade sections shall be accomplished by recessing the façade 1 foot 
minimum for a distance of at least 10 feet. This recessed section would count as a 
façade bay per paragraph (i), even if the width is less than 20 feet.   

(iii) Storefronts in mixed-use buildings shall be distinguished from the upper floors by 
a horizontal element, such as a cornice, band board, or soldier course to create a 
distinctive base to the building.  

(iv) For all mixed-use and commercial buildings, the minimum ground floor, floor-to-
structural ceiling height is 14 feet.  

-14-

Item E.1. 



 6 

 
Figure 2 – Building composition example 

 
 
(5)     Windows and Transparency: The size, proportion, and type of windows need to be 

compatible with existing neighboring buildings. For storefronts, the following standards 
shall apply:    

(i) A minimum of 70% of the storefront area between 2 and 10 feet in height above 
the adjacent ground level shall consist of clear and transparent storefront 
windows and doors that allow views into the interior of the store. The bottom of 
storefront windows shall be no more than 2 feet above the adjacent ground level, 
except along sloping sites, where this standard shall be met to the extent possible 
so that views into the interior of the store are maximized and blank walls are 
avoided. Exceptions may be allowed for buildings on corner lots where window 
coverage should be concentrated at the corner, but may be reduced along the 
secondary street façade, and for repurposing of buildings not originally designed 
as storefront buildings (e.g. re-purposing of an industrial or institutional building).   

(ii) Transom windows are encouraged above storefront display windows. Residential 
window types, reflective (mirrored), or colored glass are not allowed for 
storefronts.  

(iii) Glazing should be clear and highly transparent to maximize views into the store. 
Low-E or tinted glazing will reduce transparency, so is discouraged for storefront 
windows, but if used, the glass chosen should have a high visible light 
transmittance and low reflectivity.  

(iv) Removing storefront windows or reducing storefront window coverage is 
discouraged and will require Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council 
approval. 

(6)    Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and texture on 
the exterior walls and roofs of the buildings in the immediate area shall be considered in 
the construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration will be considered 
compatible if the materials and texture used are appropriate in the context of other 
buildings in the immediate area.  

-15-

Item E.1. 



 7 

        Street-facing facades shall be comprised of at least 50% brick, stone, or terra cotta. Side 
and rear walls shall be comprised of at least 25% brick, stone, or terra cotta. These high 
quality materials should be concentrated on the base of the building.   

        The following materials may be used in limited amounts:  

(i) Fiber cement, aluminum, metal, pre-formed panels, painted wood, or anything 
similar – Up to 35 percent of any one siding material may be used on the street-
facing façade and up to 40 percent of any other sides. These materials are not 
generally allowed for storefronts. Fiber cement board should be high quality and 
smooth-faced. Metal shall be heavy gauge and non-reflective. Durability and 
maintenance of the metal shall be carefully considered if used in high use areas.  

(ii) Concrete and Precast Concrete- This includes site-poured or preformed concrete 
items. Use is limited to architectural elements such as window hoods, cornices, 
columns, capitals, etc. Architectural CMU may be used in combination with other 
materials such as brick, stone or terra cotta. Except for burnished/polished or 
glazed units, CMU is not generally allowed on the storefront level, however, 
architectural CMU, such as split-face, ground-face, and rock-face, may be used 
as an accent material on the storefront level. 

 
(iii) EFIS may only be used for architectural detailing above the ground floor 
 
(iv) In the case of an unenclosed rear or roof deck, stained wood is permitted.  

 
(7)    Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of 

buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
Buildings in the CBD utilize earth and neutral tones; however, other colors can highlight 
the architectural features of a building and are acceptable as accents. Accents generally 
include trim areas and comprise up to 15% of the façade. Painting unpainted brick or 
stone is discouraged. 

(8)    Architectural features: Architectural features including but not limited to cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, fanlights and other elements prevailing in the area 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not intended that the 
details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those features shall be suggestive 
of the extent, nature and scale of details that would be appropriate on new buildings or 
associated with building alterations.  

(9)    Building Entries: This section applies to new mixed use and commercial buildings.  

(i)  Primary entries to ground floor building space and to common lobbies accessing 
upper floor building space shall be located along street-facing facades. For 
buildings with more than one street-facing façade, entries along facades facing 
primary streets are preferred. Building entries along rear and side facades or 
from parking garages may not serve as principal building entries. Buildings with 
more than three street-facing facades shall have building entries on at least two 
street-facing sides.  

(ii)  For buildings that contain residential dwelling units, there must be at least one 
main entrance on the street-facing façade or façade facing a prominent 
residential courtyard that provides pedestrian access to dwelling units within the 
building. Access to dwelling units must not be solely through a parking garage or 
from a rear or side entrance.   

-16-

Item E.1. 



 8 

(ii) For storefronts with frontage of 100 feet or more, a visible entryway shall be 
provided a minimum of every 50 feet. 

(iii) Entryways into a storefront will be at grade with the fronting sidewalks. 

(iv) Entryways shall be designed to be a prominent feature of the building. The use 
of architectural features such as awnings, canopies, and recessed entries are 
encouraged. 

(10)  Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: These elements shall be 
reviewed to consider the scale, context, coloration and appropriateness of the proposal in 
relation to nearby facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the downtown 
area. Exterior painting of detached single unit and two-unit residential structures within the 
district shall be exempt from this provision. Other multi-unit dwelling structures will be 
subject to this review.  

(j)    Signage. All signage shall conform to requirements of the Cedar Falls sign regulations outlined 
in the Zoning Ordinance Section 29-202, except as provided for below:  

(1)    Freestanding signs:  

(i) When located adjacent to any street other than First Street, shall not exceed 15 
feet in height and 40 square feet in surface area.  

(ii) When located adjacent to First Street, shall not exceed 25 feet in height and 60 
square feet in surface area.  

(iii)  One freestanding or monument sign shall be allowed per lot provided all 
components are entirely on private property. In the case of a double frontage lot, 
a second sign may be considered. 

(iv) Monumental signs: Shall not exceed 8 feet in height and 40 square feet in 
surface area.  

(2)    Projecting signs: One projecting sign per business is permitted on the primary façade. 
Signs which are permitted to encroach over or upon public rights-of-way shall meet the 
following standards and clearance height: 

(i) Vehicular ways: 14 feet clear above the vehicular way, unless public services 
necessitate higher clearance. 

(ii) Pedestrian ways: 10 feet clear above the pedestrian way. For blade signs and 
awnings, the minimum clearance height shall be 8 feet.  

(iii) Blade signs are limited to an area of 4 square feet and a projection of 2.5 feet 
from an exterior wall. 

(iv) All projecting signs, excluding blade signs, shall project no further than half the 
width of the sidewalk that the storefront is located on or 5 feet, whichever is less. 

(v) All projecting signs, excluding blade signs, shall be no larger in size than 1 
square foot for each linear foot of the side of the building to which the sign is 
attached, not to exceed 40 square feet per sign face. 

(vi) Corner projecting signs are those that are visible from two or more intersecting 
streets, and shall be allowed as long as they do not exceed 40 square feet per 
sign face. 

(3)    Window Signs and film: Permanent or adhered window signage and film shall not exceed 
25% of glazing of the first 15 vertical feet of wall area and shall not be placed in a manner 
that prevents views into a storefront.  

-17-

Item E.1. 



 9 

(4)    Wall Signs: Wall signs shall not exceed 10% of the total wall area, and in no case shall 
exceed 10% of the area of the storefront. Wall signs on storefronts shall not extend 
beyond or above an existing sign band or extend over or detract from the architectural 
features of the building facade, such as cornices, pilasters, transoms, window trim, and 
similar.  

(5)    Billboards: Prohibited 

(6)    Roof signs: Prohibited 

(7)    Illuminated signs: Illuminated signs are permitted. External illumination should be provided 
by a continuous light source directed onto the sign. The use of internally lit signs (back-lit 
plastic) is acceptable for monument and freestanding signs. The use of internally lit wall 
and projecting signs (back-lit plastic) are permitted when the background is opaque at 
night.   

(k)  Removal or demolition of building structures. Removal or demolition of structures within the 
overlay district is allowable, subject to securing a demolition permit with the city inspection 
services division. If no immediate building reconstruction plans are proposed within 30 days 
following building removal or demolition, the site shall be filled and graded to a topographic 
elevation equal to or level with surrounding adjacent property natural grade levels. All drainage 
shall be directed away from existing buildings. Within 30 days of final grading of the site or at the 
earliest opportunity during the growing season conducive to plant germination, the site shall be 
seeded with grass. Reasonable efforts shall be taken by the property owner to ensure proper 
germination of the vegetation and the property owner must maintain the property in accordance 
with city ordinances.  

(l)     Exceptions: The Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council may approve deviations 
from the standards if there are characteristics of the site or building that makes it difficult or 
infeasible to meet the requirements outlined in this section, such as buildings located on a corner 
lot, sloping sites, reuse of an existing building that was not originally designed as a storefront 
building, or other similar situation. To be granted an exception the applicant must provide: 

(1)   A detailed explanation of why the specific standard cannot be met;  

(2)   The proposed building is uniquely designed to fit the characteristics of the site and the 
surrounding neighborhood, is consistent with the purpose and intent of the CBD, Central 
Business District Overlay, and will not detract from or be injurious to other properties in the 
vicinity.  

(3)   The Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council may require an alternative design 
solution that is consistent with the intent of the standard being modified.  

 
 
INTRODUCED:     September 4, 2018    
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:       
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       
ADOPTED:          
 

____________________________ 
       James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

-18-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Sec. 29-2. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. The word 
"used" or "occupied" includes the words "intended, designed or arranged to be used or occupied."  

Access drive means a driveway or easement allowing access to a lot not having frontage upon a 
street.  

Accessory use or structure means a use or structure on the same lot with and of a nature 
customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use or structure. Said accessory structures are 
customarily used for storage or parking purposes. No residential dwelling unit or business or commercial 
office may be established within an accessory structure.  

Administrator means the federal insurance administrator, to whom the secretary has delegated the 
administration of the program.  

Alley means a public way, other than a street, 20 feet or less in width, affording a secondary means 
of access to abutting property.  

Apartment hotel means a building containing both dwelling units and rooming units, used primarily 
for permanent occupancy.  

Assessed value means the assessed value for general property tax purposes of a property as 
established by the Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa.  

Base Flood means the flood having a one percent (1%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any 
given year (See 100-year (1%) flood). This is the regulatory standard also referred to as the "100-year 
flood". The base flood is the national standard used by the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and 
all Federal Agencies for the purpose of requiring the purchase of flood insurance and regulating new 
development. Base Flood Elevations (BFEs) are typically shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
(FIRMs).  

Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level below ground 
level (subgrade) on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-half of its height below grade 
shall be counted as a story for the purpose of height regulations. A basement having more than one-half 
of its height below grade is not included in computing the number of stories for the purpose of height 
measurement. Also see "Lowest floor."  

Bed and breakfast enterprises is synonymous with lodging house or guest lodging and means any 
building or portion thereof containing not more than five guest rooms for which compensation is received 
for short-term overnight lodging.  

Bed and breakfast inn is synonymous with hotel, and means a lodging establishment containing six 
or more guest rooms.  

Boardinghouse means a building other than a hotel or other overnight lodging facility where, for 
compensation, lodging and meals are provided by the building owners or managers for resident boarders 
with meals for all resident boarders provided in a central kitchen facility within said building. Residents 
within said boardinghouse facility shall be accommodated with weekly, monthly, or yearly tenant 
agreements or leases.  

Building means all residential housing, cabins, factories, warehouses, storage sheds and other 
walled or roofed structures constructed for occupancy by people or animals or for storage of materials.  

Building, height of means the vertical distance from grade to the highest point of any roof ridge.  

Building line means a line on a plat of official record indicating the minimum distance of open space 
that must be maintained between the property line and any structure on the lot.  

Building setback (see Yard) means the minimum required area of unobstructed open space on a lot 
measured from the property line.  

-19-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Carport means a roofed structure providing space for the parking of motor vehicles and enclosed on 
not more than two sides. A carport attached to a principal building shall be considered as part of the 
principal building and subject to all yard requirements in this chapter.  

Channel means a natural or artificial watercourse having definite banks and beds with visible 
evidence of flow or occurrence of water.  

Clinic means a building used by physicians or dentists, osteopaths, chiropractors and allied 
professions for outpatient care of persons requiring such professional service.  

Day nursery or nursery school means any private agency, institution, establishment or place which 
provides supplemental parental care or educational work, other than lodging overnight, to more than 12 
children.  

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including but not 
limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, excavation or drilling 
operations.  

Driveway, commercial means an improved area that is designed and intended to provide vehicular 
ingress and egress from a public street or public alley to and across a private property. It provides access 
to facilities on the private property including parking lots, garages, warehouses or business sites. 
Commercial driveways may cross property lines to access multiple businesses when specifically 
permitted by the city.  

Driveway, hard surface means a paved area, as defined in article VI, of chapter 23, of this Code. It 
does not include gravel or granular surface materials.  

Driveway, residential means an improved area that is designed and intended or used to provide 
vehicular ingress and egress from a public street or public alley to and across a private property. 
Driveways shall be entirely paved with a hard surface material. Driveways may provide off-street parking 
for dwellings and access to garages, parking areas and parking lots, when these facilities are specifically 
permitted. See section 29-179 for additional regulations.  

Dwelling means any building or portion thereof which is designed or used exclusively for residential 
purposes, but not including a tent, cabin or travel trailer.  

Dwelling, condominium means a multiple dwelling whereby the fee title to each dwelling unit is held 
independently of the others.  

Dwelling, multiple means a residence designed for or occupied by three or more families, with 
separate housekeeping and cooking facilities for each.  

Dwelling, row means any one of three or more attached dwellings in a continuous row, each such 
dwelling designed and erected as a unit on a separate lot, and separated from one another by an 
approved wall.  

Dwelling, single-family means a detached residence designed for or occupied by one family only.  

Dwelling, single-family bi-attached means a dwelling designed for or occupied by one family only 
which is erected on a separate lot and is joined to another such residence on one side only by a wall 
located on the lot line and which has yards on the remaining sides.  

Dwelling, two-family means a residence designed for or occupied by two families only, with separate 
housekeeping and cooking facilities for each.  

Dwelling unit means a room or group of rooms which is arranged, designed or used as living 
quarters for the occupancy of one family, containing bathroom or kitchen facilities.  

Elevating means raising a structure or property by fill or other means to or above the minimum flood 
protection level.  

Encroachment limits means a set of lines which delineate the boundaries of the floodway established 
in the floodplains as the designated width of channel and overbank areas through which the regulatory 
flood must pass.  

-20-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Façade means the entire exterior wall of a building along a street, including all stories. 

Factory-built home park means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two or more 
factory-built housing lots for rent or sale.  

Factory-built housing means any structure, designed for residential use, which is wholly or in 
substantial part made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation or 
assembly and installation on a building site. Factory-built housing includes mobile homes, manufactured 
homes and modular homes and also includes park trailers and other similar vehicles placed on a site for 
greater than 180 consecutive days.  

Factory-built structure means any structure which is, wholly or in substantial part, made, fabricated, 
formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation, or assembly and installation, on a building 
site.  

Fair market value means the dollar amount a person would be willing but not obligated to accept, 
and a buyer would be willing but not compelled to pay, for an item of sale. It is an estimate of what is a 
fair, economic, just and equitable value under normal local market conditions. In appropriate 
circumstances this may be the assessed value of the property.  

Family means one or more persons occupying a single dwelling unit, provided that, unless all 
members are related by blood, marriage or adoption, no such family shall contain over four persons.  

Family day care home means an occupied residence in which a person provides supplemental 
parental care or educational work, other than lodging overnight, to more than six but not more than 12 
children.  

Flood means a temporary rise in the channel flow or stage, resulting from the overflow of streams or 
rivers or from the unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any source, that results in water 
overflowing and inundating normally dry lands adjacent to the channel.  

Flood elevation means the elevation flood-waters would reach at a particular site during the 
occurrence of a specific flood. For instance, the "100-year flood" or the "100-year (1%) flood" is that flood, 
the magnitude of which has a one percent (1%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. 
The "500-year flood" or the "500-year (0.2%) flood" is that flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths 
of one percent (0.2%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year.  

Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means the official map prepared as part of, but published 
separately from, the flood insurance study, which delineates both the flood hazard areas and the risk 
premium zones applicable to the community.  

Flood insurance study means a study initiated, funded or published by the Federal Insurance 
Administration and approved by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), for the purpose of 
evaluating in detail the existence and severity of flood hazards, providing the city with the necessary 
information for adopting a floodplain management program, and establishing actuarial flood insurance 
rates.  

Floodplain means any land susceptible to being inundated by water as a result of a flood.  

Floodplain buildable area means that portion of the lot remaining after the minimum yard area 
requirements (i.e., setbacks) of this chapter have been met, and shall not include that portion of the 
property within the 500-year floodplain.  

Flood profile means a graph or a longitudinal profile showing the relationship of the water surface 
elevation of a flood event to a location along a stream or river.  

Floodproofing means a combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments incorporated in 
the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, structures or properties, including utilities, 
water treatment and sanitary facilities, which will reduce or eliminate flood damages.  

Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain adjoining the 
channel which are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters or flood flows associated with 

-21-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

the regulatory flood, so that confinement of flood flows to the floodway area will not result in substantially 
higher flood levels and flow velocities.  

Floodway fringe means the land adjacent to a body of water between the floodway and the outer 
(landward) limits of the special flood hazard area, as defined by the regulatory flood as delineated on the 
official floodplain zoning map.  

Floor area ratio means the gross floor area of all buildings on a lot, divided by the lot area on which 
the buildings are located.  

Garage, private means an enclosed structure intended for the parking of the private motor vehicle of 
the families resident upon the premises.  

Gasoline filling station means any building or premises used for:  

(1)  The retail sale of liquefied petroleum products for the propulsion of motor vehicles, including 
sale of such products as kerosene, fuel oil, package naphtha, lubricants, tires, batteries, 
antifreeze, motor vehicle accessories and other items customarily associated with the sale of 
such products;  

(2)  The rendering of services and making of adjustments and replacements to motor vehicles, and 
the washing, waxing and polishing of motor vehicles, as incidental to other services rendered; 
and  

(3)  The making of repairs to motor vehicles, except those of a major type. Repairs of a major type 
are defined to be spray painting, body, fender, clutch, transmission, differential, axle, spring and 
frame repairs, major overhauling of engines requiring the removal of the engine cylinder head or 
crankcase pan, repairs to radiators requiring the removal thereof, or complete recapping or 
retreading of tires.  

Group home means a community-based residential home which is licensed as a residential care 
facility or an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded under I.C.A. ch. 135C or as a child foster 
care facility under I.C.A. ch. 237 to provide room and board, personal care, habilitation services and 
supervision in a family environment exclusively for handicapped persons, as defined in section 3602(f) of 
the Fair Housing Amendments Act, and any necessary support personnel. However, group home does 
not mean an individual foster care family home licensed under I.C.A. ch. 237.  

Guest room means a room that is intended, arranged or designed to be occupied by no more than 
three guests, but in which no mechanical provision is made for cooking, heating or cooling of food or 
beverages.  

Habitable space for flood protection purposes means any floor or level, including a basement, which 
is suitable for human habitation. It excludes a garage, a detached accessory structure, or an area for 
housing electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating and other utility systems underneath a structure elevated 
to comply with flood protection requirements.  

Historic structure means a structure that is:  

(a)  Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained by the 
Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as meeting the 
requirements for individual listing on the National Register.  

(b)  Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as contributing to the historical 
significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily determined by the Secretary 
to qualify as a registered historic district;  

(c)  Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic places in states 
with historic preservation programs which has been approved by the Secretary of Interior; or  

(d)  Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with historic 
preservation programs that have been certified either:  

1.  By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of Interior or  

-22-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

2.  Directly by the Secretary of Interior in states without approved programs.  

Home occupation means a secondary use carried on entirely within the residence where there is no 
evidence of such occupation being conducted on the premises by virtue of outside storage, displays, 
noise, odors, electrical disturbances or traffic generation, with no more than one nonresident assistant 
and where not more than one-half of the floor area of any one floor is devoted to such use. Only one 
nameplate shall be allowed.  

Hotel means a building in which lodging is provided and offered to the public for compensation, and 
which is open to transient guests, in contradistinction to a boardinghouse or roominghouse.  

Junkyard means any area where waste, discarded or salvaged materials are bought, sold, 
exchanged, baled or packed, disassembled, kept, stored or handled, including house wrecking yards, 
used lumber yards and places or yards for storage of salvaged house wrecking and structural steel 
materials and equipment; but not including areas where such uses are conducted entirely within a 
completely enclosed building, and not including automobile, tractor or machinery wrecking and used parts 
yards and the processing of used, discarded or salvaged materials as part of manufacturing operations, 
and not including contractors' storage yards.  

Kennel means any premises on which four or more dogs or four or more cats, six months old or 
older, are kept. The term shall not include a veterinary hospital.  

Landscape area means that area of private property maintained as open or "green" space, not 
subject to vehicular traffic, which consists of living landscape material.  

Lot means a parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet minimum zoning requirements for use, 
coverage and area to provide such yards and other open space as are required in this chapter. No portion 
of an established floodway area lying within a lot or any access drive through a property shall be used in 
computing the number of dwelling units to be constructed. Such lot shall have frontage on a public street 
or private street and may consist of:  

(1)  A single lot of record;  

(2)  A portion of a lot of record;  

(3)  A combination of complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of lots of 
record, or of portions of lots of record; and  

(4)  A parcel of land described by metes and bounds;  

provided that in no case of division or combination shall any residual lot or parcel be created which does 
not meet the requirements of this chapter.  

Lot, corner means a lot abutting upon two or more streets at their intersection.  

Lot depth means the mean horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines.  

Lot, double frontage means a lot having a frontage on two nonintersecting streets, as distinguished 
from a corner lot.  

Lot, interior means a lot other than a corner lot.  

Lot lines means the lines bounding a lot.  

Lot of record means a lot which is a part of a subdivision recorded in the office of the county 
recorder, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, the description of which has been so 
recorded.  

-23-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Lot, reversed frontage means a corner lot, the side street line of which is substantially a continuation 

of the front line of the first platted lot to its rear.  

;p0; Lot width means the width of a lot measured at the building line and at right angles to its depth.  

Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a basement, except 
when all the following criteria are met:  

(1)  The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during floods, with 
walls or openings that satisfy the floodway fringe performance standard pertaining to new and 
substantially improved structures;  

(2)  The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for low damage 
potential uses such as building access, parking or storage;  

(3)  Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, furnace and electrical service) 
contained in the enclosed area are located at least one foot above the 500-year (0.2%) flood 
level; and  

(4)  The enclosed area is not a basement.  

In cases where the lowest enclosed area satisfies the criteria of subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) of this 
definition, the lowest floor is the floor of the next highest enclosed area that does not satisfy such criteria.  

Main body means that portion of a dwelling encompassed by the exterior walls as originally 
assembled or built. When a dwelling is irregularly shaped, the main body shall be construed as that 
portion of the structure occupying the majority of geometric bulk.  

Manufactured home means a factory-built single-family structure, which is manufactured or 
constructed under the authority of 42 USC section 5403, Federal Manufactured Home Construction and 
Safety Standards, and is to be used as a place for human habitation, but which is not constructed with a 
permanent hitch or other device allowing it to be moved other than for the purpose of moving to a 
permanent site, and which does not have permanently attached to its body or frame any wheels or axles. 
A mobile home is not a manufactured home unless it has been converted to real property and is taxed as 
a site-built dwelling. Manufactured homes shall be considered the same as any site-built single-family 
detached dwelling.  

Mini-storage warehouses means a building or group of buildings in a controlled access and fenced 
compound that contains varying sizes of individual compartmentalized stalls or lockers for the storage of 
customers' goods or wares.  

Mobile home means any vehicle without motive power used or so manufactured or constructed as to 
permit its being used as a conveyance upon the public streets and highways, and so designed, 
constructed or reconstructed as will permit the vehicle to be used as a place for human habitation by one 
or more persons; but shall also include any such vehicle with motive power not registered as a motor 
vehicle in the state. A mobile home is factory-built housing built on a chassis. A mobile home shall not be 
construed to be a travel trailer or other form of recreational vehicle. A mobile home shall be construed to 
remain a mobile home, subject to all regulations applying thereto, whether or not wheels, axles, hitch or 
other appurtenances of mobility are removed and regardless of the nature of the foundation provided. 
However, certain mobile homes may be classified as manufactured homes. Nothing in this chapter shall 
be construed as permitting a mobile home in other than an approved mobile home park, unless such 
mobile home is classified as a manufactured home.  

-24-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Mobile home accessory building or structure means any awning, cabana, ramada, storage structure 
or carport, fence, windbreak or porch established for the use of the occupants of the mobile home on a 
mobile home space.  

Mobile home space means a designated portion of the mobile home park designed for the 
accommodation of one mobile home and for its accessory buildings or structures for the exclusive use of 
the occupant.  

Modular home means factory-built housing certified as meeting the Iowa State Building Code as 
applicable to modular housing. Once certified by the state, modular homes shall be subject to the same 
standards as site-built homes.  

New construction (new buildings, new mobile home parks) means those structures or development 
for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985.  

Nursing or convalescent home means a building or structure having accommodations and where 
care is provided for invalid, infirm, aged, convalescent or physically disabled or injured persons, not 
including insane and other mental cases, inebriates or contagious cases.  

Obstruction means any dam, wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, projection, 
excavation, channel rectification, bridge, conduit, culvert, building, wire, fence, rock, gravel, refuse, fill, 
structure or matter in, along, across or projecting into any watercourse or floodplain area which may 
impede, retard or change the direction of the flow of water, either in itself or by catching or collecting 
debris carried by such water, or that is placed where the flow of water might carry material or structure 
downstream to the damage of other properties.  

Official floodplain zoning map means the maps on file with the city that indicate those portions of 
land known as the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain, which are subject to the regulations 
of this chapter.  

One hundred (100) year flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (1%) 
chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which, on average, will be equaled or 
exceeded at least once every one hundred (100) years.  

Parking area means that portion of a parcel of land that is improved and designated or commonly 
used for the parking of one or more motor vehicles.  

Parking lot means an area improved and designated or commonly used for the parking of three or 
more motor vehicles.  

Parking space, also Parking stall means an area measuring at least nine feet wide and 19 feet long 
for all commercial, institutional, or manufacturing uses or eight feet wide and 18 feet long for residential 
uses only, connected to a public street or alley by a driveway not less than ten feet wide, and so arranged 
as to permit ingress and egress of motor vehicles without moving any other vehicle parked adjacent to the 
parking space.  

Permanent storage means the volume of water which is stored upstream from a dam or in an 
impoundment up to the level of the principal outlet works of the structure, usually expressed in acre-feet.  

Porch, unenclosed means a roofed projection which has no more than 50 percent of each outside 
wall area enclosed by a building or siding material other than meshed screens.  

Principal use means the main use of land or structures, as distinguished from an accessory use.  

Program means the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP).  

Public damages shall consist of but not necessarily be limited to the following:  

(1)  Physical flood damage to:  

a.  Streets.  

b.  Sewers.  

c.  Water mains.  

-25-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

d.  Other public utilities.  

e.  Public buildings.  

f.  Bridges.  

g.  Recreational trails.  

(2)  Expenditures for:  

a.  Emergency flood protection.  

b.  Evacuation and relief.  

c.  Rehabilitation and cleanup.  

(3)  Losses due to:  

a.  Interruption of utilities and transportation routes.  

b.  Interruption of commerce and employment.  

Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated and maintained sanitary sewer system.  

Public water supply means a municipally owned, operated and maintained water supply.  

Reach is a hydraulic engineering term used to describe longitudinal segments of a stream or river. A 
reach will generally include the segment of the flood hazard area where flood heights are primarily 
controlled by manmade or natural obstructions or constrictions. In an urban area, an example of a reach 
would be the segment of a stream or river between two consecutive bridge crossings.  

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle built on a single chassis; 400 square feet or less when 
measured at the largest horizontal projection; designed to be self-propelled or permanently towable by a 
light duty truck; and designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as temporary living 
quarters for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use.  

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2%) of one percent 
chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also referred to in this 
chapter as the "500-year flood" and the "500-year (0.2%) flood."  

Roominghouse means an owner-occupied or manager-occupied single dwelling unit wherein 
individual sleeping rooms are provided to not less than three unrelated resident tenants. Not more than 
one kitchen facility shall be established within said structure wherein meals may be prepared by resident 
tenants. Said rooming or boarding facility shall be distinctive from transient lodging facilities such as 
hotels, beds and breakfasts, other overnight lodging facilities or public eateries. Residents within said 
roominghouse facility shall be accommodated with weekly, monthly, or yearly tenant agreements or 
leases.  

Satellite receiving dish means a device whose purpose is to receive communication or other signals 
from orbiting satellites and other extraterrestrial sources, most often comprised of an antenna/dish, a low-
noise amplifier, and a coaxial cable whose purpose is to carry the signals to a receiver.  

Site coverage ratio means that proportion of the lot on which buildings and outdoor storage of 
materials and products may be placed.  

Special Exception Permit means an authorization by the City Board of Adjustment to allow building 
improvements or other development when such project conforms with specified rules, regulations and/or 
performance standards required for said improvements or development in special areas of the City as 
identified by the Zoning Ordinance.  

Storefront means the façade of the ground-level story of a building. The area of the storefront will be 
calculated using the first 15 vertical feet of the façade, unless otherwise demonstrated by applicant, as 
evidenced by the storefront cornice height or interior ceiling height. 

-26-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Story means that portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the surface of 
the floor next above it, or, if there is no floor above it, then the space between the floor and the ceiling or 
roof next above it.  

Story, half means a space under a sloping roof which has the line of intersection of roof decking and 
wall face not more than four feet above the top floor level.  

Street line means the right-of-way line of a street.  

Street, private means any private way 20 feet or more in width which is approved by the city council 
after recommendation by the city planning and zoning commission.  

Street, public means any thoroughfare or public way not less than 30 feet in width which has been 
dedicated to the public or deeded to the city for street purposes, and also any such public way as may be 
created after enactment of this chapter, provided it is 40 feet or more in width.  

Structural alterations means any replacement or changes in the type of construction or in the 
supporting members of a building, such as bearing walls or partitions, columns, beams or girders, beyond 
ordinary repairs and maintenance.  

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, including 
but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, storage tanks and other similar 
uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and 
measuring at least 30 inches in height, as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure.  

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of 
restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the fair 
market value of the structure before the damage occurred.  

Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of the 
following criteria:  

(1)  Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or other improvement of a structure, the cost of 
which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the fair market value of the structure before the start of 
construction of the improvement. This term includes structures which have incurred substantial 
damage, regardless of the actual repair work performed. The term does not, however, include 
either:  

a.  Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 
health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code 
enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living conditions; 
or  

b.  Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not preclude the 
structure's continued designation as a historic structure.  

(2)  Any addition which increases the original floor area of a structure by 25 percent or more. All 
additions constructed after February 1, 1985, shall be added to any proposed addition in 
determining whether the total increase in original floor space would exceed 25 percent. The 
term does not, however, include either:  

a.  Any project or improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 
health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code 
enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to ensure safe living conditions; 
or  

b.  Any alteration which will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic 
structure.  

Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or in an 
impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-feet.  

Travel trailer means a towed recreational vehicle ranging from ten to 35 feet in length and a 
maximum of eight feet in width.  

-27-

Item E.1. 



8-30-18 

Wind energy conversion system means a device or assemblage of devices which directly or 
indirectly converts wind energy to usable thermal, mechanical or electrical energy.  

Variance means a grant of relief by a community from the terms of the zoning ordinance.  

Violation means the failure of a structure, property, property use or other development to be fully 
compliant with City regulations.  

Yard means an open space on the same lot with a building or structure unoccupied and 
unobstructed by any portion of a structure from 30 inches above the general ground level of the graded 
lot upward. In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the depth of a front yard or the depth of a 
rear yard, the least distance between the lot line and the main building shall be used. In measuring a yard 
for the purpose of determining the width of a side yard, the least distance between the lot line and the 
nearest permitted building shall be used.  

Yard, front means a yard extending across the full width of the lot and measured between the front 
lot line and the building.  

Yard, rear means a yard extending across the full width of the lot and measured between the rear lot 
line and the building or any projections other than steps, unenclosed balconies or unenclosed porches. 
On both corner lots and interior lots, the rear yard is the opposite end of the lot from the front yard.  

Yard, required means that portion of the front yard, side yard and rear yard as established by the 
setback requirements of the zoning district or of this chapter. It must be maintained in open, unobstructed 
space as measured from the property line to the required setback line except for allowable yard 
encroachments as outlined in section 29-83. If the building structure is located at the required setback 
line, then the setback distance shall be measured from the property line to the foundation of the structure. 
Refer to Figure 1.  

 

Figure 1 

Yard, side means a yard extending from the front yard to the rear yard and measured between the 
side lot lines and the nearest building.  

(Ord. No. 2750, § 1, 7-11-11; Ord. No. 2837, § 1, 3-2-15; Ord. No. 2847, § 1, 7-20-15)  

Cross reference— Definitions and rules of construction generally, § 1-2.  

-28-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

1 
 

Sec. 29-168. - CBD, Central business district overlay zoning district.  

(a)  Purpose and intent . The purpose of the CBD, central business district overlay zoning district 
(hereinafter the "overlay district") is to provide guidance for future development in the specified area 
and to encourage continued successful business development in the downtown Cedar Falls area., 
particularly in the Main Street Parkade retail and service business area extending from First Street to 
Sixth Street. However, the overlay district may be extended over other nearby downtown areas. The 
overlay district is intended to allow land uses and to encourage appropriate building design 
standards in a manner that complements and strengthens the downtown retail and service business 
sector. Originally developed as a compact, multi-functional, walkable environment, the overlay is 
intended to support pedestrian access and use. The provisions of this section shall apply in addition 
to any other zoning district regulations and requirements in which the land may be classified. In case 
of conflict, the more specific standard shall apply. 

(b)  Boundaries. The CBD, commercial central business district overlay zoning district boundaries are 
generally outlined in the image below. The legal description and official zoning map of the overlay 
legally described on Attachment A to this ordinance (said attachment is not set out at length herein, 
but is on file in the office of the city clerk).  

 

Figure 1 – CBD boundary map 

 

-29-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

2 
 

 (c)  Definition.  

" Substantial improvement " includes any new building construction within the overlay district or any 
renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the exterior appearance of the 
structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or doors or altering the color or exterior 
materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, changes, alterations, modifications or replacement of 
existing facade materials will be considered a substantial improvement. Included in this definition are any 
new, modified or replacement awning structures or similar material extensions over the public sidewalk 
area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in existing building height and/or 
alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance. Routine repair or replacement of existing roof materials 
that do not materially change the appearance, shape or configuration of the existing roof will not be 
considered a "substantial improvement". Any new freestanding sign, projecting wall sign, or monumental 
sign, or an increase in size or height of any existing freestanding sign, projecting wall sign, or 
monumental sign, shall be considered a substantial improvement. Owner-occupied detached single family 
residences will not be subject to these regulations.  

(cd)  Permitted uses.  

(1)  Allowable uses within the overlay district include typical commercial, professional office and 
service oriented businesses, uses or facilities, including hotels and lodging facilities, all such 
uses currently allowed in the C-1 commercial, C-2 commercial and C-3 commercial districts 
unless herein limited. If the underlying zoning district is more restrictive than the C-3 commercial 
district, then only those uses permitted in the more restrictive district shall be allowed.  

(2)  Residential uses are allowable subject to planning and zoning commission and city council 
review and approval. No residential use may be established on the ground floor of any building 
store front or shop front located within the Main Street Parkade retail and service commercial 
area bounded by extending from First Street south to Sixth Street from Washington Street east 
to State Street. and also extending at least one-half block in depth on any side street 
perpendicular to said Main Street Parkade area. Residential uses are encouraged to be 
established in upper levels of downtown commercial  buildingsfacilities. (hereinafter referred to 
as “mixed-use buildings”). 

(de)  Conditional uses. Where some question arises whether a particular commercial use is appropriate 
within the overlay district, the use may be allowed subject to planning and zoning commission and 
city council review and approval, provided that the proposed use conforms to the prevailing character 
of the downtown area and provided that the use will not necessitate the use of outdoor storage 
areas. In addition, such uses must not generate excessive amounts of noise, odor, vibrations or 
fumes, or generate excessive amounts of truck traffic. If the underlying zoning district is more 
restrictive than the C-3 commercial district, allowable conditional uses will be those generally 
compatible with the more restrictive standards of the underlying zoning district. Examples of uses 
that may be allowed subject to approval of a conditional use permit are:  

(1)  Auto repair shop.  

(2)  Printing or publishing facility.  

(3)  Limited manufacturing activity that is directly related to the operation of a retail business 
conducted on the premises.  

(4)  Plumbing and heating shop.  

(5)  Sign painting shop.  

(6)  Appliance repair shop.  

(7)  Home supply business.  

(ef)  Prohibited uses. In all cases the following uses will not be allowed within the overlay district either 
as permitted or conditional uses:  

(1)  Lumber yards.  

-30-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

3 
 

(2)  Used or new auto sales lots and displays.  

(3)  Auto body shop.  

(4)  Storage warehouse or business.  

(5)  Mini-storage warehouse.  

(6)  Sheet metal shop.  

(7)  Outdoor storage yard.  

(fg)  Site plan review. Any proposed substantially improved or new building structure or development, 
including proposed residential facilities, must submit a detailed site plan and building plans for review 
and approval by the planning and zoning commission and the city council. Applicants are 
encouraged, but not required, to consult with Community Main Street’s Design Guidelines and 
Design Committee as a design resource. Elements to be considered in this review process are 
proposed use, proposed building improvements or new structural elements, with particular attention 
to exterior building design elements, parking provision (see section 29-177 parking regulationsif any), 
and how the proposed improvement or development will complement existing nearby uses and 
building design elements. In the case of emergency repairs needed as the result of unanticipated 
building or facade damages due to events such as fire, vandalism, or weather related damages, site 
plan review will not be required, provided that the needed repairs do not alter the appearance of the 
structure prior to the event causing the unanticipated damages. Owner-occupied detached single-
family dwellings will be exempt from this provision.  

“Substantial improvement " includes any new building construction within the overlay district or any 
renovation of an existing structure that involves any modification of the exterior appearance of the 
structure by virtue of adding or removing exterior windows or doors or altering the color or exterior 
materials of existing walls. All facade improvements, changes, alterations, modifications or 
replacement of existing facade materials will be considered a substantial improvement. Included in 
this definition are any new, modified or replacement awning structures or similar material extensions 
over the public sidewalk area. A substantial improvement also includes any increase or decrease in 
existing building height and/or alteration of the existing roof pitch or appearance. 

The following shall be exempt from site plan review: 

(1) Existing detached single-unit and multi-unit dwellings containing less than seven units; not 
including mixed use buildings.  

(2) Routine repair or replacement of existing roof materials, awnings, or other minor façade 
elements that do not materially change the appearance, shape or configuration of the existing 
building will not be considered a "substantial improvement".  

(3) Emergency repairs needed as the result of unanticipated building or facade damages due to 
events such as fire, vandalism, or weather related damages, provided that the needed repairs do 
not alter the appearance of the structure prior to the event causing the unanticipated damages. 

(g)   Parking: On-site parking in the downtown area will not be required for principal permitted commercial, 
professional office or service business uses or facilities. Any proposed residential use established 
within the overlay district must conform to the parking regulations described in section 29-177.  

(h)  Front Setbacks.  

(1) New commercial and mixed-use buildings shall be placed to the front and corner of lots, and set 
back a minimum of 0 feet and maximum of 10 feet from any street side lot line.  

(2) New residential or expansions of residential buildings shall be setback a minimum of 10 feet.  

(ih)  Building design review. All substantially improved or new building structures within the overlay 
district shall be reviewed by the planning and zoning commission and the city council for architectural 
compatibility with surrounding structures. Paramount into this review will include be consideration of 

-31-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

4 
 

building materials, exterior building materials on all sides, coloration of materials, building height, roof 
line, size and location of windows and doors, roof mounted appurtenances, and facades. For the 
purposes of this section, when a building is located on a corner lot the primary street shall be the 
north-south street, with other streets being considered secondary. In addition to consideration of 
typical physical structural improvements to structures, review is also required of any wall painting, 
mural wall signs or painted artwork or other similar applications to exterior walls. The purpose of 
review of said exterior wall paintings or drawings is to ensure that said applications are consistent 
with the prevailing standards and character of the downtown area. The following design elements will 
be reviewed:  

(1)  Proportion: The relationship of width and height of the front elevations of adjacent buildings 
shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. An effort should be made to 
generally align horizontal elements along a street frontage, such as cornice lines, windows, 
awnings and canopies. The relationship of width and height of windows and doors of adjacent 
buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. Particular attention 
must be given to the scale of street level doors, walls and windows. Large expanses of bBlank 
walls spaces at the street level are to be discouraged. Elements such as windows, doors, 
columns, pilasters, and changes in materials, artwork, or other architectural details that provide 
visual interest must be distributed across the façade in a manner consistent with the overall 
design of the building.  

(2)  Roof shape, pitch and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch and direction 
of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
Routine repair and maintenance or replacement of existing roof materials will not be subject to 
review provided that the existing roof line and configuration is not altered during the course of 
said repairs or maintenance.  

(3)  Pattern: Alternating solid surfaces and openings (wall surface versus doors and windows) in 
the front facade, sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This 
pattern of solid surfaces and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building.  

(4) Building Composition (See Figure 2):  

 (i) To create visual interest and visually break up long building walls, facades on buildings 
greater than 50 feet in length shall be divided vertically into bays. Façade bays shall be a 
minimum of 20 feet wide and a maximum 40 feet wide. The bays shall be distinctive but 
tied visually together by a rhythm of repeating vertical elements, such as window 
groupings, pilasters, window bays, balconies, changes in building materials and textures, 
and/or by varying the wall plane of the façade.  

(ii) To avoid flat, continuous, and overly long upper floor facades, the maximum length of 
a wall plane of the façade is 60 feet. Articulation between continuous upper floor façade 
sections shall be accomplished by recessing the façade 1 foot minimum for a distance of 
at least 10 feet. This recessed section would count as a façade bay per paragraph (i), 
even if the width is less than 20 feet.   

(iii) Storefronts in mixed-use buildings shall be distinguished from the upper floors by a 
horizontal element, such as a cornice, band board, or soldier course to create a 
distinctive base to the building.  

(iv) For all mixed-use and commercial buildings, the minimum ground floor, floor-to 
structural ceiling height is 14 feet.  

-32-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

5 
 

 

Figure 2 – Building composition example 

(5)   Windows and Transparency: The size, proportion, and type of windows need to be compatible 
with existing neighboring buildings. For storefronts, the following standards shall apply:    

(i) A minimum of 70% of the storefront area between 2 and 10 feet in height above the 
adjacent ground level shall consist of clear and transparent storefront windows and doors 
that allow views into the interior of the store. The bottom of storefront windows shall be 
no more than 2 feet above the adjacent ground level, except along sloping sites, where 
this standard shall be met to the extent possible so that views into the interior of the store 
are maximized and blank walls are avoided. Exceptions may be allowed for buildings on 
corner lots where window coverage should be concentrated at the corner, but may be 
reduced along the secondary street façade, and for repurposing of buildings not originally 
designed as storefront buildings (e.g. re-purposing of an industrial or institutional 
building).   

(ii) Transom windows are encouraged above storefront display windows. Residential 
window types, reflective (mirrored), or colored glass are not allowed for storefronts.  

(iii) Glazing should be clear and highly transparent to maximize views into the store. Low-
E or tinted glazing will reduce transparency, so is discouraged for storefront windows, but 
if used, the glass chosen should have a high visible light transmittance and low 
reflectivity.  

(iv) Removing storefront windows or reducing storefront window coverage is discouraged 
and will require Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council approval. 

(64)  Materials and texture: The similarity or compatibility of existing materials and texture on the 
exterior walls and roofs of the buildings in the immediate area shall be considered in the 
construction or alteration of a building. A building or alteration will be considered compatible if 
the materials and texture used are appropriate in the context of other buildings in the immediate 
area.  

Street-facing facades shall be comprised of at least 50% brick, stone, or terra cotta. Side and 
rear walls shall be comprised of at least 25% brick, stone, or terra cotta. These high quality 
materials should be concentrated on the base of the building.   

-33-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

6 
 

The following materials may be used in limited amounts:  

(i) Fiber cement, aluminum, metal, pre-formed panels, painted wood, or anything similar – 
Up to 35 percent of any one siding material may be used on the street-facing façade 
and up to 40 percent of any other sides. These materials are not generally allowed for 
storefronts. Fiber cement board should be high quality and smooth-faced. Metal shall 
be heavy gauge and non-reflective. Durability and maintenance of the metal shall be 
carefully considered if used in high use areas.  

(ii) Concrete and Precast Concrete- This includes site-poured or preformed concrete 
items. Use is limited to architectural elements such as window hoods, cornices, columns, 
capitals, etc. Architectural CMU may be used in combination with other materials such as 
brick, stone or terra cotta. Except for burnished/polished or glazed units, CMU is not 
generally allowed on the storefront level, however, architectural CMU, such as split-face, 
ground-face, and rock-face, may be used as an accent material on the storefront level. 
  

  (iii) EFIS may only be used for architectural detailing above the ground floor 

(iv) In the case of an unenclosed rear or roof deck, stained wood is permitted.  

(75)  Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs of buildings in 
the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. Buildings in the CBD 
utilize earth and neutral tones; however, other colors can highlight the architectural features of a 
building and are acceptable as accents. Accents generally include trim areas and comprise up 
to 15% of the façade. Painting unpainted brick or stone is discouraged. 

(86)  Architectural features: Architectural features including but not limited to cornices, 
entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, fanlights and other elements prevailing in the area shall 
be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. It is not intended that the details of 
existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but those features shallould be suggestive of the 
extent, nature and scale of details that would be appropriate on new buildings or associated 
with building alterations.  

(9)   Building Entries: This section applies to new mixed use and commercial buildings.  

(i) Primary entries to ground floor building space and to common lobbies accessing upper floor 
building space shall be located along street-facing facades. For buildings with more than one 
street-facing façade, entries along facades facing primary streets are preferred. Building entries 
along rear and side facades or from parking garages may not serve as principal building entries. 
Buildings with more than three street-facing facades shall have building entries on at least two 
street-facing sides.  

(ii) For buildings that contain residential dwelling units, there must be at least one main entrance 
on the street-facing façade or façade facing a prominent residential courtyard that provides 
pedestrian access to dwelling units within the building. Access to dwelling units must not be 
solely through a parking garage or from a rear or side entrance.   

 (ii) For storefronts with frontage of 100 feet or more, a visible entryway shall be provided a 
minimum of every 50 feet. 

(iii) Entryways into a storefront will be at grade with the fronting sidewalks. 

(iv) Entryways shall be designed to be a prominent feature of the building. The use of 
architectural features such as awnings, canopies, and recessed entries are encouraged. 

(107)  Exterior mural wall drawings, painted artwork, exterior painting: These elements shall be 
reviewed to consider the scale, context, coloration and appropriateness of the proposal in 
relation to nearby facades and also in relation to the prevailing character of the downtown area. 
Exterior painting of detached single family unit and two-family unit residential structures within 

-34-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

7 
 

the district shall be exempt from this provision. Other multi-family unit dwelling structures will be 
subject to this review.  

(ji)  Signage . Typical business signage shall be permitted without mandatory site plan review by the 
planning and zoning commission and city council, unless said review is mandated by ordinance 
requirements. All signage shall conform to requirements of the Cedar Falls sign regulations outlined 
in the Zoning Ordinance Section 29-202, except as provided for below:  

(1)  Freestanding signs:  

(i)  When located adjacent to any street other than First Street, shall not exceed 15 feet in 
height and 40 square feet in surface area.  

(ii)  When located adjacent to First Street, shall not exceed 25 feet in height and 60 square 
feet in surface area.  

(iii)  One freestanding or monument sign shall be allowed per lot provided all components are 
entirely on private property. In the case of a double frontage lot, a second sign may be 
considered. 

(2iv) Monumental signs: Shall not exceed 8 feet in height and 40 square feet in surface area.  

(2)   Projecting signs: One projecting sign per business is permitted on the primary façade. Signs 
which are permitted to encroach over or upon public rights-of-way shall meet the following 
standards and clearance height: 

   (i) Vehicular ways: 14 feet clear above the vehicular way, unless public services 
necessitate higher clearance. 

        (ii) Pedestrian ways: 10 feet clear above the pedestrian way. For blade signs and 
awnings, the minimum clearance height shall be 8 feet.  

(iii) Blade signs are limited to an area of 4 square feet and a projection of 2.5 feet from an 
exterior wall. 

(iv) All projecting signs, excluding blade signs, shall project no further than half the width 
of the sidewalk that the storefront is located on or 5 feet, whichever is less. 

(v) All projecting signs, excluding blade signs, shall be no larger in size than 1 square foot 
for each linear foot of the side of the building to which the sign is attached, not to exceed 
40 square feet per sign face. 

(vi) Corner projecting signs are those that are visible from two or more intersecting 
streets, and shall be allowed as long as they do not exceed 40 square feet per sign face. 

(3)  Window Signs and film: Permanent or adhered window signage and film shall not exceed 25% of 
glazing of the first 15 vertical feet of wall area and shall not be placed in a manner that 
preventss views into a storefront.  

(4)  Wall Signs: Wall signs shall not exceed 10% of the total wall area, and in no case shall exceed 
10% of the area of the storefront. Wall signs on storefronts shall not extend beyond or above an 
existing sign band or extend over or detract from the architectural features of the building 
façade , such as cornices, pilasters, transoms, window trim, and similar.  

(5)   Billboards: Prohibited 

(6)  Roof signs: Prohibited 

(7)  Illuminated signs: Illuminated signs are permitted. External illumination should be provided by a 
continuous light source directed onto the sign. The use of internally lit signs (back-lit plastic) is 
acceptable for monument and freestanding signs. The use of internally lit wall and projecting 
signs (back-lit plastic) are permitted when the background is opaque at night.   

-35-

Item E.1. 



8/30/18 

8 
 

(jk)  Removal or demolition of building structures. Removal or demolition of structures within the overlay 
district is allowable, subject to securing a demolition permit with the city inspection services division. 
If no immediate building reconstruction plans are proposed within 30 days following building removal 
or demolition, the site shall be filled and graded to a topographic elevation equal to or level with 
surrounding adjacent property natural grade levels. All drainage shall be directed away from existing 
buildings. Within 30 days of final grading of the site or at the earliest opportunity during the growing 
season conducive to plant germination, the site shall be seeded with grass. Reasonable efforts shall 
be taken by the property owner to ensure proper germination of the vegetation and the property 
owner must maintain the property in accordance with city ordinances.  

l)  Exceptions: The Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council may approve deviations from the 
standards if there are characteristics of the site or building that makes it difficult or infeasible to meet 
the requirements outlined in this section, such as buildings located on a corner lot, sloping sites, 
reuse of an existing building that was not originally designed as a storefront building, or other similar 
situation. To be granted an exception the applicant must provide: 

(1) A detailed explanation of why the specific standard cannot be met;  

(2) The proposed building is uniquely designed to fit the characteristics of the site and the 
surrounding neighborhood, is consistent with the purpose and intent of the CBD, Central 
Business District Overlay, and will not detract from or be injurious to other properties in the 
vicinity.  

(3) The Planning and Zoning Commission or City Council may require an alternative design 
solution that is consistent with the intent of the standard being modified.  

 

(Ord. No. 2477, § 1, 5-10-04; Ord. No. 2853, §§ 1—3, 9-8-15)  

-36-

Item E.1. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared By: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2929 
 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 29-2, DEFINITIONS, OF ARTICLE I, 
IN GENERAL, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF  
NEW SUBSECTIONS (1) AND (2), DEFINITIONS, OF SAID SECTION 29-2; AND 
(2) REPEALING SUBSECTION (16) OF SUBSECTION (e), PERFORMANCE 
STANDARDS, OF SECTION 29-156, F-F, FLOODWAY FRINGE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS 
AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 29, ZONING, AND ENACTING IN 
LIEU THEREOF A NEW SUBSECTION (16) SUBSECTION (e), PERFORMANCE 
STANDARDS, OF SAID SECTION 29-156; AND (3) THE DEFINITION OF BASE 
FLOOD ELEVATION IN SECTION 27-114 OF ARTICLE III, STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT PROGRAM OF CHAPTER 27 UTILITIES AND ENACTING IN 
LIEU A NEW DEFINITION OF BASE FLOOD ELEVATION OF SAID SECTION 
27-114, ALL OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA. 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1. Section 29-2, Definitions, of Article I, In General, of Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code 
of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in their entirety and new subsections 
(1) and (2) of said Section 29-2, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. 
The word "used" or "occupied" includes the words "intended, designed or arranged to be used 
or occupied." 

(1) General Zoning Definitions. 
 
Access drive means a driveway or easement allowing access to a lot not having frontage 
upon a street. 
 
Accessory use or structure means a use or structure on the same lot with and of a nature 
customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use or structure. Said accessory 

-37-

Item F.1. 



2 
 

structures are customarily used for storage or parking purposes. No residential dwelling 
unit or business or commercial office may be established within an accessory structure. 

Administrator means the federal insurance administrator, to whom the secretary has 
delegated the administration of the program. 

Alley means a public way, other than a street, 20 feet or less in width, affording a secondary 
means of access to abutting property. 

Apartment hotel means a building containing both dwelling units and rooming units, used 
primarily for permanent occupancy. 

Assessed value means the assessed value for general property tax purposes of a property as 
established by the Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

Bed and breakfast enterprises is synonymous with lodging house or guest lodging 
and means any building or portion thereof containing not more than five guest rooms for 
which compensation is received for short-term overnight lodging. 

Bed and breakfast inn is synonymous with hotel, and means a lodging establishment 
containing six or more guest rooms. 

Boardinghouse means a building other than a hotel or other overnight lodging facility 
where, for compensation, lodging and meals are provided by the building owners or 
managers for resident boarders with meals for all resident boarders provided in a central 
kitchen facility within said building. Residents within said boardinghouse facility shall be 
accommodated with weekly, monthly, or yearly tenant agreements or leases. 

Building means all residential housing, cabins, factories, warehouses, storage sheds and 
other walled or roofed structures constructed for occupancy by people or animals or for 
storage of materials. 

Building, height of means the vertical distance from grade to the highest point of any roof 
ridge. 

Building line means a line on a plat of official record indicating the minimum distance of 
open space that must be maintained between the property line and any structure on the lot. 

Building setback (see Yard) means the minimum required area of unobstructed open space 
on a lot measured from the property line. 

Carport means a roofed structure providing space for the parking of motor vehicles and 
enclosed on not more than two sides. A carport attached to a principal building shall be 
considered as part of the principal building and subject to all yard requirements in this 
chapter. 

Clinic means a building used by physicians or dentists, osteopaths, chiropractors and allied 
professions for outpatient care of persons requiring such professional service. 

-38-

Item F.1. 



3 
 

Day nursery or nursery school means any private agency, institution, establishment or 
place which provides supplemental parental care or educational work, other than lodging 
overnight, to more than 12 children. 

Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, including 
but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 
excavation or drilling operations. 

Driveway, commercial means an improved area that is designed and intended to provide 
vehicular ingress and egress from a public street or public alley to and across a private 
property. It provides access to facilities on the private property including parking lots, 
garages, warehouses or business sites. Commercial driveways may cross property lines to 
access multiple businesses when specifically permitted by the city. 

Driveway, hard surface means a paved area, as defined in article VI, of chapter 23, of this 
Code. It does not include gravel or granular surface materials. 

Driveway, residential means an improved area that is designed and intended or used to 
provide vehicular ingress and egress from a public street or public alley to and across a 
private property. Driveways shall be entirely paved with a hard surface material. Driveways 
may provide off-street parking for dwellings and access to garages, parking areas and 
parking lots, when these facilities are specifically permitted. See section 29-179 for 
additional regulations. 

Dwelling means any building or portion thereof which is designed or used exclusively for 
residential purposes, but not including a tent, cabin or travel trailer. 

Dwelling, condominium means a multiple dwelling whereby the fee title to each dwelling 
unit is held independently of the others. 

Dwelling, multiple means a residence designed for or occupied by three or more families, 
with separate housekeeping and cooking facilities for each. 

Dwelling, row means any one of three or more attached dwellings in a continuous row, 
each such dwelling designed and erected as a unit on a separate lot, and separated from one 
another by an approved wall. 

Dwelling, single-family means a detached residence designed for or occupied by one family 
only. 

Dwelling, single-family bi-attached means a dwelling designed for or occupied by one 
family only which is erected on a separate lot and is joined to another such residence on 
one side only by a wall located on the lot line and which has yards on the remaining sides. 

Dwelling, two-family means a residence designed for or occupied by two families only, 
with separate housekeeping and cooking facilities for each. 

Dwelling unit means a room or group of rooms which is arranged, designed or used as 
living quarters for the occupancy of one family, containing bathroom or kitchen facilities. 

-39-

Item F.1. 



4 
 

Factory-built home park means a parcel or contiguous parcels of land divided into two or 
more factory-built housing lots for rent or sale. 

Factory-built housing means any structure, designed for residential use, which is wholly or 
in substantial part made, fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for 
installation or assembly and installation on a building site. Factory-built housing includes 
mobile homes, manufactured homes and modular homes and also includes park trailers and 
other similar vehicles placed on a site for greater than 180 consecutive days. 

Factory-built structure means any structure which is, wholly or in substantial part, made, 
fabricated, formed or assembled in manufacturing facilities for installation, or assembly 
and installation, on a building site. 

Fair market value means the dollar amount a person would be willing but not obligated to 
accept, and a buyer would be willing but not compelled to pay, for an item of sale. It is an 
estimate of what is a fair, economic, just and equitable value under normal local market 
conditions. In appropriate circumstances this may be the assessed value of the property. 

Family means one or more persons occupying a single dwelling unit, provided that, unless 
all members are related by blood, marriage or adoption, no such family shall contain over 
four persons. 

Family day care home means an occupied residence in which a person provides 
supplemental parental care or educational work, other than lodging overnight, to more than 
six but not more than 12 children. 

Floor area ratio means the gross floor area of all buildings on a lot, divided by the lot area 
on which the buildings are located. 

Garage, private means an enclosed structure intended for the parking of the private motor 
vehicle of the families resident upon the premises. 

Gasoline filling station means any building or premises used for: 

(1)  The retail sale of liquefied petroleum products for the propulsion of motor vehicles, 
including sale of such products as kerosene, fuel oil, package naphtha, lubricants, 
tires, batteries, antifreeze, motor vehicle accessories and other items customarily 
associated with the sale of such products; 

(2)  The rendering of services and making of adjustments and replacements to motor 
vehicles, and the washing, waxing and polishing of motor vehicles, as incidental to 
other services rendered; and 

(3)  The making of repairs to motor vehicles, except those of a major type. Repairs of a 
major type are defined to be spray painting, body, fender, clutch, transmission, 
differential, axle, spring and frame repairs, major overhauling of engines requiring 
the removal of the engine cylinder head or crankcase pan, repairs to radiators 
requiring the removal thereof, or complete recapping or retreading of tires. 

 
Group home means a community-based residential home which is licensed as a residential 
care facility or an intermediate care facility for the mentally retarded under I.C.A. ch. 135C 
or as a child foster care facility under I.C.A. ch. 237 to provide room and board, personal 
care, habilitation services and supervision in a family environment exclusively for 

-40-

Item F.1. 



5 
 

handicapped persons, as defined in section 3602(f) of the Fair Housing Amendments Act, 
and any necessary support personnel. However, group home does not mean an individual 
foster care family home licensed under I.C.A. ch. 237. 

Guest room means a room that is intended, arranged or designed to be occupied by no more 
than three guests, but in which no mechanical provision is made for cooking, heating or 
cooling of food or beverages. 

Historic structure means a structure that is: 

(a) Listed individually in the National Register of Historic Places (a listing maintained 
by the Department of Interior) or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of 
Interior as meeting the requirements for individual listing on the National Register. 

(b) Certified or preliminarily determined by the Secretary of Interior as contributing to 
the historical significance of a registered historic district or a district preliminarily 
determined by the Secretary to qualify as a registered historic district; 

(c) Individually listed on a state inventory of historic places in states with historic 
places in states with historic preservation programs which has been approved by the 
Secretary of Interior; or 

(d) Individually listed on a local inventory of historic places in communities with 
historic preservation programs that have been certified either: 
1. By an approved state program as determined by the Secretary of Interior or 
2. Directly by the Secretary of Interior in states without approved programs. 

 
Home occupation means a secondary use carried on entirely within the residence where 
there is no evidence of such occupation being conducted on the premises by virtue of 
outside storage, displays, noise, odors, electrical disturbances or traffic generation, with no 
more than one nonresident assistant and where not more than one-half of the floor area of 
any one floor is devoted to such use. Only one nameplate shall be allowed. 

Hotel means a building in which lodging is provided and offered to the public for 
compensation, and which is open to transient guests, in contradistinction to a 
boardinghouse or roominghouse. 

Junkyard means any area where waste, discarded or salvaged materials are bought, sold, 
exchanged, baled or packed, disassembled, kept, stored or handled, including house 
wrecking yards, used lumber yards and places or yards for storage of salvaged house 
wrecking and structural steel materials and equipment; but not including areas where such 
uses are conducted entirely within a completely enclosed building, and not including 
automobile, tractor or machinery wrecking and used parts yards and the processing of used, 
discarded or salvaged materials as part of manufacturing operations, and not including 
contractors' storage yards. 

Kennel means any premises on which four or more dogs or four or more cats, six months 
old or older, are kept. The term shall not include a veterinary hospital. 

Landscape area means that area of private property maintained as open or "green" space, 
not subject to vehicular traffic, which consists of living landscape material. 

-41-

Item F.1. 



6 
 

Lot means a parcel of land of at least sufficient size to meet minimum zoning requirements 
for use, coverage and area to provide such yards and other open space as are required in 
this chapter. No portion of an established floodway area lying within a lot or any access 
drive through a property shall be used in computing the number of dwelling units to be 
constructed. Such lot shall have frontage on a public street or private street and may consist 
of: 

(1) A single lot of record; 
(2) A portion of a lot of record; 
(3) A combination of complete lots of record, of complete lots of record and portions of 

lots of record, or of portions of lots of record; and 
(4) A parcel of land described by metes and bounds; 

provided that in no case of division or combination shall any residual lot or parcel be 
created which does not meet the requirements of this chapter. 

Lot, corner means a lot abutting upon two or more streets at their intersection. 

Lot depth means the mean horizontal distance between the front and rear lot lines. 

Lot, double frontage means a lot having a frontage on two nonintersecting streets, as 
distinguished from a corner lot. 

Lot, interior means a lot other than a corner lot. 

Lot lines means the lines bounding a lot. 

Lot of record means a lot which is a part of a subdivision recorded in the office of the 
county recorder, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, the description of which 
has been so recorded. 

Lot, reversed frontage means a corner lot, the side street line of which is substantially a 
continuation of the front line of the first platted lot to its rear. 
 

 

 

 

 

Lot width means the width of a lot measured at the building line and at right angles to its 
depth. 

Main body means that portion of a dwelling encompassed by the exterior walls as originally 
assembled or built. When a dwelling is irregularly shaped, the main body shall be construed 
as that portion of the structure occupying the majority of geometric bulk. 

Manufactured home means a factory-built single-family structure, which is manufactured 
or constructed under the authority of 42 USC section 5403, Federal Manufactured Home 

 

-42-

Item F.1. 



7 
 

Construction and Safety Standards, and is to be used as a place for human habitation, but 
which is not constructed with a permanent hitch or other device allowing it to be moved 
other than for the purpose of moving to a permanent site, and which does not have 
permanently attached to its body or frame any wheels or axles. A mobile home is not a 
manufactured home unless it has been converted to real property and is taxed as a site-built 
dwelling. Manufactured homes shall be considered the same as any site-built single-family 
detached dwelling. 

Mini-storage warehouses means a building or group of buildings in a controlled access and 
fenced compound that contains varying sizes of individual compartmentalized stalls or 
lockers for the storage of customers' goods or wares. 

Mobile home means any vehicle without motive power used or so manufactured or 
constructed as to permit its being used as a conveyance upon the public streets and 
highways, and so designed, constructed or reconstructed as will permit the vehicle to be 
used as a place for human habitation by one or more persons; but shall also include any 
such vehicle with motive power not registered as a motor vehicle in the state. A mobile 
home is factory-built housing built on a chassis. A mobile home shall not be construed to 
be a travel trailer or other form of recreational vehicle. A mobile home shall be construed 
to remain a mobile home, subject to all regulations applying thereto, whether or not wheels, 
axles, hitch or other appurtenances of mobility are removed and regardless of the nature of 
the foundation provided. However, certain mobile homes may be classified as 
manufactured homes. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed as permitting a mobile 
home in other than an approved mobile home park, unless such mobile home is classified as 
a manufactured home. 

Mobile home accessory building or structure means any awning, cabana, ramada, storage 
structure or carport, fence, windbreak or porch established for the use of the occupants of 
the mobile home on a mobile home space. 

Mobile home space means a designated portion of the mobile home park designed for the 
accommodation of one mobile home and for its accessory buildings or structures for the 
exclusive use of the occupant. 

Modular home means factory-built housing certified as meeting the Iowa State Building 
Code as applicable to modular housing. Once certified by the state, modular homes shall be 
subject to the same standards as site-built homes. 

Nursing or convalescent home means a building or structure having accommodations and 
where care is provided for invalid, infirm, aged, convalescent or physically disabled or 
injured persons, not including insane and other mental cases, inebriates or contagious cases. 

Parking area means that portion of a parcel of land that is improved and designated or 
commonly used for the parking of one or more motor vehicles. 

Parking lot means an area improved and designated or commonly used for the parking of 
three or more motor vehicles. 

Parking space, also Parking stall means an area measuring at least nine feet wide and 19 
feet long for all commercial, institutional, or manufacturing uses or eight feet wide and 18 
feet long for residential uses only, connected to a public street or alley by a driveway not 

-43-

Item F.1. 



8 
 

less than ten feet wide, and so arranged as to permit ingress and egress of motor vehicles 
without moving any other vehicle parked adjacent to the parking space. 

Permanent storage means the volume of water which is stored upstream from a dam or in 
an impoundment up to the level of the principal outlet works of the structure, usually 
expressed in acre-feet. 

Porch, unenclosed means a roofed projection which has no more than 50 percent of each 
outside wall area enclosed by a building or siding material other than meshed screens. 

Principal use means the main use of land or structures, as distinguished from an accessory 
use. 

Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated and maintained sanitary sewer 
system. 

Public water supply means a municipally owned, operated and maintained water supply. 

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle built on a single chassis; 400 square feet or less when 
measured at the largest horizontal projection; designed to be self-propelled or permanently 
towable by a light duty truck; and designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling 
but as temporary living quarters for recreational camping, travel, or seasonal use. 

Roominghouse means an owner-occupied or manager-occupied single dwelling unit 
wherein individual sleeping rooms are provided to not less than three unrelated resident 
tenants. Not more than one kitchen facility shall be established within said structure 
wherein meals may be prepared by resident tenants. Said rooming or boarding facility shall 
be distinctive from transient lodging facilities such as hotels, beds and breakfasts, other 
overnight lodging facilities or public eateries. Residents within said roominghouse facility 
shall be accommodated with weekly, monthly, or yearly tenant agreements or leases. 

Satellite receiving dish means a device whose purpose is to receive communication or other 
signals from orbiting satellites and other extraterrestrial sources, most often comprised of 
an antenna/dish, a low-noise amplifier, and a coaxial cable whose purpose is to carry the 
signals to a receiver. 

Site coverage ratio means that proportion of the lot on which buildings and outdoor storage 
of materials and products may be placed. 

Special Exception Permit means an authorization by the City Board of Adjustment to allow 
building improvements or other development when such project conforms with specified 
rules, regulations and/or performance standards required for said improvements or 
development in special areas of the City as identified by the Zoning Ordinance. 

Story means that portion of a building included between the surface of any floor and the 
surface of the floor next above it, or, if there is no floor above it, then the space between 
the floor and the ceiling or roof next above it. 

Story, half means a space under a sloping roof which has the line of intersection of roof 
decking and wall face not more than four feet above the top floor level. 

-44-

Item F.1. 



9 
 

Street line means the right-of-way line of a street. 

Street, private means any private way 20 feet or more in width which is approved by the 
city council after recommendation by the city planning and zoning commission. 

Street, public means any thoroughfare or public way not less than 30 feet in width which 
has been dedicated to the public or deeded to the city for street purposes, and also any such 
public way as may be created after enactment of this chapter, provided it is 40 feet or more 
in width. 

Structural alterations means any replacement or changes in the type of construction or in 
the supporting members of a building, such as bearing walls or partitions, columns, beams 
or girders, beyond ordinary repairs and maintenance. 

Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground, 
including but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built housing, 
storage tanks and other similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding fences, 
judged to be permanently affixed to the site and measuring at least 30 inches in height, as 
measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure. 

Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or 
in an impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-
feet. 

Travel trailer means a towed recreational vehicle ranging from ten to 35 feet in length and 
a maximum of eight feet in width. 

Wind energy conversion system means a device or assemblage of devices which directly or 
indirectly converts wind energy to usable thermal, mechanical or electrical energy. 

Variance means a grant of relief by a community from the terms of the zoning ordinance. 

Violation means the failure of a structure, property, property use or other development to be 
fully compliant with City regulations. 

Yard means an open space on the same lot with a building or structure unoccupied and 
unobstructed by any portion of a structure from 30 inches above the general ground level of 
the graded lot upward. In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the depth of a 
front yard or the depth of a rear yard, the least distance between the lot line and the main 
building shall be used. In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the width of a 
side yard, the least distance between the lot line and the nearest permitted building shall be 
used. 

Yard, front means a yard extending across the full width of the lot and measured between 
the front lot line and the building. 

Yard, rear means a yard extending across the full width of the lot and measured between 
the rear lot line and the building or any projections other than steps, unenclosed balconies 
or unenclosed porches. On both corner lots and interior lots, the rear yard is the opposite 
end of the lot from the front yard. 

-45-

Item F.1. 



10 
 

Yard, required means that portion of the front yard, side 
yard and rear yard as established by the setback 
requirements of the zoning district or of this chapter. It 
must be maintained in open, unobstructed space as 
measured from the property line to the required setback 
line except for allowable yard encroachments as 
outlined in section 29-83. If the building structure is 
located at the required setback line, then the setback 
distance shall be measured from the property line to the 
foundation of the structure. Refer to Figure 1. 

Yard, side means a yard extending from the front yard to 
the rear yard and measured between the side lot lines 
and the nearest building. 

(2) General Floodplain Definitions. 
 

Appurtenant Structure is a structure which is on the same 
parcel of the property as the principal structure to be 
insured and the use of which is incidental to the use of the principal structure. 
 
Base Flood means the flood having a one percent (1%) chance of being equaled or 
exceeded in any given year (See 100-year (1%) flood). This is the regulatory standard 
also referred to as the "100-year flood". The base flood is the national standard used by 
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and all Federal Agencies for the purpose 
of requiring the purchase of flood insurance and regulating new development. Base 
Flood Elevations (BFEs) are typically shown on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps 
(FIRMs). 
 
Base Flood Elevation is the elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a base flood event. 
 
Basement means any enclosed area of a building which has its floor or lowest level 
below ground level (subgrade) on all sides. Any basement situated with less than one-
half of its height below grade shall be counted as a story for the purpose of height 
regulations. A basement having more than one-half of its height below grade is not 
included in computing the number of stories for the purpose of height measurement. 
Also see "Lowest floor." 
 
Channel means a natural or artificial watercourse having definite banks and beds with 
visible evidence of flow or occurrence of water. 
 
Development means any manmade change to improved or unimproved real estate, 
including but not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, 
grading, paving, excavation or drilling operations. 
 
Elevating means raising a structure or property by fill or other means to or above the 
minimum flood protection level. 
 

 
Figure 1 

-46-

Item F.1. 



11 
 

Encroachment limits means a set of lines which delineate the boundaries of the 
floodway established in the floodplains as the designated width of channel and 
overbank areas through which the regulatory flood must pass. 
 
Existing Construction is any structure for which the "start of construction" commenced 
before the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations adopted by the 
community. May also be referred to as "existing structure". 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, Existing is a factory-built home park or 
subdivision for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the 
factory-built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, 
the construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is 
completed before the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community. 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, Expansion of Existing is the preparation of 
additional sites by the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-
built homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads). 
 
Factory-Built Home Park or Subdivision, New is a factory-built home park or subdivision 
for which the construction of facilities for servicing the lots on which the factory-built 
homes are to be affixed (including at a minimum, the installation of utilities, the 
construction of streets, and either final site grading or the pouring of concrete pads) is 
completed on or after the effective date of the first floodplain management regulations 
adopted by the community. 
 
Flood means a temporary rise in the channel flow or stage, resulting from the overflow 
of streams or rivers or from the unusual and rapid runoff of surface waters from any 
source, that results in water overflowing and inundating normally dry lands adjacent to 
the channel. 
 
Flood elevation means the elevation flood-waters would reach at a particular site during 
the occurrence of a specific flood. For instance, the "100-year flood" or the "100-year 
(1%) flood" is that flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent (1%) chance of 
being equaled or exceeded in any given year. The "500-year flood" or the "500-year 
(0.2%) flood" is that flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths of one percent 
(0.2%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. 
 
Flood insurance rate map (FIRM) means the official map prepared as part of, but 
published separately from, the flood insurance study, which delineates both the flood 
hazard areas and the risk premium zones applicable to the community. 
 
Flood insurance study means an examination, evaluation and determination of flood 
hazards and, if appropriate, corresponding water surface elevations. 
 
Floodplain means any land susceptible to being inundated by water as a result of a 
flood. 
 

-47-

Item F.1. 



12 
 

Floodplain buildable area means that portion of the lot remaining after the minimum 
yard area requirements (i.e., setbacks) of this chapter have been met, and shall not 
include that portion of the property within the 500-year floodplain. 
 
Floodplain Management is an overall program of corrective and preventive measures for 
reducing flood damages and promoting the wise use of floodplain, including but not 
limited to emergency preparedness plans, flood control works, floodproofing and 
floodplain management regulations. 
 
Flood profile means a graph or a longitudinal profile showing the relationship of the 
water surface elevation of a flood event to a location along a stream or river. 
 
Floodproofing means a combination of structural provisions, changes or adjustments 
incorporated in the design or construction and alteration of individual buildings, 
structures or properties, including utilities, water treatment and sanitary facilities, which 
will reduce or eliminate flood damages. 
 
Floodway means the channel of a river or stream and those portions of the floodplain 
adjoining the channel which are reasonably required to carry and discharge floodwaters 
or flood flows associated with the regulatory flood, so that confinement of flood flows 
to the floodway area will not result in substantially higher flood levels and flow 
velocities. 
 
Floodway fringe means the land adjacent to a body of water between the floodway and 
the outer (landward) limits of the special flood hazard area, as defined by the regulatory 
flood as delineated on the official floodplain zoning map. 
 
Habitable space for flood protection purposes means any floor or level, including a 
basement, which is suitable for human habitation. It excludes a garage, a detached 
accessory structure, or an area for housing electrical, plumbing, heating, ventilating and 
other utility systems underneath a structure elevated to comply with flood protection 
requirements. 
 
Highest Adjacent Grade is the highest natural elevation of the ground surface prior to 
construction next to the proposed walls of a structure. 
 
Lowest floor means the floor of the lowest enclosed area in a building, including a 
basement, except when all the following criteria are met: 
 
(1) The enclosed area is designed to flood to equalize hydrostatic pressure during 

floods, with walls or openings that satisfy the floodway fringe performance standard 
pertaining to new and substantially improved structures; 

(2) The enclosed area is unfinished (not carpeted, drywalled, etc.) and used solely for 
low damage potential uses such as building access, parking or storage; 

(3) Machinery and service facilities (e.g., hot water heater, furnace and electrical 
service) contained in the enclosed area are located at least one foot above the 500-
year (0.2%) flood level; and 

(4) The enclosed area is not a basement. 

-48-

Item F.1. 



13 
 

In cases where the lowest enclosed area satisfies the criteria of subsections (1), (2), (3) and 
(4) of this definition, the lowest floor is the floor of the next highest enclosed area that does 
not satisfy such criteria. 

New construction (new buildings, new mobile home parks) means those structures or 
development for which the start of construction commenced on or after February 1, 1985. 

Obstruction means any dam, wall, wharf, embankment, levee, dike, pile, abutment, 
projection, excavation, channel rectification, bridge, conduit, culvert, building, wire, fence, 
rock, gravel, refuse, fill, structure or matter in, along, across or projecting into any 
watercourse or floodplain area which may impede, retard or change the direction of the 
flow of water, either in itself or by catching or collecting debris carried by such water, or 
that is placed where the flow of water might carry material or structure downstream to the 
damage of other properties. 

Official floodplain zoning map means the maps on file with the city that indicate those 
portions of land known as the floodway, floodway fringe and general floodplain, which are 
subject to the regulations of this chapter. 

One hundred (100) year flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a one percent 
(1%) chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year or which, on average, will be 
equaled or exceeded at least once every one hundred (100) years. 

Program means the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). 

Public damages shall consist of but not necessarily be limited to the following: 

(1) Physical flood damage to: 
a. Streets. 
b. Sewers. 
c. Water mains. 
d. Other public utilities. 
e. Public buildings. 
f. Bridges. 
g. Recreational trails. 

(2) Expenditures for: 
a. Emergency flood protection. 
b. Evacuation and relief. 
c. Rehabilitation and cleanup. 

(3) Losses due to: 
a. Interruption of utilities and transportation routes. 
b. Interruption of commerce and employment. 

 
Public sewer system means a municipally owned, operated and maintained sanitary sewer 
system. 

Reach is a hydraulic engineering term used to describe longitudinal segments of a stream or 
river. A reach will generally include the segment of the flood hazard area where flood 

-49-

Item F.1. 



14 
 

heights are primarily controlled by manmade or natural obstructions or constrictions. In an 
urban area, an example of a reach would be the segment of a stream or river between two 
consecutive bridge crossings. 

Regulatory flood means a flood, the magnitude of which has a two-tenths (0.2%) of one 
percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. Regulatory flood is also 
referred to in this chapter as the "500-year flood" and the "500-year (0.2%) flood." 

Repetitive Loss includes flood-related damage sustained by a structure on two separate 
occasions during a 10-year period for which the cost of repairs at the time of each such 
flood event, on the average, equals or exceeds 25 percent of the market value of the 
structure before the damage occurred. 
 
Special Exception Permit means an authorization by the City Board of Adjustment to 
allow building improvements or other development when such project conforms with 
specified rules, regulations and/or performance standards required for said 
improvements or development in special areas of the City as identified by the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) is the land within a community subject to the base 
flood. This land is identified on the community’s Flood Insurance Rate Map as Zone A, 
A1-30, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99, X Shaded and X Unshaded. 
 
Start of Construction includes substantial improvement and new construction, means the 
date the development permit was issued, provided the actual start of construction, repair, 
reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, placement, or other improvement, was within 180 
days of the permit date. 
 
The actual start means either the first placement or permanent construction of a structure 
on a site, such as pouring of a slab or footings, the installation of pile, the construction of 
columns, or any work beyond the stage of excavation; or the placement of a factory-built 
home on a foundation. 
 
Permanent construction does not include land preparation, such as clearing, grading and 
filling; nor does it include the installation of streets and/or walkways; nor does it include 
excavation for a basement, footings, piers, or foundations or the erection of temporary 
forms; nor does it include the installation on the property of accessory buildings such as 
garages or sheds not occupied as dwelling units or not part of the main structure. 
 
For a substantial improvement, the actual start of construction means the first alteration of 
any wall, ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building, whether or not that 
alteration affects the external dimensions of the building. 
 
Structure means anything constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the 
ground, including but not limited to buildings, factories, sheds, cabins, factory-built 
housing, storage tanks and other similar uses. For zoning purposes anything, excluding 
fences, judged to be permanently affixed to the site and measuring at least 30 inches in 
height, as measured from natural grade, shall be considered a structure. 
 

-50-

Item F.1. 



15 
 

Substantial damage means damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the 
cost of restoring the structure to its before-damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 
percent of the fair market value of the structure before the damage occurred. 
 
Substantial improvement means any improvement to a structure which satisfies either of 
the following criteria: 
(1) Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition or other improvement of a structure, the 

cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the fair market value of the structure 
before the start of construction of the improvement. This term includes structures 
which have incurred repetitive loss or substantial damage, regardless of the actual 
repair work performed. The term does not, however, include either: 
a. Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state 

or local health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified 
by the local code enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to 
ensure safe living conditions; or 

b. Any alteration to an historic structure, provided that the alteration will not 
preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic structure. 

(2) Any addition which increases the original floor area of a structure by 25 percent or 
more. All additions constructed after February 1, 1985, shall be added to any 
proposed addition in determining whether the total increase in original floor space 
would exceed 25 percent. The term does not, however, include either: 
a. Any project or improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state 

or local health, sanitary or safety code specifications which have been identified 
by the local code enforcement officer and which are the minimum necessary to 
ensure safe living conditions; or 

b. Any alteration which will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a 
historic structure. 

 
Temporary storage means a volume of water which may be stored upstream from a dam or 
in an impoundment above the level of the principal outlet works, usually expressed in acre-
feet. 

Section 2. Subsection (16) of subsection (e), Performance Standards, of Section 29-156, F-F, 
Floodway Fringe Overlay District, of Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 
Regulations, of Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is  
hereby repealed in its entirety, and a new subsection (16) of subsection (e), Performance Standards, of 
Section 29-156, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 
(e)  Performance Standards 

(16)  Detached garages, storage sheds, appurtenant structure and other similar 
detached accessory structures that are incidental to a residential use shall be 
allowed in the floodway fringe district with no minimum elevation 
requirement provided that all the following criteria are satisfied. Exemption 
from the elevation requirement for such structures may result in increased 
premium rates for flood insurance coverage of the structure and its contents: 
a. The total combined floor areas of all such structures located on the lot 

does not exceed a total of 576 square feet in area. Those portions of 
structures located less than one foot above the (0.2%) 500-year flood 
level must be constructed of flood resistant materials. 

-51-

Item F.1. 



16 
 

b. The structures are not suitable for and shall not be used for human 
habitation. 

c. The structures will be designed to have low flood damage potential and 
shall be used solely for low damage potential purposes such as vehicle 
parking and limited storage.  

d. The structures will comply with minimum required permanent openings 
as specified in subsections (d)(4)(a)(1) through (4). 

e. The structures will be constructed and placed on the building site so as to 
limit resistance to the greatest practicable extent to the flow of 
floodwaters. 

f. Structures shall be firmly anchored to prevent flotation, collapse and 
lateral movement. 

g. The structure's service facilities such as electrical, heating and ventilating 
equipment shall be elevated or floodproofed to at least one foot above the 
(.2%) 500-year flood level. 

 
Section 3. Section 27-114, the definition of base flood elevation in Section 27-114 of Article III, 

Storm Water Management Program of Chapter 27 Utilities is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 
 
Base flood elevation is the elevation elevation floodwaters would reach at a particular site 
during the occurrence of a base flood event. The base flood event shall be considered to be 
the 500-year (0.2%) flood elevation. 

 
 
 
INTRODUCED: __________________August 6, 2018_____________________ 
 
PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: ____August 6, 2018_____________________ 
 
PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: ___ August 20, 2018____________________ 
 
PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATON: ____________________________ 
 
ADOPTED: ______________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 

                                                                          James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-52-

Item F.1. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Preparer Information: David Sturch, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319) 273-8600 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2930 
 

AN ORDINANCE REZONING PROPERTY LOCATED GENERALLY ON LOTS 7 & 8 
OF THE MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF A ZONING AGREEMENT ASSOCIATED WITH 
ORDINANCE #2080, WHICH PLACED SAID PROPERTY IN THE R-4 RESIDENTIAL 

ZONING DISTRICT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement was approved by City Resolution No. 9798 on 
December 12, 1994 on property described as follows: 
 
 Part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 20, Township 89 
North, Range 13 West of the 5th P.M. in Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as 
follows; Beginning 180 feet north of the Southeast corner of said Southwest Quarter; thence 
North 0°16’57” West 415 feet along the East line of said Southwest Quarter; thence North 
89°50’ West along a line parallel to the South line of said Southwest Quarter to the East line of 
Midway Addition, in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; thence South 0°0’20” 
West to the most Southeasterly corner of Lot 36 in said Midway Addition; thence South 
51°36’20” West to the most Southerly corner of said Midway Addition; thence South 38°23’40” 
East 357.72 feet to the South Quarter; thence North 19°30’ East a distance of 730 feet to the 
point of beginning. 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement was a part of the rezoning of property from the R-1, 
Residential Zoning District to the R-4, Residential Zoning District by Ordinance No. 2080 on 
January 9, 1995; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Iowa Code 414.5, as amended, provides that a City Council may impose 
reasonable conditions on granting an applicant’s rezoning request, over and above existing 
regulations, in order to satisfy public needs directly caused by the requested change; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Agreement contains certain additional restrictions to address 
concerns with potential traffic impacts to abutting lower density residential properties caused by 
certain higher intensity uses allowed within the R-4 Residential Zoning District; and 

 
 WHEREAS, certain conditions imposed under the original agreement have been satisfied, 

including the Lovejoy Drive cul-de-sac as part of the Midway 2nd Addition and the Greenhill Drive 
cul-de-sac as part of the Midway Business Park Addition; and 

-53-

Item F.2. 



 2 

 
WHEREAS, the Midway Business Park Addition is not connected with a public street into the 

adjoining residential neighborhoods; and 
 
WHEREAS, the traffic generated by the proposed development of Lots 7 and 8 will not 

interfere with the adjoining residential neighborhoods; and   
 
WHEREAS, Owner acknowledges that certain conditions and restrictions are reasonable to 

address remaining issues of compatibility with the surrounding lower density residential 
neighborhood; and 

 
WHEREAS, Owner has voluntarily offered to use the subject property in accordance with 

the terms and conditions of this Zoning Agreement, as amended herein, to address the public 
needs referenced above; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Midway Business Park Addition is subject to said zoning restrictions; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, First Security State Bank, is owner of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business 
Park Addition; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the First Security State Bank proposes to amend Paragraph 2 of the 
Conditions contained in the Zoning Agreement for Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business Park 
Addition by amending the use of property to professional offices, nursing homes and senior 
assisted living facilities only. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
that said Rezoning of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business Park Addition is hereby approved 
pursuant to the Zoning Agreement Amendment. 
  
INTRODUCED: ___________________August 6, 2018______________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _____August 6, 2018______________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _____August 20, 2018_____________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 
                                                                                              ____________________ 
                                                                                              James P. Brown, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-54-

Item F.2. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Mayor and Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 27, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Agreement to Amend Restriction in Deed of Dedication – Midway Business Park 
 
The Department of Community 
Development is working with the 
property owner to amend the 
zoning restrictions placed on Lots 
7 and 8 of the Midway Business 
Park subdivision. When the 
property was up-zoned in 1995 
from R-1 to R-4, the petitioner 
agreed to limit the uses in this 
district to professional office 
development through a zoning 
agreement. This restriction was 
due to concerns from the nearby 
residential property owners with a 
potential increase in traffic and residential parking coming though the existing neighborhoods. 
When the Midway Business Park subdivision was approved in 2003, the Greenhill Circle cul-de-
sac was created and essentially isolated this area from the adjacent residential properties. This 
essentially eased the concerns about through traffic and parking from this development. Since 
then, three of the nine platted lots have been developed. The lots along the north and east side 
of Greenhill Circle remain vacant. 
  
It should be noted that the R-4, Residential district permits a wide range of uses including one 
and two unit dwellings, multifamily dwellings, nursing homes and hospitals. In addition, 
commercial entities such as funeral homes, hotels/motels and professional service offices are 
permitted. Since the zoning agreement is part of the zoning of these properties, any proposal to 
vary from the agreement requires a rezoning action.  
 

-55-

Item F.3. 



It is proposed to construct senior assisted living facility on Lots 7 and 8 at the northeast corner 
of the subdivision. The single story building is similar in height to nearby homes and subject to 
similar building setbacks. Use of the property for supportive housing for elderly is consistent with 
the intended purpose of the zone. The traffic to the subject properties will not affect the 
surrounding residential properties because the only access to these lots is from Greenhill Circle 
to Greenhill Drive. The property abuts a City-owned lot to the north that is used as a stormwater 
detention basin. The property also abuts a residential neighborhood to the east in Waterloo. 
 
Based on the proposed development of Lots 7 and 8 in the Midway Business Park addition, staff 
supports this request for an amendment to the zoning agreement and restrictions in Deed of 
Dedication. The zoning agreement has been through the public hearing process and is 
scheduled for the third reading on September 4, 2018. The proposed use is allowed in the R-4 
zoning district and staff finds that this change to the Deed of Dedication compatible with the 
surrounding neighborhood.  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the Midway Business Park 
zoning restriction amendment and Deed of Dedication at their regular meeting on June 13, 
2018. Therefore, the Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council 
approve a resolution to amend the restrictions in the Deed of Dedication for the Midway 
Business Park subdivision and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the attached Deed of 
Dedication. 

-56-

Item F.3. 



Preparer Information: David Sturch, Planner Ill, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 273-8600 

AGREEMENT TO AMEND RESTRICTIONS IN DEED OF DEDICATION 

This Agreement to Amend Restrictions contained in Deed of Dedication 
(hereinafter the "Agreement") is made and entered into effective on this day of 
________ , 2018, by and between First Security State Bank; Community 
Foundation of NE Iowa (collectively referred to herein as the "Lot Owners"), and the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa (hereinafter the "City"), 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Lot Owners, as owner and subdivider, executed that certain 
Owner's Deed of Dedication of a subdivision known as MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK, 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA (hereinafter the 
"Subdivision"), dated May 21, 2003, and filed on the 14th day of November, 2003, in 
Doc. #2003-16514, in the Office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa 
(hereinafter the "Deed of Dedication"); and 

WHEREAS, the Deed of Dedication contains certain restrictions (the 
"Restrictions") on the lots in the Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, First Security State Bank, is owner of Lots 1, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 in 
the Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, Community Foundation of NE Iowa is owner of Lots 2 and 3 in the 
Subdivision; and 

WHEREAS, the First Security State Bank proposes to amend Paragraph 10 of 
the Restrictions contained in the Deed of Dedication of the Subdivision, by deleting the 
use of property restricted to only professional offices only; and 

WHEREAS, all of the Lot Owners are in agreement with the proposed 
amendment to the Restrictions, the parties have reached agreement thereon, and now 
desire to reduce their agreement to writing. 

-57-

Item F.3. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1. The second sentence in Paragraph 10 of the Restrictions contained in the 
Deed of Dedication of the Subdivision is hereby deleted, and the following new 
Paragraph 10 is substituted in its place: 

"That the development of the property shall be in accordance with the 
current Zoning District classification set forth in the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, Zoning Ordinance and associated Zoning Agreement, as 
amended". 

2. Except for the amendments to Paragraph 1 O of the Restrictions as set 
forth in paragraph 1 of this Agreement, the parties hereby ratify and confirm all 
remaining terms, conditions and provisions of the Deed of Dedication of the Subdivision, 
including all Restrictions contained in the Deed of Dedication, as herein amended. 

3. The parties acknowledge that this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, 
and shall be binding upon each of the Lot Owners and their respective heirs, personal 
representatives, successors and assigns, and shall run with the land which comprises all 
of the lots and tracts in the Subdivision. 

4. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by all of the Lot 
Owners and upon approval of this Agreement by the City Council of the City. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lot Owners and the City have executed this 
Agreement, to be effective as of the date stated at the beginning of this Agreement, 
which shall be the date the last party to this Agreement executes this Agreement. 

FIRST SECURITY STATE BANK 

,..,Y- '· ,1;.. CHERYL M. BIGLER 
� � Commission No 144639 

"' My Commission Expires 

My Commission Expires: 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This record was acknowledged before me on the 1 , 2018, 
by Dennis Hansen, President of First Security State Bank. 

CJuAt 

2 
-58-

Item F.3. 



COMMUNITY FOUNDATION OF NE IOWA 

r 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This r cord was acknowledged before me on the 2,vll. day of ,::T1,c,� , 2018, 
by . �"" ; .fri'?�..J-.C..Go of the Community Foundati of NE Iowa. 

I I 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

By����������� 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss. 

This record was acknowledged before me on the day of , 2018, 
by James P. Brown, as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, as City Clerk, of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 

3 
-59-

Item F.3. 



 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

August 20, 2018 
 

The Committee of the Whole met in the Council Chambers at 5:00 p.m. on August 20, 
2018, with the following Committee persons in attendance:  Mayor Jim Brown, Tom 
Blanford, Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Rob Green, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and David 
Wieland. Staff members attended from all City Departments. Tom Nelson with the 
Waterloo Courier and other members of the community attended.  

Mayor Brown called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the agenda 
parking along Bergstrom Boulevard.  David Sturch, Planner III, stated staff received a 
request to study the on-street parking along Bergstrom Boulevard from S. Main Street to 
South Lawn Road.  He said parking is currently allowed on both sides of the street.  He 
stated staff reviewed the existing conditions of this section of Bergstrom Boulevard, 
stating the roadway is 30 feet wide and allows parking on both sides of the street.  He 
stated that parking on both sides does create a natural calming effect.  Mr. Sturch 
stated that city ordinance does allow parking restrictions within 60 feet of an intersection 
to increase the visibility for both drivers and pedestrians.  He stated upon this review 
staff recommends a parking restriction within 60 feet from all intersections along 
Bergstrom Boulevard between S. Main Street and South Lawn Road.  Mayor Brown 
opened it to discussion.  Ken Patterson, 223 Bergstrom Boulevard, stated there is no 
parking problem. There are higher car volumes with the Hwy 58 construction and he 
feels the 2-sided parking helps control the speed.  Mike Buhrow, 215 Bergstrom 
Boulevard stated if parking restrictions are implemented it will create a race track, but is 
in favor of a 4-way stop at Bergstrom and Convair.  Jon Resler, City Engineer, stated a 
4-way stop is not used as traffic calming; people may not come to a complete stop and 
roll through the intersection.  John Goulden, 210 Bergstrom, agreed with no change in 
the parking and a 4-way stop sign at Bergstrom and Convair may be needed.  A brief 
discussion was held by council.  No action was taken. 

Mayor Brown introduced the second item on the agenda Hearst Center and Cultural 
Programs Presentation.  Heather Skeens, Cultural Programs Supervisor, stated the 
programs provided to the public have enabled creative talents in students.  She stated 
the attendance numbers are up 12.3%.  She explained they have 26 community 
volunteers.  Ms. Skeens stated they continue to work on programs and initiatives to 
increase participation and are working with UNI and Cedar Falls Schools on senior 
outreach programs. She reviewed updates made to the facility.  A brief discussion was 
held.   

The Mayor introduced the third item the Pavement Management Program.  Jon Resler, 
City Engineer, stated the program will reconstruct or restore sections of roadways in the 
city with Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) funds.  City staff examines and evaluates the 
pavement throughout the city each year and based on this review of surface wear, 
cracking, joint separation and settlement the roadway may be placed in the 5-year 
program plan.  He reviewed the current map of planned reconstruction or restoration for 
2019 Pavement Management Plan.  He explained the process will change this coming 
year and he will be back in December to review the 2020 Pavement Management Plan 

-61-

Item G.1.a. 



and ask for approval then.  David Wieland motioned to approve the 2019 Pavement 
Management plan as presented.   Rob Green seconded the motion.  A brief discussion 
was held. The motion carried unanimously.  

Mayor Brown introduced the fourth item Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Ordinance 
Update.  Karen Howard, Planning and Community Services Manager, stated based on 
the June and July Council work sessions, the recommended direction for updating the 
zoning ordinance for the City is to focus on one area of the City.  Due to increasing 
development pressures in the Downtown and outdating and confusing zoning language, 
staff recommends focusing on Downtown first.  There are projects planned in the CIP 
for a major zoning ordinance rework and an update to the comprehensive plan.  Staff 
recommends sending out an RFP to consultants that are experienced in visioning and 
form-based zoning.  The location of downtown lends itself to a form-based zoning 
ordinance.  She reviewed a potential timeline for this process.  She stated public 
outreach meetings would be held to formulate a vision for Downtown.  The process 
would then lead into development of a form-based zoning code to implement the vision.  
The proposed code would be reviewed by the public, Planning and Zoning Commission 
and the Council; with estimated adoption of the new code by February 2020.  Ms. 
Howard stated after this area is complete we could then move on to another area, such 
as College Hill.  She said they are going to coordinate this with the parking study, which 
should be completed January-February 2019.  She explained that this process may 
include a design charrette, which is a useful method of engaging the public in the 
visioning process and she described what a design charrette is.  Ms. Howard reviewed 
the elements that may be included in form-based code; definitions, applicability, intent, 
regulating plan, building form standards, public space/street standards, building/lot 
types, architectural standards, landscape standards, parking management and location 
standards. She stated staff requests approval from Council to move forward to draft an 
RFP for consultant services to develop a Vision Plan for Downtown and draft a form-
based code to implement that vision, with an option to extend those same services to 
develop a vision for College Hill and/or other areas of the community as directed by 
Council.  Mayor Brown opened it for discussion from the council.  Council members 
asked various questions regarding the boundaries of the study area and whether other 
cities in Iowa have adopted form-based zoning and whether it is common to approach 
updates to the zoning code on an area by area basis.  Ron Gaines, City Administrator, 
stated the Downtown and College Hill area have had the most challenging projects 
lately.  Ms. Howard stated the boundaries for the study area would be set early in the 
process. She stated that Iowa City has several areas with form-based zoning, with 
planning and adoption of the zoning in these different areas over time and is now 
considering developing city-wide form-based zoning. Cedar Rapids is another city 
considering form-based zoning.  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community 
Development, stated staff will continue to make updates to the zoning code where 
needed even while doing this larger code update Downtown.   Based on a majority of 
council, staff will move forward to seek consultant services for visioning and a form-
based zoning ordinance for the Downtown area.   

Council Committee took a brief recess from 6:28 pm to 6:32 pm.   

-62-

Item G.1.a. 



Mayor Brown introduced the fifth item on the agenda Review of Urban Chickens.  David 
Sturch, Planner III, reviewed the current code and stated in 2006 council voted to 
prohibit the keeping of chickens but allowed existing chickens to remain in the city as a 
nonconforming use. He stated another discussion was held in 2016 and council decided 
to keep the existing ordinance in place and not allow chickens in residential districts as 
a conforming use.   The residential properties where chickens existed prior to November 
1, 2006, are limited to three chickens, with no roosters and the chickens must be kept in 
a clean and sanitary enclosed structure with the structure located at least 25 feet from 
any other adjacent residential dwelling.  Mr. Sturch stated in 2016 the same standards 
were held.  He reviewed a chart of what other cities in Iowa allow and stated some have 
a notification of neighbors and a permit maybe required.  Mayor Brown opened it for 
discussion.  Mark Miller motioned to have staff draft an ordinance to allow three (3) 
chickens or ducks on a residential property, no roosters, and the chickens must be kept 
in a clean and sanitary enclosed structure, that the structure be located at least 25 feet 
from any other adjacent residential dwelling located in the backyard area, requiring a 
permit, and include a clause for the termination of chickens for health reasons deemed 
by health department (federal, state or local). Daryl Kruse seconded the motion.  Tom 
Blanford raised the concern for health reasons and who will educate the public.  Rob 
Green state other ordinances can be used for the smell or noise concerns.  Mayor 
Brown opened it for discussion from the public.  Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, 
commented that there is a benefit for raising animals. It can develop responsibility.  
David Grant, 2010 Clay Street, stated based on the informal online poll conducted, 56% 
are in support of this.  Motion passes (4-3) (Aye: Darrah, Green, Kruse, Miller; Nay: 
Blanford, deBuhr, Wieland)   

Mayor Brown introduced the final item on the agenda bills and payroll.  Daryl Kruse 
motioned to approve the bills and payroll as presented and Mark Miller seconded the 
motion. The motion carried unanimously. 

There being no further discussion Mayor Brown adjourned the meeting at 6:57 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

-63-

Item G.1.a. 



 



ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
City Hall – Duke Young Conference Room  

August 21, 2018 
 

The Administrative Committee met in the Duke Young Conference Room of City Hall at 
5:15 p.m. on August 21, 2018, with the following Committee members in attendance: 
Susan deBuhr (Chair), Mark Miller, Frank Darrah and David Wieland.  City Administrator 
Ron Gaines, Directors Rodenbeck and Olson and City Attorney Rogers were also in 
attendance, along with City management representative Attorney Mike Galloway, 
Firefighter Kurt Eichelberger and Cedar Falls Firefighters Association Local 1366 
representative Jeff Danielson. 
 
Chair deBuhr called the meeting to order and introduced the hearing to consider the 
appeal of an employee grievance denial. Chairperson deBuhr began the hearing by 
asking Firefighter Eichelberger to explain the grievance.  Firefighter Eichelberger 
requested that Firefighter Danielson speak on his behalf. Firefighter Danielson 
explained the grievance appeal is being filed due to improper notification and denial of 
overtime. Firefighter Eichelberger feels he was not treated fairly in regards to how he 
received notification of an overtime opportunity. The notification was received by text, 
but that the procedure has been to make a phone call, leave a message if no answer, 
and allow ten minutes to respond. If no response, then time expires and the officer 
moves on to the next member on the list. The procedure does not mention texting as a 
form of notification for rehire. It has been used as a courtesy when reaching out to 
multiple people for a future event, but not for timed response. 
 
Firefighter Danielson stated that there is no procedure for texting in the Standard 
Operating Procedure (SOP). Upon request by Councilmember Wieland, Danielson 
submitted the SOP to the Committee and Attorney Rogers read the relevant highlighted 
portions of the SOP regarding rehire and callback procedures. During discussion, it was 
confirmed that firefighters have been contacted for overtime opportunities in the past via 
phone calls, texts and face-to-face.  Danielson noted that texting is just a courtesy and 
deBuhr stated that the SOP doesn’t list face-to-face either.  Danielson noted that is a 
specific situation when they are planning for a rehire.  Eichelberger responded to City 
Attorney Rogers inquiry that he had received texts in the past and that he had declined 
overtime opportunities via text. 
 
Attorney Galloway stated that the intent of the SOP is to distribute overtime fairly and 
efficiently, that the City had complied with the true intent of the policy and then 
recommended that the committee deny the grievance appeal. 
 
Olson explained the procedure for rehire, stating that in this instance Captain Wright 
sent a text, after 10 mins of not getting a response, he sent a text to another firefighter 
who was not interested. He then asked someone who was working at the time and they 
were not interested. He then asked another individual who was working at the time and 
he said he would work it. Olson stated that Captain Wright informed that he uses texting 
95% of the time, and indicated that there is a wide variety among the other supervisors 

-65-

Item G.1.b. 



as to what they use. Nine were asked, and eight of the nine indicated use text 
messaging and have for years. 
 
Attorney Galloway confirmed that there hasn’t been a grievance filed before due to 
texting in at least 5 years and that the intent of the policy was fairness.  Galloway also 
explained the rehire process and rotation. 
 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Wieland, Darrah and Miller 
regarding the rehire procedures, it was moved by Miller and seconded by Darrah to 
deny the grievance appeal. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
City Attorney Rogers indicated that a formal written decision would be forthcoming 
within 7 days. 
 
It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller that the meeting be adjourned. Motion 
carried unanimously. Chair deBuhr adjourned the meeting at 5:58 p.m.   
 
Minutes by Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

-66-

Item G.1.b. 



-67-

Item G.1.c. 



-68-

Item G.1.c. 



-69-

Item G.1.c. 



-70-

Item G.1.c. 



-71-

Item G.1.c. 



-72-

Item G.1.c. 



-73-

Item G.1.c. 



-74-

Item G.1.c. 



-75-

Item G.1.c. 



-76-

Item G.1.c. 



-77-

Item G.1.c. 



-78-

Item G.1.c. 



-79-

Item G.1.c. 



-80-

Item G.1.c. 



-81-

Item G.1.c. 



-82-

Item G.1.c. 



-83-

Item G.1.c. 



-84-

Item G.1.c. 



-85-

Item G.1.c. 



-86-

Item G.1.c. 



-87-

Item G.1.c. 



-88-

Item G.1.c. 



-89-

Item G.1.c. 



-90-

Item G.1.c. 



-91-

Item G.1.c. 



-92-

Item G.1.c. 



-93-

Item G.1.c. 



-94-

Item G.1.c. 



-95-

Item G.1.c. 



-96-

Item G.1.c. 



-97-

Item G.1.c. 



-98-

Item G.1.c. 



-99-

Item G.1.c. 



-100-

Item G.1.c. 



-101-

Item G.1.c. 



-102-

Item G.1.c. 



-103-

Item G.1.c. 



-104-

Item G.1.c. 



-105-

Item G.1.c. 



-106-

Item G.1.c. 



-107-

Item G.1.c. 



-108-

Item G.1.c. 



-109-

Item G.1.c. 



-110-

Item G.1.c. 



-111-

Item G.1.c. 



-112-

Item G.1.c. 



-113-

Item G.1.c. 



-114-

Item G.1.c. 



-115-

Item G.1.c. 



-116-

Item G.1.c. 



-117-

Item G.1.c. 



-118-

Item G.1.c. 



-119-

Item G.1.c. 



-120-

Item G.1.c. 



-121-

Item G.1.c. 



-122-

Item G.1.c. 



-123-

Item G.1.c. 



-124-

Item G.1.c. 



-125-

Item G.1.c. 



-126-

Item G.1.c. 



-127-

Item G.1.c. 



-128-

Item G.1.c. 



-129-

Item G.1.c. 



-130-

Item G.1.c. 



-131-

Item G.1.c. 



-132-

Item G.1.c. 



-133-

Item G.1.c. 



-134-

Item G.1.c. 



-135-

Item G.1.c. 



-136-

Item G.1.c. 



-137-

Item G.1.c. 



-138-

Item G.1.c. 



-139-

Item G.1.c. 



-140-

Item G.1.c. 



-141-

Item G.1.d. 



 



-143-

Item G.1.d. 



-144-

Item G.1.d. 



-145-

Item G.1.d. 



-146-

Item G.1.d. 



-147-

Item G.1.d. 



-148-

Item G.1.d. 



-149-

Item G.1.d. 



-150-

Item G.1.d. 



-151-

Item G.1.d. 



-152-

Item G.1.d. 



-153-

Item G.1.d. 



-154-

Item G.1.d. 



-155-

Item G.1.d. 



-156-

Item G.1.d. 



-157-

Item G.1.d. 



-158-

Item G.1.d. 



-159-

Item G.1.d. 



-160-

Item G.1.d. 



-161-

Item G.1.d. 



-162-

Item G.1.d. 



-163-

Item G.1.d. 



-164-

Item G.1.d. 



-165-

Item G.1.d. 



-166-

Item G.1.d. 



-167-

Item G.1.d. 



-168-

Item G.1.d. 



-169-

Item G.1.d. 



-170-

Item G.1.d. 



-171-

Item G.1.d. 



-172-

Item G.1.d. 



-173-

Item G.1.d. 



-174-

Item G.1.d. 



-175-

Item G.1.d. 



-176-

Item G.1.d. 



-177-

Item G.1.d. 



-178-

Item G.1.d. 



-179-

Item G.1.d. 



-180-

Item G.1.d. 



-181-

Item G.1.d. 



-182-

Item G.1.d. 



-183-

Item G.1.d. 



-184-

Item G.1.d. 



-185-

Item G.1.d. 



-186-

Item G.1.d. 



-187-

Item G.1.d. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Seal Coat Project 
  Project No. SC-000-3163 
  Bid Opening Approval 
    
 
On Tuesday, August 28th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2018 Seal Coat Project. One (1) bid was received from Blacktop Service Co. of 
Humbolt, Iowa: 
 

 Bid Total 

Blacktop Service Co. $136,174.67 
 
 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was originally $145,122.04. Blacktop Service 
Co. Bid of $136,174.67 is approximately 6.2% below the Engineers Estimate. Attached 
is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
As a result of the bid, the Engineering Division recommends acceptance of this low bid 
from Blacktop Service Co. in the amount of $136,174.67.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
  
 

-189-

Item G.1.e. 



 



 BID TAB ENGINEERING DIVISION

 PROJECT NAME: Seal Coat - 2018 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

 PROJECT NO.: SC-000-3163 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

 BID OPENING: 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 28, 2018

 ENGINEER'S 1) Blacktop Service Co. 2)

 COST ESTIMATE  16 N. Taft / Box 632

ITEM ITEM ESTIMATED  Humbolt, Ia.

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS 50548

UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1 SURFACE PREPARATION, STREETS & PARKS 47,818.86 S.Y. 0.35 16,736.60 0.25$            11,954.72$     

2 SEAL COAT, MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS 38,763.88 S.Y. 1.95 75,589.57 1.79$            69,387.35$     

3 SEAL COAT, MUNICIPAL PROGRAMS 16,287.39 S.Y. 2.50 40,718.48 2.38$            38,763.99$     

4 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PAINTED 50.53 STA. 80.00 4,042.40 54.00$          2,728.62$       

5 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, HANDICAPPED SYMBOLS 2.00 EA. 150.00 300.00 60.00$          120.00$          

6 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, RAILROAD CROSSING

SYMBOLS EA. 250.00 500.00

7 MOBILIZATION 1.00 L.S. 3,000.00 3,000.00 10,000.00$   10,000.00$     

8 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1.00 L.S. 4,235.00 4,235.00 3,000.00$     3,000.00$       

$145,122.04 Total Bid: 136,174.67$   Total Bid:

FILENAME: G:USERS\ENG\PROJECTS\18Sealcoat\BIDTAB.XLS

 $        110.00 2.00 220.00$          

-191-

Item
 G

.1.e. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 30, 2018 

Re:  Special Event Related Requests 

Police Operations has received the following special event related requests and 
recommends approval:  

(1) Street closure, Coventry Lane (neighborhood event), September 13, 2018. 

(2) Parking variance, West 2nd Street (Electric Vehicle Drive Day), September 15, 
2018. 

(3) Street closure, College Street (College Hill Farmers Market), September 20, 2018 
& October 18, 2018. 

(4) Grant Wheeler Memorial 5K Run/Walk, October 27, 2018. 

-193-

Item G.1.f. 



 



-195-

Item G.1.f. 



-196-

Item G.1.f. 



-197-

Item G.1.f. 



-198-

Item G.1.f. 



-199-

Item G.1.f. 



 



-201-

Item G.1.f. 



-202-

Item G.1.f. 



-203-

Item G.1.f. 



 



-205-

Item G.1.f. 



-206-

Item G.1.f. 



-207-

Item G.1.g. 



 



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 30, 2018 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

(1) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 

(2) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

(3) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

(4) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

(5) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

(6) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
 
(7) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

(8) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 
expansion of outdoor service area. (September 21-23, 2018) 

 
(9) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor 

service. (September 7-8, 2018 and September 29-30, 2018) 

(10) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - 5-day permit. 

 

-209-

Item G.1.h. 



 



-211-

Item G.2.a. 



-212-

Item G.2.a. 



-213-

Item G.2.a. 



-214-

Item G.2.a. 



-215-

Item G.2.a. 



-216-

Item G.2.a. 



-217-

Item G.2.a. 



-218-

Item G.2.a. 



-219-

Item G.2.a. 



-220-

Item G.2.a. 



-221-

Item G.2.a. 



-222-

Item G.2.a. 



 DEPARTMENT OF MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS & PROGRAMS 
RECREATION DIVISION 
110 EAST 13th STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8636 
FAX 319-273-8656 
www.CEDARFALLS.COM 

 
 

 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Jim Brown and City Council  
 
FROM:    Bruce Verink, Recreation and Community Programs Division Manager 
 
DATE:    August 23, 2018   
 
RE:     Utilization of School Bus Services 
 
 
Staff is respectfully requesting the City Council approve the attached boilerplate 
contract with the Cedar Falls School District for the use of school buses and their 
drivers to transport Camp Cedar Falls participants to different area sites during the 
summer months. 
 
City Attorney, Kevin Rogers, has reviewed the attached contract along with the legal 
representative for Cedar Falls School District over the recent months, updated as 
needed, and is in the best interests of both parties. 
 
During the summer months, Camp Cedar Falls is held at numerous school sites locally.  
To give campers a wide range of experiences during each week of camp, field trips are 
taken to different sites in the community.  Examples of the field trips include but are not 
limited to, trips to the Falls Aquatic Center, the Hearst Center for the Arts, Pheasant 
Ridge Golf Course, Lost Island, Hartman Reserve, Get Air, Hicks Place, and other 
locations of interest.  Field trips are planned well in advance by Rec staff who then 
coordinate travel with the school district.  An example of a tentative travel schedule is 
attached for informational purposes. 
 
The contract with the schools will remain the same year after year until mutually 
changed by both parties but sites and travel requests will be subject to change each 
summer. 
 
Please contact me with any questions you may have regarding this request. 
 
 

-223-

Item G.2.b. 



 



-225-

Item G.2.b. 



-226-

Item G.2.b. 



-227-

Item G.2.b. 



-228-

Item G.2.b. 



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Brown, City Council Members 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 24, 2018 

Re: Iowa Governor’s Traffic Safety Bureau Grant 

The Iowa Governor’s Traffic Safety Bureau (GTSB) provides funding for local law 
enforcement agencies for traffic enforcement, equipment and training on an annual 
basis. The purpose of the grant is to provide emphasis on impaired driving and other 
traffic violations. This grant request will provide $5,500 for the city of which $5,000 will be 
for direct overtime enforcement and $500 for training. A copy of the grant is attached. 

This grant is similar to past GTSB grants we have receive and I recommend approval of 
this grant. Thank you for your consideration.  

-229-

Item G.2.c. 



 



-231-

Item G.2.c. 



-232-

Item G.2.c. 



-233-

Item G.2.c. 



-234-

Item G.2.c. 



-235-

Item G.2.c. 



-236-

Item G.2.c. 



-237-

Item G.2.c. 



-238-

Item G.2.c. 



1 

   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  220 CLAY STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 
  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Director/Chief of Police 

Date:  August 28, 2018 

Re: Consolidated Communications Agreement 

Attached you will find a revised Consolidated Public Safety Communications 28E 
Agreement. A similar agreement is currently in place and governs the operation of the 
consolidated county wide dispatch center. This new agreement has some minor 
changes in the billing process. The bills had been routed from dispatch to Emergency 
Management then to Black Hawk County for payment. The bills are routed from dispatch 
directly to County for payment.  

I recommend approval of the agreement. 

-239-

Item G.2.d. 



 



  

CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS 28E AGREEMENT 
 
 

ARTICLES  of   28E  AGREEMENT  made  and  entered   into  this     1 s t     day  of    August   ,   2018,  
by  and between    the   parties, Black Hawk County, hereafter referred to   as   "County";  the   City   of 
Waterloo,   hereafter referred to as ''Waterloo";  the  City  of  Cedar   Falls,  hereafter referred to as "Cedar   
Falls";  the  City of Evansdale, hereafter referred   to  as  "Evansdale"; the  City of Hudson, hereafter 
referred to as  "Hudson"; the  City  of  La Porte  City,  hereafter   referred   to  as "La Porte"; the City  of  
Dunkerton, hereafter referred to as "Dunkerton"; and the City of Gilbertville, hereafter referred  to as 
"Gilbertville"; or such  of them  as may  become  signatories hereto. 

 
IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOWS: 

ARTICLE 1: PURPOSE 

For   the    purpose    of    gaining     economy    of    operations   while    maintaining   improving,     and 
coordinating  the  professional  dispatching  of  public   safety   services   in  Black   Hawk  County,   the 
Consolidated  Public  Safety    Communications  Center, hereafter   referred  to   as   the   "Center"    is 
hereby  created.   The  Center   shall   be  operated   and   maintained  pursuant   to  this  Agreement   and 
shall  provide  dispatch   and  communications  services  to  all  participating   government agencies in Black 
Hawk County. 

 
ARTICLE 2: PLACE  OF OPERATION 

 
The  Center  shall be housed at County expense i n  a facility provided by Black Hawk County. However,    
utilities.   Cleaning, remodeling and   such   other   expense    attributable  to  the   Center operations 
will be prorated  among  the parties. 

 
ARTICLE 3:  LEGAL  STATUS 

 
No   separate   legal   entity   under   Iowa   law   is  created    nor   is   any   obligation    incurred   by  the 
participating  parties  other      than   those   specified    in   this   Agreement  or  as   may   be  added   by 
amendment  properly   executed   in the  manner   hereafter  provided.   This Agreement  is intended   to 
obligate  the participants pursuant  to Chapter  28E of the Code of Iowa. 

 
ARTICLE 4.  COMMENCEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

 
Center  operations shall  commence on  a date  determined  by  the  Center   Board.  Start-up  costs  and 
costs  incurred  in implementing this  Agreement  shall  be advanced   by the  County  and  reimbursed 
according to the  formula   set  out  in this  Agreement  if some  or all  of the  funding  anticipated  has 
not   yet   been   received   at   time   of  commencement.  The   entities   providing the   funds   shall   be 
reimbursed proportionately. 

 
 

ARTICLE 5: DURATION 
 

The duration  and existence  of this Agreement  shall  be for a period of one year with automatic renewal 
unless  terminated  by  the  parties  according  to  the  terms  of  the  Agreement   hereafter  provided.  The 
attached assessments shall be reviewed every three years. 

-241-

Item G.2.d. 



  

ARTICLE 6: CONSOLIDATED PUBLIC SAFETY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER BOARD 
 

SECTION  l: There  is hereby  created  a Consolidated   Public  Safety  Communications   Center  Board, 
herein referred  to as the Center  Board, which shall  be operated  pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 2: An eleven-member Public Safety Communications Center  Board (hereafter  referred to as 
the "Center Board") composed  of: the Black Hawk  County  Sheriff, the City of Waterloo Fire Chief, the 
City of Waterloo  Police Chief,  the City of Cedar  Falls Police Chief, the City of Cedar  Falls Fire Chief, 
the City of Evansdale  Police  Chief,  the City of  Hudson  Police Chief, the City of La Porte City Police 
Chief, the City of Dunkerton Police Chief,  the  City  of  Gilbertville  Police  Chief,  and  one  Fire  Chief 
representing the  other  fire departments "whose home base is within a city that  is located in Black Hawk 
County, is hereby created. 

 
SECTION 3: The Center Board shall adopt, establish and approve all policies and procedures and be 
responsible  for the operation  of the Center  subject  to the limitations  and dispute resolution  procedures 
of  this  agreement,  except  that  the  Center  Board  shall  adopt  Black  Hawk County  Personnel  Policies, 
which shall be applicable to all Center personnel. 

 
SECTION 4: The position of Chairperson of the Center Board shall be selected by the Center Board on a 
majority vote on an annual basis. The Chairperson,  through  the Center  Administrative  Supervisor,  shall 
cause  minutes  of   the  Center   Board  meetings  to  be prepared   and  distributed   to  the  Center   Board 
members   and  the  participating  cities'   Mayors   and  the  County  Board  of  Supervisors.   Each Center 
Board member shall be entitled to one vote.   All meetings shall be governed by the parliamentary 
procedures set forth in Robert's Rules of Order. 

 
SECTION  5:  The  meetings   of  the  Center   Board  shall  be  public  proceedings   subject  to  the  Iowa 
Open Meetings  Law. To  the  extent  allowed  by the  Iowa  Open  Records  Law, the  minutes and records 
of the Center  shall be public. 

 
ARTICLE   7:  CONSOLIDATED 
OVERSIGHT   BOARD 

PUBLIC  SAFETY  COMMUNICATIONS  BUDGET 

 
SECTION  1:  A  Consolidated  Public  Safety   Communications  Budget   Oversight  Board  (herein-
after  referred   to  as  the  Oversight  Board)   composed  of  the  County   Board  of  Supervisors (who 
collectively shall  have  only  one  vote)  and  the Mayors  of the participating  cities  is hereby  created. 
This  Board   shall  be  called   together   by  the  Chairperson  of  the  County   Board  of  Supervisors  in 
November   of   each   year    for   the   purpose    of   discussing  and   approving  the   budget    of   the 
Communications  Center    as   proposed    by   the   Center    Board   for   the   coming  fiscal   year.  The 
Chairperson shall cause minutes of the Oversight Board meetings to be prepared and distributed to the 
Oversight Board  members. Each  Oversight Board  member  shall  be entitled   to one  vote,  except the 
County  Board  of Supervisors, who  collectively shall  have only  one vote. All meetings  shall  be 
governed by the parliamentary procedures set forth  in Robert's Rules  of Order. 

 
SECTION 2: The  Chairperson  of  the  County   Board  of  Supervisors may  call  additional   meetings 
from  time  to time  to discuss concerns. In the event of the unavailability of the Chairperson of the 
County    Board    of   Supervisors,   any   two   Mayors   of   participating cities   may    call   a special 
meeting. 

 
SECTION 3: The meetings of the Budget Oversight Board shall be public proceedings subject to the 
Iowa   Open   Meetings Law.     To the extent   allowed   by the   Iowa Open   Records   Law, the minutes 
and the records of the Center shall be public. 

-242-

Item G.2.d. 



  

 
 

ARTICLE 8: COMMUNICATIONS CENTER MANAGEMENT 
 

SECTION   1: All the  usual   and  customary  administrative, personnel,   civil  service   regulations, 
accounting, budgetary, and  procurement policies  of Black  Hawk  County  shall  govern  the Center  in 
its operations and  activities unless  they  conflict   with  policies  and  procedures adopted  pursuant to 
this Agreement.   Established collective bargaining agreements shall also supersede any Center Board 
policies or procedures.  In the event of a conflict, except with regard to collective bargaining matters, the 
conflict resolution procedures of Article 8 shall apply. 

 
SECTION 2: The  day-to-day   operation  of  the  Center  shall  be  under  the  direction,  supervision  and 
management of the Chairperson  of the Board, who shall delegate such authority for the operation and 
management of the Center as he or she deems appropriate, with the consent of the Center Board.  The power 
of delegation includes the power to direct and control all Center personnel and operations of the Center 
pursuant to the operating procedures established by the Center Board. 

 
SECTION 3: The management  staff of the Center  shall be appointed  by the Center  Board, which will 
also  have  the  authority  to  remove  an employee  from  a  position  with  the  Center  for reasons deemed 
sufficient by the Center Board. The management staff of the Center shall be supervised by the Chairperson of 
the Center Board on behalf of the Center Board, subject to County policies as set out herein. Center 
management  shall comply  with all administrative,   personnel,  accounting,  budgetary and  procurement 
policies  of  Black  Hawk  County  unless they  conflict  with  policies  and   procedures  contained  in  this 
agreement. 

 
SECTION 4: The Chairperson of the Center Board shall appoint a Personnel Committee f r o m the 
members of the Center Board. The Board Personnel Committee shall be responsible for all hiring and 
termination of Center employees as well as the issuance of disciplinary actions to Center employees.   All 
actions of the Personnel Committee regarding hiring and termination of Center employees shall be ratified 
by the Center Board. 

 

 
 

ARTICLE 9: COUNTY EMPLOYEES 
 

All Center employees,   including the management   staff, shall be employees of Black Hawk County. Payroll 
and terms of employment shall be administered by Black Hawk County. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 10: FINANCING 
 

The costs shares of the participants, the method of payment.  and special  financing  arrangements  and 
ownership  of  property  shall   be  as  follows:   All  personnel,  equipment,  and  operating  costs  shall  be 
advanced  by and  billed  through Black  Hawk  County.  The participants  shall reimburse Black  Hawk 
County for same as set forth  in the  attached  Exhibit  A that  represents  each jurisdiction's  share  of 
personnel  costs.  The E91l board  will  pay  for  100 percent  of all  E91l   related  costs  that  are eligible  
under  Iowa  Code Chapter 
34A to be recovered from the subscriber   access charge.  Related E9l1 costs which are construed by this 
agreement to be included are, but not limited to, the installation of all necessary communications 
equipment  and on-going  system  maintenance. 

-243-

Item G.2.d. 



  

Reimbursement  to Black  Hawk  County by  the  participants shall  be  determined   as  follows:  Each 
participant’s  percentage  shall  be based  on a three-year  average of calls for service  for that agency.  
Those percentages  will then be set  for the next three  years. After that  period  of   time,  the  percentages  
will  be  reviewed  and  recommendations   will   be  made  at  that time.  The  Center's  Board  will  apply  
these  percentages   and  submit  the calculations,  along with  their proposed  budget,  to  member   
governmental   bodies   and  the  Budget  Oversight   Review   Board  by November   I     of  each   year.   
This  will  provide   sufficient   time  for   review   and   approval   by  each representative agency prior to 
the certification  of their respective  fiscal year budgets. 

 
ARTICLE  11:  BUDGET PREPARATION 

 
SECTION 1 :  The  annual  operating  budget  shall  be prepared  by  the Administrative   Supervisor  and 
submitted  to the Center Board for preliminary  approval  in October of each year. 

 
SECTION 2: Copies  of  the  projected  costs  for  each  agency   for  each  fiscal  year  will  be g1ven to 
each representative  agency as part of the budget process  as stated in Article  I. 

 
SECTION 3:  By  November of each   year,  the   Chairperson  of  the  Center   Board   will   forward 
the preliminary  budget,  along  with  the assessment factor,  to the  Budget  Oversight Board  for their 
approval,  as laid out in Article  7. 

 
SECTION 4:  By  December   of  each  year,  the  Chairperson   of  the  Black   Hawk  County   Board  of 
Supervisors  shall  forward  the  approved  Center  Budget  to  the  County F i n a n c e  D i r e c t o r  for 
submission  as part of the budget  of Black Hawk County and to the County Auditor for billing. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE  12:  INSURANCE 
 

The Center  Board  shall  seek  and   maintain  liability  or  comprehensive   insurance  coverage for  Center 
operations  and  costs  for  same  shall  be  divided  and  shared  as  provided for  herein.    Any participant 
may elect to obtain  its own coverage  for any separate  liability  it may have for Center operations. 

 
ARTICLE  13: DISPUTE  RESOLUTION 

 
In the event  of  a dispute  between  the  Center  Board,  the  County  and  the  Cities,  the  dispute  may be 
submitted  to  arbitration.  In  order  to  quality as a  dispute,  the  matter  must involve  the  center budget, 
center operation,  or  the  terms  of  this  agreement.   At least  four  participants  from   the Center  Board, 
County, or  the Cities  are  required to  request that the  matter be submitted for arbitration. 

 
The parties hereto agree that such a  dispute between  them  shall be resolved  by arbitration pursuant to 
and  as  authorized  by  Chapter   679A,  Code  of  Iowa,  2013. In  the  event  of  such  a dispute  to  be 
submitted  for arbitration,  the  District  Court  shall  be requested  to appoint  three  (3) arbitrators  to hear 
the matter. 

 
ARTICLE 14: TERMINATION 

 
 

SECTION  1:  Any party to  this  agreement  may terminate  its  participation herein  by giving at  least 
twelve (12)  month's   prior written notice to all the other parties.  Termination  of  the withdrawing  party 
shall be effective  at the beginning  of the next fiscal  year following  the twelve (12) month  notice. 

-244-

Item G.2.d. 



  

SECTION  2:  Termination  shall   not   relieve  the   County,  Cities,  or  the   E911  Board   of  
any financial obligation  incurred  before  the   effective  termination  date under   the   terms of  
this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3: Equipment  and  furniture owned  solely  by  the  County,   Cities,  or  E911  Board  
shall be distributed  according  to  the  inventory   of  the  Center   Board.  Equipment  and  furniture  
owned jointly    shall  be  distributed  in  a  manner   consistent  with  the  basis  of  the  member's 
contribution. Distribution  shall  be  based   upon  a  majority   vote  of  all  members  eligible  to  vote  
on  the  Center Board.  Where  full  agreement  is  not  reached, the  equipment  and furniture shall  
be liquidated  and the proceeds  distributed to the parties  to the Agreement prorated  upon the same 
basis that the parties contributed to the purchase of the equipment and furniture. 

 
SECTION 4:  The Center   Board   shall   not   be dissolved   when   there   remains   any   indebtedness 
incurred by the Center Board. 

 
ARTICLE 15: AMENDMENTS 

 
The terms of this Agreement shall be amended onlv upon approval of any proposed  amendment  by a 
simple majority resolution  of the participants. 

 
ARTICLE 16: SEVERABILITY 

 
If any  provision  of this  Agreement  or  the  application  thereof  to any  person  or circumstance   is 
held invalid,  such  invalidity   shall  not  affect  other  provisions of  application   of this  Agreement  
which can be given   effect  without  the  invalid  provisions  or  application  and  to  this end  the  
provisions  of this Agreement  are declared  to be severable. 

 
ARTICLE 17:  ADOPTION 

 
This  Agreement  shall  have  full  force  and  effect   upon  ratification  by  a  county  of  the  
participants. except  that  it shall  not  be effective  unless ratified  by  Black  Hawk  County, the City of 
Waterloo, and the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
 
Amendment dated this _1st____ day of ___August_, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-245-

Item G.2.d. 



  

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA     CITY OF WATERLOO, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                         Signature                     Signature 
 
_____________________  Chairperson    __________________________  Mayor
 Printed name       Printed name 
 
Attest:________________________    Attest:________________________
         Signature                     Signature  
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA     CITY OF EVANSDALE, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                        Signature                      Signature 
 
___________________________  Mayor   __________________________  Mayor 

Printed name           Printed name 
 

Attest:________________________    Attest:________________________ 
 Signature                     Signature 
  
 
CITY OF HUDSON, IOWA     CITY OF LAPORTE CITY, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                        Signature                     Signature 
 
___________________________  Mayor   __________________________  Mayor 

Printed name           Printed name 

 
Attest:________________________    Attest:________________________  

Signature                         Signature 
 
 
CITY OF DUNKERTON, IOWA     CITY OF GILBERTVILLE, IOWA 
 
BY:___________________________    BY: ____________________________ 
                        Signature                             Signature 
 
___________________________  Mayor   __________________________  Mayor 

Printed name                       Printed name 

 
Attest:________________________                                                   Attest:________________________ 
  Signature  Signature 
 
 
 

-246-

Item G.2.d. 



  

ATTACHMENT A 
 
 
 

ANNUAL ASSESSMENT 
 
 
 

CALL FOR SERVICE PERCENTAGE 
 
 
 

For FY 19, FY20, and FY21 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Waterloo 61.09% 

 
City of Cedar Falls 

 
19.83% 

 
Black Hawk County 

 
10.96% 

 
City of Evansdale 

 
4.21% 

 
City of La Porte City 

 
1.69% 

 
City of Hudson 

 
1.59% 

 
City of Dunkerton 

 
.25% 

 
City of Gilbertville 

 
.38% 

 
 
 
 
 
These percentages are for a three-year period and will 
be reviewed again in f iscal  year 2021 for the fiscal 
years 2022, 2023 and 2024. 

-247-

Item G.2.d. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: Chase Schrage, CIP Projects Supervisor 

 DATE: August 28, 2018 

SUBJECT: USGS Streamgaging Station for the Cedar River in Cedar Falls 
  Project No. MC-039-1653 
 
Attached is the Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey for the federal 
fiscal year 2019 for the continuing support, operation, and maintenance of the 
streamgage site on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls. The agreement also includes the 
continued development of real–time stream flow data at the streamgage site. This is a 
cooperative agreement whereby the U.S. Geological Survey and the City of Cedar Falls 
cost share the operation and maintenance of the streamgage site. 
 
The streamgage is known locally as the “river gauge” and provides the stage readings 
that are the basis for the public alerts given during high water events on the Cedar 
River. The stage readings enable flood forecasts to be generated for Cedar Falls by the 
River Forecast Center of the National Weather Service. The streamgage is located on 
south side of the Highway 57/1st Street Bridge over the Cedar River. 
 
Funding for the continued operation of the streamgage was budgeted for in the 
Engineering Services Budget. 
 
It is recommended that this agreement be approved and returned to me for further 
processing.  If you have any questions or comments regarding this matter, feel free to 
contact me. 
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
 
 
 

-249-

Item G.2.e. 



 



-251-

Item G.2.e. 



-252-

Item G.2.e. 



-253-

Item G.2.e. 



-254-

Item G.2.e. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Seal Coat Project 
  Project No. SC-000-3163 
  Bid Opening Approval 
    
 
On Tuesday, August 28th, 2018 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 
2018 Seal Coat Project. One (1) bid was received from Blacktop Service Co. of 
Humbolt, Iowa: 
 

 Bid Total 

Blacktop Service Co. $136,174.67 
 
 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was originally $145,122.04. Blacktop Service 
Co. Bid of $136,174.67 is approximately 6.2% below the Engineers Estimate. Attached 
is a bid tab for your reference. 
 
As a result of the bid, the Engineering Division recommends acceptance of this low bid 
from Blacktop Service Co. in the amount of $136,174.67.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
  
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 
  
 

-255-

Item G.2.f. 



 



 BID TAB ENGINEERING DIVISION

 PROJECT NAME: Seal Coat - 2018 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

 PROJECT NO.: SC-000-3163 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

 BID OPENING: 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 28, 2018

 ENGINEER'S 1) Blacktop Service Co. 2)

 COST ESTIMATE  16 N. Taft / Box 632

ITEM ITEM ESTIMATED  Humbolt, Ia.

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS 50548

UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED UNIT EXTENDED

PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1 SURFACE PREPARATION, STREETS & PARKS 47,818.86 S.Y. 0.35 16,736.60 0.25$            11,954.72$     

2 SEAL COAT, MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS 38,763.88 S.Y. 1.95 75,589.57 1.79$            69,387.35$     

3 SEAL COAT, MUNICIPAL PROGRAMS 16,287.39 S.Y. 2.50 40,718.48 2.38$            38,763.99$     

4 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, PAINTED 50.53 STA. 80.00 4,042.40 54.00$          2,728.62$       

5 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, HANDICAPPED SYMBOLS 2.00 EA. 150.00 300.00 60.00$          120.00$          

6 PAVEMENT MARKINGS, RAILROAD CROSSING

SYMBOLS EA. 250.00 500.00

7 MOBILIZATION 1.00 L.S. 3,000.00 3,000.00 10,000.00$   10,000.00$     

8 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1.00 L.S. 4,235.00 4,235.00 3,000.00$     3,000.00$       

$145,122.04 Total Bid: 136,174.67$   Total Bid:

FILENAME: G:USERS\ENG\PROJECTS\18Sealcoat\BIDTAB.XLS

 $        110.00 2.00 220.00$          

-257-

Item
 G

.2.f. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 29, 2018 
 
 SUBJECT: 2018 Seal Coat Project 
  Project No. SC-000-3163 
  Contract Documents 
 
 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract, Performance and Payment Bonds, 
Certificate of Insurance, and Form of Proposal with Blacktop Service Company for the 
construction of the 2018 Seal Coat Project. 
 
The Engineering Division recommends approving and executing the contract with 
Blacktop Service Co. for the construction of the 2018 Seal Coat Project. This project will 
resurface portions of eleven (11) street sections, one (1) driveway totaling 2.80 mi., 
covering 38,764 S.Y.; and 16,288 S.Y. at multiple single lane drives within two (2) 
cemeteries and at the North Shore Boat Club. This will include the placement and 
compaction of the surface and placement of any required pavement markings. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
 Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-259-

Item G.2.g. 



 



-261-

Item G.2.g. 



-262-

Item G.2.g. 



-263-

Item G.2.g. 



-264-

Item G.2.g. 



-265-

Item G.2.g. 



-266-

Item G.2.g. 



-267-

Item G.2.g. 



-268-

Item G.2.g. 



-269-

Item G.2.g. 



-270-

Item G.2.g. 



-271-

Item G.2.g. 



-272-

Item G.2.g. 



-273-

Item G.2.g. 



-274-

Item G.2.g. 



   DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197 

 M E M O R A N D U M
Engineering Division

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 30, 2018 
 
 RE: 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
  Project No. SW-000-3113 
  Contract Documents 
 
 
 
Attached for your approval are the Contract, Bid Tab, Contractor’s Bond, and Certificate 
of Liability Insurance from Feldman Concrete for the construction of the 2018 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends approving and executing the 
contract with Feldman Concrete for the construction of the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment 
Project for Zone 9. This project will repair deficient sidewalk adjacent to property owners 
and assess the cost of repair to the property owner. 
 
  
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz Director of Community Development 

Jon Resler, P.E., City Engineer 
 

-275-

Item G.2.h. 



 



-277-

Item G.2.h. 



-278-

Item G.2.h. 



-279-

Item G.2.h. 



-280-

Item G.2.h. 



-281-

Item G.2.h. 



-282-

Item G.2.h. 



-283-

Item G.2.h. 



 



-285-

Item G.2.h. 



-286-

Item G.2.h. 



-287-

Item G.2.h. 



-288-

Item G.2.h. 



-289-

Item G.2.h. 



-290-

Item G.2.h. 



-291-

Item G.2.h. 



-292-

Item G.2.h. 



-293-

Item G.2.h. 



-294-

Item G.2.h. 



-295-

Item G.2.h. 



-296-

Item G.2.h. 



-297-

Item G.2.h. 



-298-

Item G.2.h. 



-299-

Item G.2.h. 



-300-

Item G.2.h. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Planner II 

 DATE: August 29, 2018 

 SUBJECT: West Village Preliminary Plat 
 
 
REQUEST: Request to approve the West Village Preliminary Plat 

 
PETITIONER: Panther Farms, LLC - Owner; Clapsaddle-Garber Associates - Surveyor 

 
LOCATION: 
 

The property is located on 14.18 acres of land situated north of the Prairie 
West Subdivision, south of the proposed Greenhill Road Extension 
 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to create 3 new lots on 
14.18 acres of land, just north of the 
Prairie West residential subdivision. 
Existing Ironwood Drive will be 
extended to this subdivision from the 
Prairie West subdivision to the south, 
and will connect to Arbors Way, which 
will then connect to the new portion of 
Greenhill Road, which is slated to begin 
construction this summer. Both Streets 
will be constructed to 31-ft. width. 
Sidewalks will be established along all 
street frontages of each of the three 
lots. 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
13.18 acres of this property was rezoned from A, Agricultural District to MU, Mixed Use 
Residential District on 7/18/2016. The remaining 1 acre of property included in the plat is still 
zoned as Agricultural, and the plan is to sell it to the adjacent property owner to the south for 
extra yard area. The rezoning of this parcel to MU was requested in order to create a multi-use 
development, consisting of residential and professional office uses.     
 
 

Aerial Photo Showing Plat Area 

-301-

Item G.2.i. 



 
ZONING 
The property is zoned MU, 
Mixed Use Residential District, 
which permits both multi-family 
dwellings and professional 
offices. The developer plans to 
construct the multi-family 
dwellings on Lot 2, which is 6.36 
acres in size, and the 
professional offices on Lots 1 
and 3, which are 2.76 and 1.74 
acres in size (see master 
development plan to the right). 
Minimum required building setbacks in the MU District are 20 feet around the perimeter of the 
development site, and 20 feet from any interior roadway. These building setbacks would be 
confirmed during the site plan review process for each of the parcels.  
 
ANALYSIS 
It is proposed to create 3 new lots on the 14.18 acre property. As indicated previously, Lots 1 
and 3 would be developed with professional office uses, and Lot 2 would be developed with 
multi-family dwelling units. Lot 3 would have street frontage along Arbors Drive, while Lots 1 and 
2 would have frontage along both Arbors Drive and Ironwood Drive. Both streets will be 31 feet 
in width and will be within a 60-foot public right of way. None of the three lots would have direct 
access onto the extension of Greenhill Road to the northeast (this access restriction will be 
indicated within the Deed of Dedication as well). A portion of Lot 1, 3 and Tract “B” will have 
frontage along Greenhill Road. As part of the construction of the new roadway, a multi-use trail 
will be constructed along the south side of the road adjacent to these lots. Since the trail is being 
planned with the Greenhill Road extension project, the developer will not be required to install 
sidewalks along these portions of the lots. Since the property is zoned MU, site plan reviews of 
all three lots will be required prior to development, which would look at design, landscaping, 
parking, etc. 
 
A traffic impact study was not completed as part of this preliminary plat. However, the developer 
has agreed to provide the needed right of way at the intersection of Arbors Drive and Greenhill 
Road for a potential future roundabout at that location, if it is ever warranted.  
 
The Deed of Dedication in association with the plat submittal is straightforward. The Deed 
language outlines the requirements for the developer and restricts the development of each lot 
in accordance with the MU Mixed Use Residential standards found in the Zoning Ordinance. 
There is a provision in the Deed of Dedication for the installation of a 5-foot wide public sidewalk 
across the entire frontage of any lot at the time when the lot is developed. 
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas 
and communication services will be available to the site once the completion of the Greenhill 
Road extension project. The developer will be responsible for extending the utility services to 
the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat satisfy CFU requirements. 
 
A storm water management plan has been submitted. The storm water generated from this 
subdivision will be transferred to an area wide detention basin located adjacent to the north of 

Master Development Plan Approved During Rezoning 

-302-

Item G.2.i. 



the subdivision. This will be accomplished by collecting water runoff from each of the lots into a 
public storm sewer, and routing it to the detention basin. 
 
There is an existing storm water detention pond located just to the south of this property within 
the Prairie West 2nd Addition. Currently, the water from this detention pond flows over land 
through this property to the regional detention basin located just to the northeast of the property. 
Once this property is final platted, an underground pipe will be constructed which will convey the 
water from that detention pond in Prairie West 2nd Addition to the regional detention basin. The 
location of the pipe is shown on portions of Lots 1 and 3, so necessary easements will be 
required when the property is final platted. This results in more buildable area for Lots 1 and 3, 
as the water would be conveyed within underground pipes instead of over the ground.  
 
The City’s Subdivision Ordinance outlines the requirements pertaining to Subdivision Plats. A 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat represents a “conceptual development plan” which the City must 
review and evaluate to insure compliance with all City regulations. Issues related to zoning 
regulations, utility easement provision, street locations and alignments and other factors are all 
subject to review and approval by City staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission and the 
City Council. Following Preliminary Plat approval by the City Council, the developer is free to 
begin installing the necessary public improvements (i.e. streets, sewers, water mains, etc.) as 
indicated on the plat. 
 
A Final Subdivision Plat formalizes the Preliminary Plat and authorizes the developer to begin 
selling lots and to begin building on the newly created lots. Normally a Final Subdivision Plat 
cannot be approved until all of the required public improvements have been installed and 
completed to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. A Final Plat can be “expedited” prior to full 
completion and acceptance of public improvements provided that the developer posts a cash 
bond or escrow agreement with the City Engineering Division which serves as a financial 
guarantee that all the improvements will be installed in a timely fashion. 
 
The property is located outside of the designated 100-year floodplain.   
 
The platting documents and the preliminary plat fee of $300.00 have been submitted. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the West Village 
Preliminary Plat. 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Discussion 
5/10/2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Graham provided background information on the request. Ms. Saul inquired 
about the traffic that will be added with the new development. Mr. Wingert asked 
if there is a light proposed at that location. Mr. Seymour clarified that there is no 
light planned at the intersection at this time. However, as the area continues to 
build out, he feels it will be considered in the future. The Greenhill Road 
extension will be able to carry out some of that traffic. Mr. Holst asked about an 
Arbors Drive and Greenhill intersection potentially having a stoplight in the future. 
Mr. Seymour stated that this will all be handled as it develops over time. He 
asked if they feel there will be any connection to the north. Mr. Seymour stated 
that the reason they went with Arbors Drive is because they don’t know what will 
happen in the future. Mr. Leeper stated that the density should continue to be 
monitored.  
 

-303-

Item G.2.i. 



Vote 
5/24/2017 

Mr. Graham provided background information. The preliminary plat will have 
access onto Greenhill Road, as well as Ironwood Drive, and Arbors Drive will 
connect to the west and further south. He covered updates to the stormwater 
detention pond and the proposed trails. He displayed the Master Development 
Plan, discussing the different uses in the area. He also showed the existing and 
proposed development in the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of 
the preliminary plat. 
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to approve. Mr. Leeper seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Arntson, Giarusso, Hartley, Holst 
and Leeper), 2 abstentions (Oberle and Wingert) and 0 nays. 
 

Attachments: Location Map 
  Preliminary Plat 
  Deed of Dedication 
 

-304-

Item G.2.i. 



Dry

Run

Creek

(SW)

Aldrich
Elementary

School

Arb
ors

Dr
Brooksid

e Dr

Et
ha

nC
t

Ironwood Dr

Ste
rlin

g L
n

Four Winds Dr

Ed
en

 W
ay

Reese Rd

Donald Dr

Continental Dr

Hilton Dr

Ev
erg

ree
n L

n

Leigh Ln

Sa
ble

 Ln

Tif
fan

y L
n

Richard Rd

Gl
ori

a S
t

Ashworth Dr

Blythe Blvd

Andy Ave

HorseshoeDr

Ashworth Dr (Planned)

Reese Rd (Planned)

Greenhill Rd

University Ave

R-1

R-1

C-2R-4
C-1

RP R-3R-4
M-1

A-1

A-1

MU

R-1

Cedar Falls City Council
September 4, 2018

West Village - Preliminary Plat
W Viking
Industrial

Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ce d a
rH

eig
hts

Dr

University Ave

Waterloo Rd Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

V ikin

gRd

W 18th St

Greenhill Rd

Center St

E Dunkerton Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St
Ma

in 
St

W 1st St

W 12th St

Un
ion

 R
d

E 1st St

W 27th St

NUnion Rd

Lincoln St

E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ve

r se
eR

d

®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63
£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

-305-

Item G.2.i. 



 



-307-

Item
 G

.2.i. 



 



-309-

Item
 G

.2.i. 



 



\\server05\users\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\Panther Farms\Prairie West Village\deed of

dedication.doc Page 1

DEED OF DEDICATION
OF

WEST VILLAGE
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That West Village, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, with its principal office in
Cedar Falls, Iowa; being desirous of setting out and platting into lots and streets the land
described in the attached Certificate of Survey by Travis R. Stewart, a Professional Engineer and
Licensed Land Surveyor, dated _____ day of ________________, 2018, do by these presents
designate and set apart the aforesaid premises as a subdivision of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
the same to be known as:

WEST VILLAGE
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

all of which is with the free consent and the desire of the undersigned and the undersigned do
hereby designate and set apart for public use the street(s) as shown upon the attached plat.

EASEMENTS

The undersigned do hereby grant and convey to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its
successors and assigns, and to any private corporation, firm or person furnishing utilities for the
transmission and/or distribution of water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, communication service
or cable television, perpetual easements for the erection, laying building and maintenance of said
services over, across, on and/or under the property as shown on the attached plat.

RESTRICTIONS

Be it also known that the undersigned do hereby covenant and agree for themselves and
their successors and assigns that each and all of the residential lots in said subdivision be and the
same are hereby made subject to the following restrictions upon their use and occupancy as fully
and effectively to all intents and purposes as if the same were contained and set forth in each
deed of conveyance or mortgage that the undersigned or their successors in interest may
hereinafter make for any of said lots and that such restrictions shall run with the land and with
each individual lot thereof for the length of time and in all particulars hereinafter stated, to-wit:

1. Any building that shall be erected on any lot shall have a minimum setback from the
front of the lot line as indicated on attached Final Plat. The minimum set back from each side lot
line is 10% of the lot width measured along the front of the lot or seven (7) feet whichever is
greater. All minimum setbacks will be required to meet or exceed M-U Zoning.

-311-

Item G.2.i. 



\\server05\users\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\Panther Farms\Prairie West Village\deed of

dedication.doc Page 2

2. The owner(s) of each lot, vacant or improved, shall keep his/hers lot or lots free of
weeds and debris.

3. No obnoxious or offensive trade or activity shall be carried on upon any lot nor shall
anything be done thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the
neighborhood.

4. All approaches and driveways in said subdivision shall be paved with concrete.

5. No old or used buildings shall be moved upon any of the lots in said subdivision for
any purpose. Any auxiliary buildings or sheds must be built of the same or similar materials of
the residential structure on the lot and have the same roof pitch and design as said residential
structure.

6. No radio station or short-wave operators of any kind shall operate from any lot which
shall cause interference with audio or visual reception upon any other lot. No exterior radio
antenna shall be erected or maintained in or on the property. No satellite TV antenna or “Dish”
may be maintained, constructed or erected on any lot unless it is constructed in the rear yard and
at least twenty feet from any property line and is shielded from the public view by shrubbery and
landscaping. No dish larger than 24” will be allowed.

7. No dwelling on any lot of said subdivision shall be occupied until the exterior is
completed and finished and the interior substantially completed and finished.

8. No bus, semi-tractor, RV, fifth-wheel camper, trailer or truck of any kind except what
is commonly described as a “pick-up truck” shall be kept or parked on any lot or street in said
subdivision for a period not to exceed twenty-four hours, after which said vehicle can not return
to said subdivision for a period of five days, provided, however, that this prohibition shall not
apply to such vehicles driven in said subdivision in pursuit of and in conducting their usual
business.

9. All buildings erected on any lot in said subdivision shall be constructed in accordance
with the Building, Plumbing, and Electrical Codes of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

10. No animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be raised, bred or kept on any lot,
except that two dogs or cats maximum, or other household pets are allowed and then only if they
are not kept, bred or maintained for any commercial purposes, such animals shall be kept under
control so as not to constitute a public nuisance and must be kept in compliance with applicable
zoning laws and regulations of the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. Dog runs or
dog kennels of any kind are prohibited.

-312-

Item G.2.i. 



\\server05\users\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\Panther Farms\Prairie West Village\deed of

dedication.doc Page 3

11. Any and all fencing constructed on said lots shall have a minimum set back of one
foot from any property line. Construction of any privacy fencing must have the support posts on
the interior side of the fencing.

12. Tract “A” to be deeded to the City of Cedar Falls, for street purposes.

13. Tract “B” to be deeded to the owner of adjoining Lot 5, Prairie West 4th Addition,
City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa.

14. A five foot wide P.C.C. sidewalk four inches thick will be installed by the owner of
said lot during or immediately after the construction of the residence on any particular lot, or
within five years after the date the plat is filed in the office of the recorder of Black Hawk
County, whichever is sooner and that the sidewalk be across the full width of the lot and on
corner lots also. A sidewalk will be installed along Tract A on the north side of Arbors Drive by
developer as part of the Public Improvements. In the event that the City is required to construct
a sidewalk, a lien or liens may only be imposed against the lot or lots which require city
construction and no others in the subdivision.

15. No building or structure shall be erected, placed or altered on any lot in this
subdivision until the building plans, and plot plan, showing all buildings, patios, and pools, and
showing the location thereof, and side yard distances, rear yard distances, front yard distances,
driveways, and walkways, and type of construction have been approved in writing as to
conformity and harmony of the external design and quality workmanship and materials with
existing structures in the subdivision by a representative of West Village, LLC.

16. Factory-built housing or modular homes will not be allowed. Panelized homes may
be allowed, but must meet the requirements of West Village, LLC, as stated in the previous
restriction.

17. The Owner and/or occupant of each Lot shall jointly and severally be responsible to
keep in good order or to maintain the area between the curbline and the property line abutting
their property including keeping said area free of holes, pitfalls, stumps of trees, fences, brick,
stone, cement, stakes, posts or rods to which a metal, plastic or similar receptacle designed to
hold newspapers are affixed, private irrigation or sprinkler systems, retaining walls, landscaping
brick, block, stone, timber or other similar material, or any other similar obstructions. All
mailboxes shall be clustered or grouped for the units, and shall not be placed between the curb
line and the property line abutting the lots.

18. The contractor or owner of any lot shall verify the depth of the sanitary sewer service
line serving said lot to insure minimum drainage will be met prior to any footing or foundation
work being completed. All sump pump lines must be buried and attached to the subdrain along
the back of the P.C.C. curbed street. No sump lines will be allowed to dump directly onto the
ground surface.

-313-

Item G.2.i. 



\\server05\users\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\Panther Farms\Prairie West Village\deed of

dedication.doc Page 4

19. Any and all drainage easements will be required to follow the “Stormwater
Management Plan” and no building structures, fence structures, landscaping structures, private
gardens or any other possible obstruction can be built in and over said drainage easements. All
lot owners and/or contractors working on said lots will be responsible to maintain said easements
to be free and clear of any physical obstruction(s) thus allowing the conveyance of overland
storm water runoff as intended per “Stormwater Management Plan” on record with the City of
Cedar Falls Engineer’s Office.

20. No direct access is allowed from any Lot to Greenhill Road.

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS REQUIRED IN PLAT

1. The Street(s) shown on the attached plat, and referred to as Tract “A”, will be brought
to City grade and that the street will be thirty-one (31) feet, back of curb to back of curb, with
approved hard surface pavement in accordance with the City of Cedar Falls, Standard
Specifications unless otherwise specified as per approved construction plans.

2. Sanitary sewer, together with the necessary manholes and sewer service lines to all
lots in the plat will be provided.

3. That underground utilities, as required by the Subdivision Ordinance of the City of
Cedar Falls, Iowa, shall be installed.

4. That city water will be provided to all lots as required by the Cedar Falls Municipal
utilities.

5. That municipal fire hydrant(s) will be provided as required by the Cedar Falls Public
Safety Department.

6. That Storm sewer will be provided as specified by the City Engineer.

7. That handicap ramps will be provided as required by law.

8. That the work improvements called herein shall be in accordance with the
specifications of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and performed under the supervision of the City
Engineer. In the event that the developer, West Village, LLC, it grantees and assigns fail to
complete said work and improvements called for within one (1) year from the date of the
acceptance of said final plat by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the City may then make
improvements and assess the costs of the same to the respective lots. The undersigned, for
themselves, their successors, grantees and assigns, waive all statutory requirements of notice of
time and place of hearing and agree that the City may install said improvements and assess the
total costs thereof against the respective lots.

-314-

Item G.2.i. 



\\server05\users\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\Panther Farms\Prairie West Village\deed of

dedication.doc Page 5

9. That the City may perform said work, levy the cost thereof as assessments, and the
undersigned agree that said assessments so levied shall be a lien on the respective lots with the
same force and effect as though all legal provisions pertaining to the levy of such special
assessments have been observed, and further authorize the City Clerk to certify such assessments
to the County Auditor as assessments to be paid in installments as provided by law.

10. The Developer shall construct and install all required public improvements within the
subdivision plat, to conform with approved construction plans which meet the specifications of
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Such required public improvements shall meet the following
requirements:

(a) Shall be constructed and installed in a good and workmanlike manner;
(b) Shall be free of defects in workmanship or materials;
(c) Shall be free of any conditions that could result in structural or other failure of

said improvements;
(d) Shall be constructed and installed in accordance with the design standards and

technical standards established for such public improvements by the City and by Cedar Falls
Utilities;

(e) Shall be constructed and installed in strict compliance with the minimum
acceptable specifications for the construction of public improvements set forth in the Cedar Falls
Code of Ordinances, including without limitation, Chapter 24, Subdivisions, and as such
specifications shall be recommended for approval by the City Engineer from time to time, and
approved by the city council.

The Developer’s construction plans are now on file in the Office of the City Engineer.

SIGNED and DATED this _______ day of _______________, 2018.

West Village, LLC

___________________________
Brent Dahlstrom, Manager

-315-

Item G.2.i. 



\\server05\users\bkayser\Wpdocs\REALEST\Panther Farms\Prairie West Village\deed of

dedication.doc Page 6

STATE OF IOWA, BLACK HAWK COUNTY: ss

On this ____ day of ______________, 2018, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public
in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Brent Dahlstrom, Manager of West Village,
LLC, to me known as the identical persons named in and who executed the foregoing instrument
and acknowledged that they executed the same as their voluntary act and deed on behalf of West
Village, LLC.

______________________________________
Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa

-316-

Item G.2.i. 



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE WEST VILLAGE 
PRELIMINARY PLAT, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the attached 
West Village Preliminary Plat at their regular meeting on May 24, 2017, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended 

approval of said preliminary plat, and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby recommend approval of the West 
Village Preliminary Plat.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that the attached preliminary plat heretofore filed for the 
property to be known as 

 
WEST VILLAGE PRELIMINARY PLAT, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA. 

 
shall be accepted and approved.  
 

ADOPTED this _______ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
        
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

-317-

Item G.2.i. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: August 29, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program: 2103 
Washington Street 

 
The Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program was adopted by City 
Council on December 21, 2015.  The program offers a Forgivable Loan of up to $10,000 for 
exterior improvements to a residential rental property being purchased and converted to a 
single family owner occupied residence.  The goal is to improve and positively impact 
neighborhood character and encourage private improvements to rental properties converting to 
owner occupied. The concept of the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive 
Program was developed initially through the City established Rental Task Force. 
 
2103 Washington Street was purchased by Justin Bahr on April 17, 2018. The owner has 
submitted an application, attached, to be considered for the Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program. The property meets the requirements for the program: has 
been a rental for at least the past three years (since early 2015), is located in the R-2 zoning 
district, falls within the program’s geographical boundaries, and is in a block with less than 
75% rentals.  
 
Justin Bahr is proposing to upgrade all the windows and doors at 2103 Washington Street. 
Based on the submitted bid by Freed Construction Inc the actual cost of the improvements 
listed is $18,701.55.  
 
The Community Development Department recommends adopting a resolution approving this 
property for a forgivable loan of up to $10,000.00 with the placement of a lien on the property 
for which 20% will be forgiven each year for five years with prorated payback if sold prior to the 
end of five years. Half of the forgivable loan will be paid upon City Council approval with the 
balance paid upon completion of the improvements, inspections by the City of the 
improvements, and verification of the actual costs of the improvements. This approval is 
subject to the property passing a major system evaluation (city inspection). 
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-319-

Item G.2.j. 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This instrument was drafted by:  Iris Lehmann, Community Development Department, 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone:  319-268-5185. 

 
 

LIEN NOTICE AND SPECIAL PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 

Account No. 101-2245-44-89.79 Amount  $ 10,000.00 
 
Date:    
 
RE: Property located at: 2103 Washington Street  
and legally described as  

RAILROAD ADDITION C F E 1/2 LOT 1 BLK 30 NORMAL  
ADDITION E 1/2 LOT 1 BLK 2 
 
(hereinafter the “Rehabilitated Property”). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has advanced certain sums to the following owner or 
owners:  Justin S. Bahr (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”), under the a Rental to Owner 
Conversion Program, which Program requires that an encumbrance be placed upon the above-
described Property, upon the terms and conditions set forth below.  
 
IT IS AGREED by the Owner as follows: 
 
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Owner, jointly and severally promises to pay to the 
order of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or its successors or assigns (hereinafter the “City”), the 
sum of ten thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) (hereinafter the “Loan”), as follows: 
 

A. If the Property is sold or transferred within twelve (12) months of the date of this 
agreement, one hundred (100) percent of the Loan shall become due and 
payable to the City; 

 
B. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 13th and 

24th month from the date of this agreement, eighty (80) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City; 

 
C. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 25th and 

36th month from the date of this agreement, sixty (60) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
D. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 37th and 

48th month from the date of this agreement, forty (40) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 

-321-

Item G.2.j. 



E. If the Rehabilitated Property is sold or transferred any time between the 49th and 
60th month from the date of this agreement, twenty (20) percent of the Loan shall 
become due and payable to the City: 

 
F. After the sixtieth (60) month from the date of this instrument, the entire amount of 

the Loan is forgiven and no money will be due and payable to the City; 
 
G. Owner shall own and occupy the Property as the Owner’s principal residence at 

all times during the sixty (60) month period described herein. In the event the 
Owner fails to occupy the Rehabilitated Property as the Owner’s principal 
residence for any period of two (2) consecutive months, for any reason, or sells, 
transfers, rents, abandons, vacates or otherwise in any manner fails to occupy 
the Property, whether voluntarily or involuntarily, prior to the termination of the 
sixty (60) month period described herein, Owner shall immediately notify the City 
thereof. If during said sixty (60) month period, Owner shall violate the foregoing 
requirements, Owner shall immediately pay to the City the percentage of the 
unforgiven principal amount of the Loan, based upon the foregoing schedule, for 
the period between the date of this agreement and the date Owner fails to meet 
the foregoing requirements. 

 
H. Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph G. above, if the failure of Owner to 

comply with the requirements of paragraph G. is due to medical circumstances 
beyond the reasonable control of Owner as defined in this paragraph, the entire 
amount of the Loan shall be forgiven, and no money will be due and payable to 
the City. For purposes of this agreement, “medical circumstances beyond the 
reasonable control of the Owner” shall include, without limitation, the death of the 
Owner, and the relocation of the Owner if prescribed by a medical doctor for 
health or disability reasons, with said relocation being to another climate, to a 
nursing or other care facility, or to an apartment or other facility, if deemed by 
Owner’s medical doctor as more suitable for the health and care of the Owner. 

 
 
   
   
Justin S. Bahr   
OWNER  OWNER 
   
 
 
STATE OF IOWA  ) 
    ) ss: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________, 2018, by Justin S. 
Bahr. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

-322-

Item G.2.j. 



-323-

Item G.2.j. 



Date: August 3, 2018

Bid # 07-0115

Job Address

Qty Unit Total

1.00 3,875.09   3,875.09                     

1.00 8,734.46   8,734.46                     

   

1.00 5,785.00   5,785.00                     

1.00 307.00      307.00                        

  

Subtotal 18,701.55$                 

-                             

Total 18,701.55$                

We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with costs on your project! 

By signing customer agrees to pay 25% before work begins and the remainder within 30 days of completion.

If Customer fails to pay any amount due to Freed Construction Inc. Customer agrees to pay 1 1/2% per month

on any outstanding balance.  Customer also agrees to pay all costs of collection including reasonable attorney

Freed Construction          Customer

fees and court costs

Job Bid

[Your Company Name]
 [Your Company Slogan Here]

Customer

  Includes: Anderson 400 series double hung windows, Anderson

Building permit

Window & door installation labor

  jambs

Window & door material package(5 windows, 2 doors, 1 slider)

  Gliding patio door, and prefinished entry doors with clad 

 

   a prefinished clad entry door for back of garage

  Includes: Anderson casement windows figured for egress, and

SAME

July window & door package(basement windows and 1 door)

*Window & Door Replacement 

Description

Justin Bahr

2103 Washington St.

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

-324-

Item G.2.j. 



-325-

Item G.2.j. 



-326-

Item G.2.j. 



-327-

Item G.2.j. 



-328-

Item G.2.j. 



-329-

Item G.2.j. 



-330-

Item G.2.j. 



-331-

Item G.2.j. 



 



RENTAL T- SINGLE
F A M I L Y  O W N E R
CONVERSION INCENTIVE PROGRAM

MAKING A POSITIVE 
NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACT

220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Ph: (319) 273-8600 
Fax: (319) 268-5126

www.cedarfalls.com

For more information or to obtain an application,  
please contact the Cedar Falls Community  

Development Department.

PROGRAM ELIGIBILITY 
REQUIREMENTS

	R1 and R2 zoned properties within the 
designated area on the boundary map that 
have been rentals for at least three years. 
Major household systems must be in good  
working order. City inspection required.

	Major household systems include electrical, 
plumbing, HVAC, and general overall 
property and structure condition. City  
will not provide funding if there are health  
or safety concerns with the major systems.  
(If major systems repairs are included as  
part of the project and will be financed by 
the homeowner, the project could be eligible 
for this program.)

	Date of application will be used to prioritize 
projects unless there are less applications 
than available funding.  The following 
preferences of project funding will be 
evaluated for use:

 A.  Structures built prior to 1980

 B.  Projects with two or more  
improvements that provide a  
larger neighborhood impact

 C.  Projects in blocks with less than  
50% rentals

	Improvements must be made on private 
property and completed within six months  
of closing. Repayment may be required if 
improvements have not been completed, 
have not started, or no significant progress 
has been made. 

-333-

Item
 G

.2.j. 



DETAILED PROGRAM 
COMPONENTS 

	Forgivable Loan Program with 20% forgiven 
each year with prorated payback if sold within 
five years

	A lien will be placed on the property

	No current income limits or matching  
fund requirements

	City funds to be used only for exterior 
improvements that create positive visual  
neighborhood impacts

	Maximum City funding of $10,000  
per project

	50% of City funding provided after closing, 
with approved application and cost estimate  
for improvements

	Balance paid after project completion, with  
all project receipts and City inspection

Dotted outline shows 
the initial project area

PROGRAM PROCESS

Submit application

Staff review (including interior  
and exterior site inspection)

Council review and approval

Owner closing on rental purchase

50% payment made  
based on cost estimate

Complete approved improvement project 
(balance of payment due)

GENERAL PROGRAM 
GUIDELINES

	Available to R1 and R2 zoned rental 
properties within the project area (see map)

	City staff will be involved prior to closing 
and can provide an indication of eligibility

	Post-Closing Program to ensure conversion 
of property to single-family ownership

	Discretionary program: City has no 
obligation to fund a request

The City of Cedar Falls has established 
a new Rental to Single Family Owner 
Conversion Incentive Program with a  

goal of promoting balance within  
certain neighborhoods.

SAMPLE EXTERIOR 
IMPROVEMENTS

	Siding, paint, roof, windows,  
and gutters

	Landscaping, clearing, cleanup  
(as part of other improvements)

	Removing areas of broken paving/gravel  
and replacing with hard surface

	Removal of deteriorated stoops/porches

	Other exterior improvements adding to the 
overall home and neighborhood character

-334-

Item
 G

.2.j. 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
Administration Division wwww Planning & Community Services Division 

Phone: 319-273-8600  Fax: 319-273-8610 
 

Engineering Division wwww Inspection Services Division 
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 
Water Reclamation Division 

Phone: 319-273-8633  Fax: 319-268-5566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

  

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council 

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: August 29, 2018 

 SUBJECT: W. 1st Street Reconstruction Project - Property Acquisitions 
  Project # RC-000-3118 
  State Project # STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is working with the Iowa Department of Transportation on the 
reconstruction to W. 1st Street from Hudson Road to the Center/Franklin Street intersection. The 
project is in the final design phase, acquisitions of the necessary right of way needs are 
underway to meet the DOT and City’s funding years for construction. The utilities and other 
infrastructure work will be started early next year. The road construction will take place in 2019-
2020. This project includes a total reconstruction of the roadway from a four lane to a five lane 
facility. The project identifies the need for total acquisitions from three (3) properties and partial 
acquisitions from 68 properties. 
 
Appraisals and offers are gradually being sent to the properties affected by this corridor 
reconstruction project. The owners of the following properties have accepted our offer. 
 
Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

23 Joe and Patricia Turner 929 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Temporary and Public 
Utility Easement 

30 Crazy to Quilt Shop 707 W. 1st Street Temporary Easement 
41 NSA II, LLC (Metro Mart) 103 Franklin Street Partial Acquisition 

Temporary Easement 
42 Bendable Equities LLC Vacant Property (SE Corner of 

W. 1st and Tremont Street) 
Partial Acquisition 
Temporary Easement 

43 James Kenyon (Cedar Valley Vet 
Center) 

506 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Temporary Easement 

49 J and M Bodensteiner LLC 714 W. 1st Street Total Acquisition 
55 Carmen Nimmo and Joseph Barker 904 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 

Temporary Easement 
56 DT Rentals LLC 908 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 

Temporary Easement 
60 Bradley Schultz 930 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 

Temporary Easement 

-335-

Item G.2.k. 



64 HCC Properties LLC 1116 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Temporary Easement 

68 David Johnson 1216 W. 1st Street Partial Acquisition 
Temporary Easement 
Tenant Agreement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use federal funds for the design and right of way portion of this project. Per an 
agreement with the DOT approved on August 7, 2017, the city will be the lead in property 
acquisition and design. All eligible project costs will be split 50% City and 50% DOT which 
includes engineering, right of way, construction and construction administration. The city signed 
an agreement with Snyder and Associates on September 5, 2017 for these services. Funds for 
this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY18 and FY20 
under item number 91. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing 
documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving 
the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the W. 1st Street 
reconstruction project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Stephanie Sheetz, Director 
 Jon Resler, City Engineer 

-336-

Item G.2.k. 



76

75

74
69

73
67

72
66

65
71 70

63 62

61

59

58

57
53 52 51

50 48 47 46

45

4478
79

8081
82

252 3 4 5 5 6 7 388 26

40

39299 31
32

33

34
37

35

3610

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18 19

20 21

24

1

77

27
28

68
64 60 56

55 49 41
43

30

42

W
al

nu
t 

St

Tr
em

on
t 

St

Crescent Dr

Fr
an

kl
in

 S
t

N 
Co

lle
ge

 S
t

Co
tt

ag
e 

Gr
vElm St

W Park Dr

W 3rd St

W 2nd St

Pa
rk

Dr

W 1st St

Edgewood St

Linda Dr

Theimer St

Park Pl
S Forest Rd

Pine St

H
ud

so
n

Rd

Fr
an

ci
s 

St

Di
vi

si
on

 S
t

M
ea

do
w

 P
ar

k 
Dr

M
em

or
ia

l A
ve

Ca
th

er
in

e 
St

W 3rd St
Pe

ar
l S

t

Ida St

Ol
iv

e 
St

Oak St

Parkway Ave

El
le

n 
St

Io
w

a 
St

Hu
ds

on
 R

d

Ge
ne

vi
ev

e 
St

Cl
ay

 S
t

N 
Fr

an
ci

s 
St

N 
El

le
n 

St

S Park Rd

Linden St

Edg ewood St

Maple St

N 
Di

vi
si

on
 S

t

N 
Ge

ne
vi

ev
e 

St

ForrestR d

Hi
gh

la
nd

 D
r

Willow Bend Rd

Parkway Ave

N 
Ge

ne
vi

ev
e 

St

Higby Dr

Ba
ke

r 
Dr

N
Highland

Dr

Center St

I

22

23

-337-

Item
 G

.2.k. 



 



-339-

Item G.2.k. 



-340-

Item G.2.k. 



-341-

Item G.2.k. 



-342-

Item G.2.k. 



-343-

Item G.2.k. 



-344-

Item G.2.k. 



-345-

Item G.2.k. 



-346-

Item G.2.k. 



-347-

Item G.2.k. 



-348-

Item G.2.k. 



-349-

Item G.2.k. 



-350-

Item G.2.k. 



-351-

Item G.2.k. 



-352-

Item G.2.k. 



-353-

Item G.2.k. 



-354-

Item G.2.k. 



-355-

Item G.2.k. 



-356-

Item G.2.k. 



-357-

Item G.2.k. 



-358-

Item G.2.k. 



-359-

Item G.2.k. 



-360-

Item G.2.k. 



-361-

Item G.2.k. 



-362-

Item G.2.k. 



-363-

Item G.2.k. 



-364-

Item G.2.k. 



-365-

Item G.2.k. 



-366-

Item G.2.k. 



-367-

Item G.2.k. 



-368-

Item G.2.k. 



-369-

Item G.2.k. 



-370-

Item G.2.k. 



-371-

Item G.2.k. 



-372-

Item G.2.k. 



-373-

Item G.2.k. 



-374-

Item G.2.k. 



-375-

Item G.2.k. 



-376-

Item G.2.k. 



-377-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. PO Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(515) 964-2020 
(319)273-8600 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: W. 1st St. COUNTY TAX PARCEL N0.8914-12-177-013 
PARCEL NO. 42 
PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
PROJECT NAME: West 1st St. I IA 57 PCC Pavement Reconstruction 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of , 2018, by and between 
Bendable Equities, LLC, Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 

1. The Seller agrees to sell and furnish to the Buyer a warranty deed, permanent utility easement 
and temporary easement agreements, furnished by the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to 
purchase the following real estate, or interest in real estate, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises, described as follows: See Attached Exhibits 

FEE Acquisition 
See attached 

Temporary Easement 
See attached 

and which include the following improvements of whatever type situated on the premises: 

2. The premises include the estates, rights, titles and interests, including easements, as are 
described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the street or highway which is 
adjacent to the premises, and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages 
arising therefrom. SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES full settlement and payment from the Buyer for 
all claims per the terms of this agreement and discharges the Buyer from liability because of this 
agreement and the construction of this public improvement project. 

3. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and the Buyer may enter and 
assume full use and enjoyment of the premises in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
The Seller grants the Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
gathering survey and soil data. When Buyer has paid Seller the payment amount described in 
the following paragraph, and when Seller has executed and delivered a warranty 
deed/permanent easement agreement/ and/or temporary easement agreement(s) [strike 
inapplicable provisions], conveying title, or an interest in title, to the premises to Seller, as 
described in this agreement, Buyer shall then be entitled to immediate possession of the 
premises. 

4. Buyer agrees to pay and SELLER AGREES to grant the right of possession, convey title, or an 
I 

-378-

Item G.2.k. 



interest in title, as provided in this agreement, and to surrender physical possession of the 
premises as shown on or before the dates listed below. 

Payment Amount Agreed Performance Date 

$ _ 
$ _ 
$ _ 
$ __ 6�7_6� 3� .6� 8 -- 

$ __ 6"'-' ,..:.... 76;:;..;:5a.:.; .o:;..;::o'---_ 

on right of possession 
on conveyance of title 
on surrender of possession 
on possession and 60 days after Buyer approval 
conveyance 
TOTAL LUMP SUM 

BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet 

Land by Fee Title 200 sq. ft. 
Permanent Utility Easement sq. ft. 
Temporary Easement 2,593 sq. ft. 
Miscellaneous/Other _ 
Buildings 
Severance Damages 

$ 2,200.00 
$ 
$ 4,563.68 
$ _ 
$ 
$ 

5. Seller also agrees to execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which 
is attached hereto. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, 
shaped and seeded, if applicable, upon completion of the project by Buyer. The Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

6. The Seller warrants that there are no tenants on the premises holding under lease except: 
NONE. 

7. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller, and the 
SELLER AGREES to pay all liens and assessments against the premises, including all taxes 
and special assessments payable until surrender of possession, as required by Section 427.2 of 
the Code of Iowa, and agrees to warrant good and sufficient title. 

Names and address of lienholders are: Bendable Equities, LLC - 1816 Valley High Dr., Cedar 
Falls, IA 50613 

8. Each page and each attachment is by this reference made a part hereof and the entire 
agreement consists of 7 pages. 

9. The Buyer may include mortgagees, lien holders, encumbrances and taxing authorities as 
payees on warrants as payment on the agreement. If this agreement involves a total taking, 
SELLER WILL furnish and deliver to the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613, an abstract of title to be updated, if requested by City. The abstract continued to date, or 
a title report obtained by the City if this agreement does not involve a total taking, must show 
merchantable title to the premises vested in Seller. Buyer agrees to pay the cost of any abstract 
continuation. SELLER AGREES to obtain court approval of this agreement, if requested by the 
Buyer, if title to the premises becomes an asset of any estate, trust, conservatorship or 
guardianship. Buyer agrees to pay court approval costs and all other costs necessary to 
transfer the premises to the Buyer, but not attorney fees. Claims for such transfer costs shall be 
paid in amounts supported by paid receipts or signed bills. 

2 

-379-

Item G.2.k. 



10. If the Seller holds title to the premises in joint tenancy with full rights of survivorship and not as 
tenants in common at the time of this agreement, Buyer will pay any remaining proceeds to the 
survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 
tenancy has not been destroyed by operation of law or acts of the Seller. 

11. This written agreement and the attachments together constitute the entire agreement between 
the Buyer and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as 
specifically provided for herein. This agreement is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls 
City Council. 

12. The Seller shall have five years from the date of settlement to renegotiate construction or 
maintenance damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement, as required by 
Section 68.52 of the Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by 
the Buyer, we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and 
unpaid. 

Bendable Equities, LLC 

'!tw--=K-- � #1©tlljrr zlith 8' 
vName/Title Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of --------- 
County of _ 

Name/Title Date 

This record was acknowledged before me on _ 

______________ (Date) by _ 

Name(s) of individual(s). 

Signature of notarial officer 

3 

-380-

Item G.2.k. 



2. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

Bendable Equities, LLC 

State of Ja,11)11..-1 

County of £/a.tJ J.k»ul 
This record was acknowledged before me on (},d-tf II, Jo /B' 

______________ (Date) by _ 

Name(s) of individual(s) as .Lftw'..t.S IC i$ l?N6t1 
�� (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of 1$e-/V Mis Lt t�l Yi-cs, Lt..'- 
(name of party on behalf of whom ecord was executed). 

BUYER'S APPROVAL 

By: _ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By: _ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

4 

(date) 

(date) 

-381-

Item G.2.k. 



IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
ACQUISITION PLAT 

EXHIBIT"A" 
COUNTY ���--B_LA_C_K_H_A_W_ K _ 
PRO J E C T NO . STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 

STATE CONTROL NO. 
PARCEL N0. 4�2�--- 

SECTION 12 TOWNSHIP 89NORTH RANGE 14WEST 
ROW-FEE 220 S.F. )<_. EASE AC EXCESS-FEE AC 
ACCESS RIGHTS ACQUIRED STA STA MAIN LINE SIDE 
ACCESS RIGHTS ACQUIRED - STA STA SIDE ROAD !DE 
ACQUIRED FROM BENDABLE EQUITIES, L.L.C. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
l'/1111 111 11,l :,\•i 11: Ill 11'1 :1·/ ],'; f,f ,II I' Ci') ll 

., ttll 

WEST !ST STREET 2017 .AL_IGNMENT 
NB7'04'57'E 275.22' 

N89"22'23"E 566.16' 

Pl Sto 57+ 73.52 POE Sto 63+3'l.68 

r 

Pl Sto 54 •98.31 

NL commi Pl OCK 28 v ILLAr.L or CEDAR FALLS 
FOIJIIIJ 11?' tir.aMl 

�rn Pl �STTC ChP UIIREADAOI F 

-r 
N89°22'07"E 
29.94' ' 

NOD" 30' 35 ·w--..- 
29. 94' 

POINI rn . 
BEG I 11111 I NU ss 1r.._u,,/ \ 
AREA "B • ;fjfj l 

t- 
UJ w a: 
f- 
Vl is, 

f- "! 
z � 0 z; 
w a: 
f- 

GG"P 

I ' � 
I 

Curve I 
C.=89°52'43" 
0=190°59'09" 
T=29.94' 
L=47.06" 
R=30. DO' 
CH Bear;ng=S44°25'46"W 
CH=42,38' z 

11 
I 

POINT OF 
BEGINNINU 
AREA "A" 

ssg,40'M 5B9'P 

• FOUND RIGHT OF WAY RAIL 
• FOUND IDOT ALUM. CAP (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 

• FOUND SECTION CORNER 
Z-/.i-Zt:1/Q 

DATE: 

186�3 License nurrber- 

Pages covered by this seal: _ 

EXHIBIT "A" ONLY 

My License Renewal Dote is December 31, 2019 

I hereby certify that 1 his I and surveying docurrent 
was prepared and the re I ated survey work was performed by me or under my direct personal 
supervision and that I om a du I y I i censed Profess i ono r Land Sur-veyor- under- 1 he I aws o+ the 
State of Jawa. 

I·• 

I SW COliN[li-ur LOI r' IJLU�� 
VILLACE or C[DAR l"AHS t-: Fl;!Ut/D PlNC>trD PIP( 

DATE DRAWN JANUARY 29, 2018 SCALE 1"=40' 
-382-

Item G.2.k. 



DESCRIPTION OF ATIACHED PLAT FOR PARCEL NO. 42 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28}-2C-07 

THE FEE SIMPLE TITLE GRANTED IS TO LAND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

AREA "A" 
A PART OF LOT 8 OF, BLOCK 19, VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW INCLUDED IN AND 
FORMING A PART OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA AND DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 7 OF SAID BLOCK 19, VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS; 
THENCE NORTH 00°12'20" WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 7 AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 8, A DISTANCE OF 125.18 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89°22'23" WEST, 
6.50 FEET; THENCE NORTH 82'51'33" WEST, 14.71 FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WEST 
FIRST STREET; THENCE NORTH 89°17'02" EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 21.09 FEET TO 
SAID EAST LINE OF LOT 8; THENCE SOUTH 00"12'20" EAST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 2.02 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 28 S.F. 

AREA "B" 
A PART OF LOT 8 OF, BLOCK 19, VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS, AN OFFICIAL PLAT NOW INCLUDED IN AND 
FORMING A PART OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA AND DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 7 OF SAID BLOCK 19, VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS; 
THENCE NORTH 00°30'35" WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 7 AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF 
SAID LOT 8, A DISTANCE OF 102.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 
00'30'35" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 8, A DISTANCE OF 29.94 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 8; THENCE NORTH 89'22'07" EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 8, 29.94 
FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS IS 30.00 
FEET, WHOSE ARC LENGTH IS 47.06 FEET AND WHOSE CHORD BEARS SOUTH 44°25'46" WEST, 42.38 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 192 S.F. 

THE TOTAL FEE SIMPLE TITLE GRANTED FROM SAID LOT 8 OF, BLOCK 19, ORIGINAL CEDAR FALLS PLAT 
CONTAINS 0.01 AC. (220 S.F.) 

PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD. 

NOTE: 
THE NORTH LINE OF BLOCl<S 17 AND 19 OF VILLAGE OF CEDAR FALLS ASSUMED TO BEAR NORTH 
89°22'07" EAST. 

l":IL lscrs\jdpuolc\Dcskluplccdar li1llslwordl I I 70908_1'AR42_/\C()_Fl'I' docx 
BLACK I IA\VI...:: COUN°I Y 
PARC'FI 42 

-383-

Item G.2.k. 



West 1st Street I IA 57 

_,. _ 
-1---"'--�-L---��----:--":§ 

PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT =======a PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

C2S:2S]PROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * o--- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY --- PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

PROPOSED SIDEWALK PROPOSED SANITARY 

-PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT =RETAINING WALL 

---EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

* INCLUDES UNDERLYING TEMPORARY EASEMENTS 

������� 

I FGFNO 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 42 - BENDABLE EQUITIES, LLC 

�DOT 
I II I JII/ IU j 1U[I I.[ 

$Pl TDRVL$ 
$i'ENTBLL$ 
$SHEETNAME$ 

SCALE: 
1"= 40' 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)--2G-07 

$FILEL$ 
$DATE$ 
$USER$ 

-384-

Item G.2.k. 



-385-

Item G.2.k. 



Words and phrases herein shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, 
and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. 

Bendable Equities, LLC 

P''- lkA »bi� ( 1)1,Jr me/Title Dafo Name/Title Date 

1 . For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

State of J.au..JL 
County of &a ti: t.lt,u,J,_ 

This record was acknowledged before me on 9u+fl ,2p//P (Date) 

by .J � "-- B c.Nbi} Name(s) of individual(s) 

as W{WAA.J if" (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of T3 �vJ.�b f.e_ E" �lA. 'ii -e S , l....- L (_ 
(name of party on behalf of who record was executed). 

, ••.• , •• JUDITH A SMOCK 
: � COMMISSION N0.746136 

• MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 
MARCH 29, '2019 

2 

-386-

Item G.2.k. 



ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Grantee"), does hereby accept and approve the foregoing 
Easement. 

Dated this __ day of , 2018. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 

3 

-387-

Item G.2.k. 



EXHIBIT 

I EGEND 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT --=- PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

�PROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * ,...__ PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 
PROPOSED ROADWAY --PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

PROPOSED SIDEWALK PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE 

-PROPOSl:'.O DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT -RETAINING WALL 
--EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

* INCLUDES UNO ERL YING TEW'ORARY EASEMENTS 

- - - 

West 1st Street I IA 57 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 42 - BENDABLE EQUITIES, LLC 

�IU\IUA 
� DOT 

4 

SCALE: 
1"=40' 

DATE: 
02/0fl/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28}-2G-07 

-388-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. PO Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(515) 964-2020 
(319)273-8600 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 506 W. 1st St. COUNTY TAX PARCEL N0.8914-12-155-015 
PARCEL NO. 43 
PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
PROJECT NAME: West 1s1 St./ IA 57 PCC Pavement Reconstruction 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of , 2018, by and between James R. 
and Cynthia L. Kenyon, Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 

1. The Seller agrees to sell and furnish to the Buyer a warranty deed, permanent utility easement 
and temporary easement agreements, furnished by the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to 
purchase the following real estate, or interest in real estate, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises, described as follows: See Attached Exhibits 

FEE Acquisition 
See attached 

Temporary Easement 
See attached 

and which include the following improvements of whatever type situated on the premises: 

2. The premises include the estates, rights, titles and interests, including easements, as are 
described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the street or highway which is 
adjacent to the premises, and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages 
arising therefrom. SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES full settlement and payment from the Buyer for 
all claims per the terms of this agreement and discharges the Buyer from liability because of this 
agreement and the construction of this public improvement project. 

3. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and the Buyer may enter and 
assume full use and enjoyment of the premises in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
The Seller grants the Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
gathering survey and soil data. When Buyer has paid Seller the payment amount described in 
the following paragraph, and when Seller has executed and delivered a warranty 
deed/permanent easement agreement/ and/or temporary easement agreement(s) [strike 
inapplicable provisions], conveying title, or an interest in title, to the premises to Seller, as 
described in this agreement, Buyer shall then be entitled to immediate possession of the 
premises. 

4. Buyer agrees to pay and SELLER AGREES to grant the right of possession, convey title, or an 
interest in title, as provided in this agreement, and to surrender physical possession of the 
premises as shown on or before the dates listed below. 

-389-

Item G.2.k. 



Payment Amount Agreed Performance Date 

$ _ 
$ _ 
$ _ 
$_----'1=2= ,3-'-' 73::;..;.. .o=-=o'---_ 

$_----'1=2�,4-'-- 00"-'- . o"""'o'---_ 

on right of possession 
on conveyance of title 
on surrender of possession 
on possession and 60 days after Buyer approval 
conveyance 
TOTAL LUMP SUM (rounded) 

BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet 

Land by Fee Title 683 sq. ft. 
Permanent Utility Easement sq. ft. 
Temporary Easement 2 761 sq. ft. 
Miscellaneous/Other ------ 
Buildings 
Severance Damages 

$ 7,513.00 
$ 
$ 4,860.00 
$ _ 
$ 
$ 

5. Seller also agrees to execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which 
is attached hereto. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, 
shaped and seeded, if applicable, upon completion of the project by Buyer. The Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

6. The Seller warrants that there are no tenants on the premises holding under lease except: 
UNKNOWN. 

7. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller, and the 
SELLER AGREES to pay all liens and assessments against the premises, including all taxes 
and special assessments payable until surrender of possession, as required by Section 427.2 of 
the Code of Iowa, and agrees to warrant good and sufficient title. 

Names and address of lienholders are: �---------------� 
8. Each page and each attachment is by this reference made a part hereof and the entire 

agreement consists of Z pages. 

9. The Buyer may include mortgagees, lien holders, encumbrances and taxing authorities as 
payees on warrants as payment on the agreement. If this agreement involves a total taking, 
SELLER WILL furnish and deliver to the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613, an abstract of title to be updated, if requested by City. The abstract continued to date, or 
a title report obtained by the City if this agreement does not involve a total taking, must show 
merchantable title to the premises vested in Seller. Buyer agrees to pay the cost of any abstract 
continuation. SELLER AGREES to obtain court approval of this agreement, if requested by the 
Buyer, if title to the premises becomes an asset of any estate, trust, conservatorship or 
guardianship. Buyer agrees to pay court approval costs and all other costs necessary to 
transfer the premises to the Buyer, but not attorney fees. Claims for such transfer costs shall be 
paid in amounts supported by paid receipts or signed bills. 

10. If the Seller holds title to the premises in joint tenancy with full rights of survivorship and not as 
tenants in common at the time of this agreement, Buyer will pay any remaining proceeds to the 
survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 

2 

-390-

Item G.2.k. 



tenancy has not been destroyed by operation of law or acts of the Seller. 

11 . This written agreement and the attachments together constitute the entire agreement between 
the Buyer and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as 
specifically provided for herein. This agreement is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls 
City Council. 

12. The Seller shall have five years from the date of settlement to renegotiate construction or 
maintenance damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement, as required by 
Section 68.52 of the Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by 
the Buyer, we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and 
unpaid. 

Jaij,s R. Kenyon Date 

For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of 'I t><..,4 

County of bl,.ik M-.iv\\ 

Date 

This record was acknowledged before me on Ji..,oe. i 1""' 2018 

by Name(s) of individual(s) 

Signature of notarial officer 

Printed name of notarial officer 

My commission expires 

3 

-391-

Item G.2.k. 



BUYER'S APPROVAL 

By:�-------------� 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By:�-------------� 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

4 

(date) 

(date) 

-392-

Item G.2.k. 



u
 

W
W

 
<

( 
0
0

 
-
-
-
-
-
0
 

(0
 

N
 

N
 

w
 

z 
V) 

V) 
L!) 

_
J 

0
 

M
 

"
"
V

) 
CD 

w
 

U
-
' 

"' 
t-; 

Q
_

J
 

D
 

f-- 

I- 
+ 

...J<C
 a::<

{ 
0...0

 

(J') 
r-, 

COLL <CW
 

<
(Z

 
L!) 

CDc
r 

lJ..J 

LU 
.. ccw

z
 

s 
u

 

(") s 
0 

-
<

ea
::=, 

\.0 
w

 
+' 

D
 

"'" 
• V

J 

,q- 
(/) 

i-w
::: 

n
, 

0.. 
:::;s,-

 

""" 
w

 
ii' 

O
U

N
<C

 
a
, 

"' 
..- 

_
J ,u 

133tJ15 1NOi,.J3tll 
u:, 

LL.. 
::::J3

 

w
 

LL�
 

"'l!) 
""" 

z 
D
 

__J 0:: 

LLD
 

u
 

. 
co 

LL w
 
0
 

g;'. 
0
 
o-
 

C
) 

<'• 
D
 

<
(W

 
b

 
... : 

I 
z
 

<
( 

W
Z

I
-
 

C
)fY

) 
r- 

f-- 
I
 

""" 
0
 

t/) 
0
 

C:::D
:::Jl/J 

V
)fY

) 
f-- 

I
 

f-- f-- 

w
<C

D
<

t 
u

 
C

) 
D
D
 

II 

z
 

w
 

t/) 
Z

-1
LL-1

 
_
J
 

0::: 
er--' 

n
, 

w
 

-
 __J 

0
 

D
 
0

 w
 

o- 
(/) 

0:: -
 
-

(/) 
..- 

_
J
 z z 

U
z
 

w
 

U>
 

D
 

d,Z
CT 

W
,9

9
'Z

CT 
/o\,9

v,0
Z.0

0N
 

0:: 
<

( 
(/) 

w
 

D
 

<
( x

 
0
 

w
 

c
r 

M.9
v,0

Z
.0

0N 
o

w
 

0
0

:: 
o

w
 

z
 

0::: 
_
J
 

er: 
w

 
<

( 
z 

d,9
9

 
1-1,19

'99 
zz

 
z 

Z
_
_
J 

0
 

f-- 
w

 
2

 
t/) 

::::J 0:: 
::::J >- 

::i z 
1-1 

D
D
 

0
<

( 
0

::::J 

z 
u

 
u

 
z 

I- 
w

 
D

 
(0

 
LL...U

 
LL...3

 
LL..-

 

0
 

0:: 
<

( 
::,:' 

"" 
N

 

.:: 
u

 
<

( 
6' 

� 
� 

0... 
"' 

is, 
><V

lo
 

� 
• 

• 
w

 
'.:::i,N

 
IS> 

U
-
'O

 
(0

 

0::: 
w

 
19-

 
N

 
�
j

a: 
N

 
_
J 

<[ 
N

 
.. ---: 

L
s,. 

<
( 

0
 

f-- 
r-, in 

U
l ... 

CDLL:,: 
"
"
V

) 
v

 

:c 
,n,.,, 

L
J_

J
 

u
 

<
( 

- " 
.. o:tJ 

lD
 

a.. 
f-- 

I- 
G 

lSl1N
 

.?- 
\ 

�<i'cr:I.O 
V

) 

o» 
�

 
N

 
"' 

��a 
O

]L
L
<

! ..-- 
+- 

I- 
t/) 

w
 

('\J 
"' 

t-w
2

 
CD lt 

c 

z
 :5 

0
 

I- 
• 

"" 
o' 

o
u

'°" 
�
�
�

[}._
 

� 
<!) 

�
 

z 
<1 

w
:;; 

"'er 
D

 
_
J LL S 

.c 
'1-: 

0
 

"
' 

:J 
+- 

� 
w

,- 
::;: 

l'-J "' 
LLD

,.- 
1-w

::: 
u

 
0
 

a.. 
0

) 
a: 

<
t 

lflN
 

!'.? 
0
 

-, 
01 

co 
<( <( 

::, 
I- 

lSl 
,n..- 

.... ,,.., 
DU
 Nu
 

O
U

) 
't- 

I- 
::c 

�· 
(/) ;.... 

\.0 
_
J 

,
_

 
u
o
-
 

0
 

f-- 
f-- 

(0
 

/'- 
� 

D'.'.l.!lo
 

LL�
,_

 
"
0

 
D

 

z
 

. co 
N

 
=< 

"' 
w
<
z
 

LLD
 

V
l 

o
 

cu
 

U
) 

N
 

LL 
V

) 
\/) 

' 
,- ·z

 

"' 
' 

Z
-

1::J 
o

w
�

<C 
C

.>'. 0
 <D,

:
 

0
 

(!), 
"' 

,... 

0
 

I- 
...... i 

,<
V

) 
N

 
N

 �=D 
·-
 L

 
U

) 
U

) 0
 

U
_

J
 

I')
 "' 

a: <...:)::J
_
J
 

»
O
L

C
-
 

i== 
co 

� 
I- 

Q
_

J
 

- 
!'.? 

u>
 

W
<C

O
O

... 
e s 

<!) 
<!) 

"' 
I- 

--'"' 
C

) 
Z

-1
LLo

 
(!) 

CDL
L

::: 
01 

w 
w

 
,_ 

> 
o, o 

<!) 
I 

z
 

co 
0... 

w
 

}" 
c 

@j= 
w 

L
 ;,, 

·- .c 
L

 

I
 

3
 

,..:�
'tx 

N
 

U) 
V

) 
:::, ID+

-
+- 

(\) w
 

<!) 

u
i 

M 
('\J 

"' 
� 

- ... 
U>
 

Cl'.'. 
U

) > 
0
 

l"l 
-g 

::::, >< 
w

 
"' 

"' 
L

 m :>-.L
 

f-- 

�
 

I
 

co 
._.�,- 

SJ" 
N

 
w

 
<

( 
SJ" 

<!) 

0
 

u
i 

t-- 
t/) 

t/) 
c 

er 
"" 

Tl 
ir 

V
) 

U
=

1L
-
 

Q
) 

co 
o
u

::i 
0

 
"' 

c 
U

) ,-
 

:::J 'O
 

0
 

o 

I- 
0

 
<

( 
+ 

_
J
 

u
 

01 
co 

0
 

'O
 'O

 c 
C

X
) 

<!) 

u
 

• 
z 

... 
"' 

0
0
 

C
J) 

z 
-u

 
:::J 

0
 

0::: 
o 

3: 
w

 
ID

 
"-o

 
. 

"' 
l{

)
,
 

c- 
o, »

o
 

<
( 

(SD
Z

 
o; 

('\J 

<
( 

N
 

0
 

?} 
0 

L'O 
' 

- 
01- 

,-
r<

) 
UJ+

- E 
L

 
U

) 
0

 
co 

z
 

w
=> 

(""""l.O
t11lf1r---D

 L
lfl 

·-
 0

 
ED
 

c
, 

I 
f-- 

+' 
a:c.::iC

l 
� 

C
h 

1:-
L

O
>

i 
<!) 

..- 

x<( 
0

 
U

l 
co 

�, 
...-N

O
O

 
<IJ 

0
 

w
 

ixi' 
,_ 

w
..-r"'- 

V
) 

Q
)'
 

0
 

'Q
JN

 
+- 

Q
) 

Q
) 

0) 
Q

) 
N

 

>- 
;:-- 

('_j 
ii' 

2
--' 

>0
01o

r--o
cov

 
L
U
-

>
 

+- 
>- 

0
 

N
 

<
( 

, 
cr--' 

Lm
-

r0
v

r0
 

II 
+- 

c 
L

 
L

 
0

 
U

) 
_

J
 

ai 
N

 
f-- 

f-- 
z
 

,_ 
o- 

:::J II 
II 

II 
II 

II 
I
I
 

0
 

0) :::J +- :::J 
0) 

0
 

z
 

' 
u>
 

r. .c 
O
V

l 
f 

.c: 
N

 

�
 

�
 

I 
l/) 

t/) w
 

.- 
U

<
]C

ll-
-
'O

::U
U

 
+-+

-L
.C

. 
+- 

0
 

t-- 
::..'.'. 

::, 
3

' 
0

 +- 'O
 

:::J 
>- 

�
 

ll) 
<

( 
c. 

D
 

z 
;,,u

 
c 

c 
3' 

>
, 

�
 

I 
3: 

.. 
::a�-g� 

Q
) 

.D
 

<
( 

0
 

a.. 
0

 
;.... 

) 
0 

<!) 
c 

c:( 

:c 
I- 

+
 

0
 

U
) 

Q
) 

"CJ 

Cf) 
0

 
0

 
0::: 

... 
L
U

>
, 

-
 "' 

c 
c
r 

0) 
::> 

�
 

w
W

 
a:i 

0.8
9 

io,,8
Z'8

9
 

M,CZ
,CZ.0

0N
 

0. 
IDW

.D
C

:0
0

 
QJ 

L
 

f-- 
z 

lSl 
C

J 
... 

U
L

 
oc-

 
u 

0) 
Q

) 

(.) 
0::: 

0::: 
L

I) 
<D 

LLZ
 

,\3lltJ 
� 

0
 'O

 ·-
 0

 
<IJ 

> 
CD 

c:( 

:5 
LL 

LLJ 
o
-
 

"' 
�g

�.�·u,t, 
_
J 

c 
0

 
-, 

2
 

I.fl 
w

 
z 

!!! 
Q

) 
u

 

co 
(f) 

::::J 
::::J 

_
J 

"" 
1-Z

 
Q

) L
L

>
 

ti) 
u 

I
 

N
 

<
( 

L
O

.O
L

<D
Q

J 
<IJ 

x
 

oO
 

_
J 

!:" 
z-

 
Q) 

4- 
0)4

- +
 

Q
) 

-
C

J 

_
J 

w
 

(Y
) 

u
U

 
-, 

<
( 

N
 

.Cll)L
0

.0
0

 
Q

l 

N
 

o
w

 
O

 
Q

) 
:::J L

+
 

0
 

<
( 

Q
_ co 

;,, 

O
J 

<
( 

LL 
CT' 

......... 3: 0
. ti) a_ l/) 

::. 
[]._ 

(.() 
co 

,"' 
V

) 
t/) 

2
 

0::: 
z 

"' 
f-- 

f-- 
0

 
<

( 
"' 

I
 
I
 

0::: 
0

 
d'ilW

,0
8 

,I 
0

 

0
 

C) C) 
"' 

LL 
w

 
"'' 

'(J
' 

w
 

z 
u

 
' "' 

. 
. 

' 
(/) 

z 
tSl 

a
u, 

: 
. 

. 
JI. 

0::: 
0::: 

0
 

IT' 
a

 
3: 

f-- z 
w

 
w

 
LL 

a' 
;;::,,..; 

.- - 
- 

·- 
> 

<
( 

>- 
u

 
0

 
w

 
\/) 

t/) 
0:: 

0
 

co 
r 

r:.- -- 
' 

;!.::. 
·-
 

w
 

er: 
+ 

f-- 
w

 
LL 

V
) 

V
) 

co 
.._ 

, r 
-
 --. 

' 
:::- 

0:: 
0

 

z 
J
 

f-- 
I 

w
W

 
::::J 

>- 
:1:, 

<
t 

·-, 
. 

* . 
::::J 

D
 
u

 
3: 

u
U

 
0

 
f-- 

0 
w

 
w

 
+' 

D
 

0:: 
w

 
0

 
u
u

 u
 

(/) 

I- 
f-- 

u
 

0... 
L

I) 
0::: 

<
( 

<
( 

<
( 

u
 

I- 

<
[ 

<
( 

(L
 

'J
,, 

� I II 
' 

,. 
I 

0
 

0
 

-393-

Item G.2.k. 



rri 
'<:t 

0
 

z __J 
LU

 
u

 
a: 
<

( 
c, 
a: 
0
 

LL 

5 c, 
C

l 
LU

 
::c 
u

 

�
 LL 

0
 

z 0
 

i= 
c
, 

a: 
u

 
V

') 
LU

 
C

l 

r--.. 
a
 I 

u
 

N
 I 00 

N
 

N
 I 

r-, 
LI') I 
c, 
I 
V

') 

o z ti LU
 

a a: 
c
, 

j:: z => 
0

 
u

 
:><'. 
s <

( 
::c 
:><'. 
u

 
::i co 

vi 
s 9 __J 

0
 

LL 

�
 

C
l 

LU
 

co 
a: 
u

 
V

') 
LU

 
C

l 
C

l 
z ::i �

 
!::'.:! 
C

l 
LU

 
1- 
z <

( 
a: 
\.9 
LU

 
__J 

I 
i= 
LU

 
__J 
c, 
�

 
vi 
LU

 
LU

 
LL 
LU

 
::c I- 

C
l 

z <
( 

V
') 

z 
<

{ 
C

l 
C

l 
LU

 
LU

 
C:0 

C
l 

a: 
=> u

 
__J 

V
') 

U
 

LU
 

z 
C

l 

s�
 

0
 

<
( 

z 
<

{ 

5� 
c.. 

-
 

� j::' 
oz

 
u: => 
LL 

Q
 

au
 :><'. 

�s
 

- 
<

{ 
� ::c 
__J 

:><'. 
j; u

 
a: ::i 
<

( 
co 

81
 

u
 

....J 
L

L
 j; 

0
 

LU
 

a: 
\.9 

<
{ 

C
l 

� tj 
>_ 0 
� j:: 
jO
 

9�
 

co 
I- 

- 
LL 

LL 
Q

 
0
 

1- 
.-i 

a: 
I- 

<
{ 

O
 

c
, 

__J 
<

( 
LL 

\.9 
V

') 

Oz
s
 

h: � 9 
<

( 
a: 

__J 

c.. 
0
 
0
 

<
( 

LL 
LL 

c:i a: 
0
 

u
 

LU
 

a: 
L

L
 

0
 
�

 
z LU

 

�
 

LU
 

V
') 

<
( 

LU
 

__J 
__J 
<

( 
C

l 
z <

( 
> 
z <

( 

�
 

t:; LU
 

a3 
=> V

') 

�
 

LU
 

c.. 
0
 

a: 
c, 

::c h: 0
 

z a: 
<

{ 
LU

 
co 
�

 
C

l 
LU

 

�
 

=> V
') 

V
') 

<
( 

�
 

....J 
<

( 
LL 
a: 
<

( 
C

l 
LU

 
u

 
LL 
0
 

LU
 

\.9 
::i __J 

s co' 
N

 
::..: 
u

 
0
 

....J 
co 
LL' 

0
 

.-i 
l 
o __J 

LL 
0
 
�

 f--'. 
::::i 
�

 
::C 

LU
 

h: � 
0
 

'<:t 
LU

 Z O 
I- 

LU
 
�

 
0
 ::c en 

2
1

-
0
0
 

-394-

Item G.2.k. 



EGE NO 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT = PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

cz:::::::slPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * 0---------- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY --- PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

-PROPOSED SIDEWALK -- PROPOSED SANITARY 

-PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT -RETAINING WALL 

---EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

EASEMENTS 

West 1st 1

Street I IA 57 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 43 - JAMES R. KENYON 
SCALE: 

1"= 40' 

$!-lllll 
$Oil.TES 
SUSER• 

02/08/2018 
DATE: 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)--2G-07 

• 
�DOT 

1•iun 1 ,11111 1111 1 uf 1�h'' 

$Pl TD�VL$ 
$P£NT8Llt. 
SS'!EETNA�E• 

-395-

Item G.2.k. 



-396-

Item G.2.k. 



i R� JA/Uk• I 

JaR. Kenyon 
IP(?.1 /1'6 

Ddte Spoije Date 

For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of ! ow� 

County of �)o.do\ Wc..rJ\ 

This record was acknowledged before me on J'41.A1'1 '2..1� 2018 

by Name(s) of individual(s) 

Signature of notarial officer 

Printed name of notarial officer 

My commission expires 

2 

-397-

Item G.2.k. 



ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Grantee"), does hereby accept and approve the foregoing 
Easement. 

Dated this __ day of , 2018. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 

3 

-398-

Item G.2.k. 



I EGEND 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT = PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE T !TLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

c:zs:;sJPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * c->-- --- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY --- PROPOSED SANITARY 

-PROPOSED SIDEWALK PROPOSED SANITARY 

-PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT -RETAINING WALL 

---EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

* INCLUDES UNDERLYING TEMPORARY EASEMENTS 

West 1st Street I IA 57 

.. - , - 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 43 - JAMES R. KENYON 

$?l TD�Vl$ 
$P(Nf6ll$ 
$'.ill[(TNAMES 

SCALE: 
1"= 40' 

02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 

STP-57-2(28)--28-07 

�FIL[L• 
SDATU 
t.US[Rt 

-399-

Item G.2.k. 



-400-

Item G.2.k. 



-401-

Item G.2.k. 



-402-

Item G.2.k. 



-403-

Item G.2.k. 



-404-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. PO Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(515) 964-2020 
(319)273-8600 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 904 W. 1st St. COUNTY TAX PARCEL N0.8914-11-278-006 
PARCEL NO. 55 
PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
PROJECT NAME: West 1st St. I IA 57 PCC Pavement Reconstruction 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of , 2018, by and between Carmen S. Barker, 
f/k/a Carmen S. Nimmo and Joseph Barker, wife and husband, Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, Buyer. 

1. The Seller agrees to sell and furnish to the Buyer a warranty deed, permanent utility easement 
and temporary easement agreements, furnished by' the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to 
purchase the following real estate, or interest in real estate, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises, described as follows: See Attached Exhibits 

FEE Acquisition 
See attached 

Temporarv Easement 
See attached 

and which include the following improvements of whatever type situated on the premises: 

2. The premises include the estates, rights, titles and interests, including easements, as are 
described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the street or highway which is 
adjacent to the premises, and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages 
arising therefrom. SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES full settlement and payment from the Buyer for 
all claims per the terms of this agreement and discharges the Buyer from liability because of this 
agreement and the construction of this public improvement project. 

3. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and the Buyer may enter and 
assume full use and enjoyment of the premises in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
The Seller grants the Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
gathering survey and soil data. When Buyer has paid Seller the payment amount described in 
the following paragraph, and when Seller has executed and delivered a warranty 
deed/permanent easement agreement/ and/or temporary easement agreement(s) [strike 
inapplicable provisions], conveying title, or an interest in title, to the premises to Seller, as 
described in this agreement, Buyer shall then be entitled to immediate possession of the 
premises. 

4. Buyer agrees to pay and SELLER AGREES to grant the right of possession, convey title, or an 
interest in title, as provided in this agreement, and to surrender physical possession of the 
premises as shown on or before the dates listed below. 

1 

-405-

Item G.2.k. 



Payment Amount Agreed Performance Date 

$________ on right of possession 
$________ on conveyance of title 
$________ on surrender of possession 
$ __ ---=5� ,6�7_4'-'- .3=2=---- on possession and 60 days after B'uyer approval 

conveyance 
$���5= ,6� 70=·� oo;a__TOTALLUMPSUM 

BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet 

Land by Fee Title 295 sq. ft. 
Permanent Utility Easement sq.ft. 
Temporary Easement 1 378 sq. ft. 
Miscellaneous/Other Wall 
Buildings 
Severance Damages 

$ 2,655.00 
$ 
$ 1,984.32 
$1,035.00 
$ 
$ 

5. Seller also agrees to execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which 
is attached hereto. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, 
shaped and seeded, if applicable, upon completion of the project by Buyer. The Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

6. The Seller warrants that there are no tenants on the premises holding under lease except: 
Unknown. 

7. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller, and the 
SELLER AGREES to pay all liens and assessments against the premises, including all taxes 
and special assessments payable until surrender of possession, as required by Section 427.2 of 
the Code of Iowa, and agrees to warrant good and sufficient title. 

Names and address of lienholders are:----------------- 

8. Each page and each attachment is by this reference made a part hereof and the entire 
agreement consists of Z pages. 

9. The Buyer may include mortgagees, lien holders, encumbrances and taxing authorities as 
payees on warrants as payment on the agreement. If this agreement involves a total taking, 
SELLER WILL furnish and deliver to the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613, an abstract of title to be updated, if requested by City. The abstract continued to date, or 
a title report obtained by the City if this agreement does not involve a total taking, must show 
merchantable title to the premises vested in Seller. Buyer agrees to pay the cost of any abstract 
continuation. SELLER AGREES to obtain court approval of this agreement, if requested by the 
Buyer, if title to the premises becomes an asset of any estate, trust, conservatorship or 
guardianship. Buyer agrees to pay court approval costs and all other costs necessary to 
transfer the premises to the Buyer, but not attorney fees. Claims for such transfer costs shall be 
paid in amounts supported by paid receipts or signed bills. 

10. If the Seller holds title to the premises in joint tenancy with full rights of survivorship and not as 
tenants in common at the time of this agreement, Buyer will pay any remaining proceeds to the 

2 

-406-

Item G.2.k. 



survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 
tenancy has not been destroyed by operation of law or acts of the Seller. 

11. This written agreement and the attachments together constitute the entire agreement between 
the Buyer and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as 
specifically provided for herein. This agreement is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls 
City Council. 

12. The Seller shall have five years from the date of settlement to renegotiate construction or 
maintenance damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement, as required by 
Section 68.52 of the Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by 
the Buyer, we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and 
unpaid. 

/p-1.i' ... /$ 
Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of :iQ\N � 
County of �'\°"� \-\0-l}'.)\li- 

;{spouse) � 

This record was acknowledged before me on _t)_(o_-_f_lf __ �_0_)_8' _ 
___________ (Date) by Cav:mtN'\ 
s. w,mmo-fu'f\LQ.r �- 00� fu.\r(QK 
Name(s) of individu (s), 

..._,.!}-�-,. ALYSSA PENROD 
j r- 
�·� 

Commission Number 804390 lf!9 My Commission Expires 
'owt. May 16, 2020 

3 

-407-

Item G.2.k. 



2. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

(Business Name, Trustee, name of person signing on behalf of) 

County of _ 

This record was acknowledged before me on _ 

______________ (Date) by _ 

Name(s) of individual(s) as------------------ 

____________ (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of -------------------------- (name of party on behalf of whom record was executed) . 

Signature of notarial officer 

BUYER'S APPROVAL 

By: � 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By: � 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

4 

(date) 

(date) 

-408-

Item G.2.k. 



w
 

_
J 

<J: 
u

 
lf) 

z
 3
 

<J: 
er: 
0

 

w
 

f 
<J: 
0
 

= b
 

""" II CX) 
..... 0
 

N
 

cri 
N

 

�
 

<( 
:::, 

�
 

-:, 

w
 

f- 
<J: 
0
 

0
 

w
 

(/) 

>
 

w
 

er: 

>
, 

.0 
<

( 

• 0
 

Q
) 

{fJ 

{fJ ::i 
.L 

z
 

+- 
0
 

0
 

w
 

f- 
0... 0

 
<

(Z
 

u
 w

 
• V

l 
2
�

 
• 

::J 3: 
_
J 0:: 

... 
<

(W
 

:r: 
f- f- 
0
0
 

�
V

l 
�

 
V

l 
o
w

 
Z

_
J
 

::J z
 

0
 ::J 

() 
LL-

 

(I) 
{fJ 
c (I) 
0

 

_
J 

-0 
Q) 

�
 

f- 

6 
[!) 

0
 
I
 

{fJ 
x
 

15, 
w

 
>, 

0
 

:::;, 
o

, 

0
 

3' 
Q

) 
c Q

) 
er: Q) 
+- 
0

 
0

 

re, 

L
 

Q
) 

.g Q
) 

0
 

Q
) 

0
 

{fJ 

en 
0

 
N

 

• LL 
0
 

f 
:r: 
C

) 
�

_
J
 

0:: �
 

<
( 

0
 0:: 

z
 

::J >- 
0

 <
( 

LL 3: 

L
 

Q) 

� ::J 
c Q

) 
{fJ 
c Q

) 
0

 

_
J 

z 0
 

f 
u

 
w

 
V

l 0:: 
o

w
 

zz
 

::J 0:: 
0
0
 

LLU
 

Q) 
.L 
+- 

+- 
c � ::J 
0

 
0

 
{fJ 

'+- 
"O 0

-
 

0
 

3' 0
 

O
l 

C
"O

C
/J 

C
.Y'. 0

 Ql 3' 
·-
 L

 CfJ CfJ O
 

>
.O

L
C

 

Ql 3' Q) Q) 
> 

Cl.O
 Ql 

L
 >, 

·-
 .C

 
:JU

)+
-

+
 

{fJ > 0
 

L
ID

 >
.L

 
"O::JL

-
Q

l 
c CJJ,-

 ::J"O
 

0
 

"O"O
C

 
-
 "O 

::J 
Ql >

,O
 

CJJ+
- E 

L
 

·- o 
E o 

.C
-

L
O

>
. 

+- Q) Q) 
Q) 

L
 "O-

 > 
+- 

C 
L 

O
 Q) ::J +- ::J 

.C
.C

 
O

V
l 

+-+
- L

.C
 

0
 +- "O 

>
,"() 

c 
� § ��

�
.
 

+- 
0

 
0

 
L
-0

>
. 

-
3

' 
Q)Q

l.O
C

O
O

 
O
L

 
O
c
-
 

0
-0

 ·-
 0

 
>, Cl (I) 

{fJ ·-
'+

 
.0 ©

 E ·- CJJ o
 

Q
) L L > 

CfJ 
L

 Cl.0
 L

 
Q

) 
Q

) 
Q

) 
'+- (I)'+

-+
 

.C
C

/JL
C

l.0
0

 
0

 (I) ::J L
+

 
-
 3' Cl.C/JO

...V
l 

z 

(L
 

"' 
Q

.. 
O

' 

'° 
C\i 

I.O 
�

 

A3lll;I 

l--------- --- 
cilSl 
_J
�
 

C
J) 

C
) 

a�
�

....L�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

-.l.... 
..,.., 

------ 
' 

I.{) 
a� 
C

) 

<'° 

L
 

"' " c.o N
 

(") 

w
 

?::! :;;. N
 

a- co 
z 

0. 

'° I.O 

(L
 

t?w 
ciLO 
-e- ,.... 

�
 

(") 

-
-
 

�t- 
L

:;-' 
�
�
�--

�--
�-
�1----

�-
�o�;,.---

�------,�ro� 
�· fl 

<'lz
 

"<;:.-')
 

� 
�-a<f 

.cl,,,_ 
-
-
�
�

4.....-
-

.---
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

,siri,.,. 
a.z

et 
W,l9"ZEl 

M,b0
,0

v.0
0

N
 

- �i 
-;,�

$ 
�

,.) 

')O 
T

 d. 

U
' 

U
' 

ui 
U

' 
+ N

 
(") 

l(J 
+' 
(f) C

) 
LLZ

 
o-
 z 

1-Z
 

z
 

-
c:, 

ow
 

(L
a

)
 

co 
... -: " + (") 
... 0 
+' 
(f) 

u
 

Q
.. 

d'l!eU
lB j I I 

a: 
.., :>: 
�  133815 303llOJ"N 
..,. 

lf) 
_

J 
_

J 
<J: 
LL 

er: 
<J: 
0

 
w

 
u

 

<J: 
3

 
D

 

LL 
D

 

> 
f-- 

u
 

(/) 

o
O
Z
 

w
W
 

0::: er: w
 

2
 

:::J 
:::J er: 

O
 O

 
<J: 

u
U

 
U

 
<J: 

<J: 

lf) 
lf) 

2
 

f-- 
f-- 

D
 

I
 
I
 

0:: 
(_') 

<..'.) 
LL 

er: er: 
0

 
w

 
lf) 

lf) er: 
lf) 

lf) 
w

 w
 

:=J 
u
U
O
 

u
u
u

 
<J: 

<J: 
<J: 

wo
 

z 
<J: 
D

 
_

J er: 
zw
 0 

<J: 
2 

lf) 
u

 
<J: 

LL 
U

) 

LO 
CJ' 
N

 

Q
_ 

I
W
 

lf) 
lf) 

z
 

<J: 
3

:W
 

0
 

f-- 

:c l 
o:: 0

 
z 0
) 

CX) 
<J: 

<J: 
f-- 

f- 
lf) 

lf) 

I 
C

/) 

LD 
�

 

LD 
,;;t 

w
 

f- 
<J: 
f 
l/) 

0
 

z
 

w
 

w
 

LL I lf) 
w 

lf) 
D
 

<..'.) W
 

_
J 

z
 
z
 
u

 
0

 
<J: 

X
 

er: 
_

J er: w 
f-- w

 
z
u

 
D

 er: 
u

 
<J: 
Q

_ 

D
 

z
 

f-- z 
w

 
>- U

 D
 W
 

f-- 
W

 
LL 

Z
 

-----:i 
f-- 

I 
:=J D

 U
 3
 

0
 

0:: W
 O
 

u
 

Q
_ 

lf) 
er: 

z
 

0
 

1- 
U

) 

=> 
0

 
(.) 
<

( 

z
 

0
 

I- 
�

 
0::: 
0

 
a.. 
U

) 
1- 

z
 :5 

c2 
a.. 

I- 
LL 
0

 
1- 
z
 

UJ 
2

 
b:: <

( 
a.. 
UJ 
0
 

�
 

0
 

-409-

Item G.2.k. 



- U.: vi 
I.fl 
O"I 
N

 

ci 0::: 
0

 
u

 
LU

 
0::: 
LI.. 
0

 
�

 
z LU

 

�
 

LU
 

�
 

LU
 

...J 
...J 
�

 
0

 
z � > 
z � �

 
t; LU

 

a3 
::> 
(./') 

�
 

0::: 
LU

 
c.. 
0

 
0::: 
c.. 

(./') 

$ 9 ...J 
0

 
LI.. 

�
 

0
 

LU
 

co 
0::: 
u

 
(./') 
LU

 
0

 
0

 
z �

 
0

 
f- 
�

 
0

 
LU

 
f 
z � 0::: 
�

 
LU

 
...J 
f 
i== 
LU

 
...J 
c.. 
�

 
vi 
LU

 
LU

 
LI.. 
LU

 
I
 

f- 

�
 

z ::> 
0

 
u

 
�

 

�
 

I
 
�

 
u

 
s co 

r-, 
0

 I 
u

 
N

 I - 00 N
 
- N I 
r-, 
I.fl I 
c.. 
�

 
c z t; LU 

0 0::: 
c.. 

I.fl 
I.fl 

0
 

z ...J 
LU

 
u

 
0::: 
�

 
c.. 
0::: 
0

 
LI.. 

�
 

c.. 
0

 
LU

 
I
 

u
 

�
 

LI.. 
0

 
z 0

 
i== 
c.. 
c2 
u

 
(./) 
LU

 
0

 

-410-

Item G.2.k. 



I EGENO 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT �PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TlTLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

czs::zslPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * ,-:,-- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY - PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

-PROPOSED SIDEWALK --- PROPOSED SANITARY 

-PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT ·-- · -RETAINING WALL 

---EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

* INCLUDES UNDERLYING TEMPORARY EASEMENTS 

et I I 57 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 55 - CARMEN S. NIMMO 
SCALE: 

1"= 40' 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)--28-07 

-411-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. P.O. Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
Return to: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

OWNER'S TEMPORARY GRADING EASEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

This instrument is made this day of , 2018, by Carmen S. 
Nimmo, owner(s) (hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR(S)) of the following described 
property: 

See Attached Exhibit 

WHEREAS, the owner(s) in fee simple of the real property known and described 
as set out above is the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter referred to as GRANTEE) 
proposes to grade, shape and seed improvements upon a portion of the above real 
property owned by the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the GRANTOR(S) has agreed to grant to the GRANTEE, a 
Temporary Grading Easement for Construction for the purpose of grading, shaping and 
seeding, if applicable, upon a portion of the real property of the GRANTOR(S), for 
consideration of $1.00 and other valuable consideration duly paid and acknowledged. It 
is agreed the temporary easement granted herein shall terminate upon completion of 
the Project and final acceptance of public improvements by the City Council. 

THEREFORE, for the above consideration, the GRANTOR(S) hereby grants unto 
the GRANTEE the Easement and rights described below: 

See Attached Temporary Grading Easement for Construction Exhibit, 

which Easement and rights shall be binding upon the GRANTOR(S). 

GRANTEE agrees to restore the easement area in a timely manner including, but 
not limited to, the restoration of lawns by seeding, complete restoration of any 
driveways, fences or other structures modified as a requirement of the construction, 
upon completion of the construction or repairs. 

-412-

Item G.2.k. 



Words and phrases herein shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, 
and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. 

Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 
-.- 

State of 1=0V\ JG... 
County of 6\.Clv\k l:\f}AN 'V_, 

This record was acknowledged before me on (Xo-f��l 2tDate) 

by Co.,'(ffiZx") �. �,m:m0-f:o_'QLQ)(" � '3o�
0��meWomvidua1(s) 

as NO -\C)..N\) VV\"1 Q (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of 0·,� C),(' �ed.ox fCLLl l I A 
(name ofpty on behalf of whom record was executed). 

�?� 

2 

�' ALYSSA PENROD 
f.\ CommlHlon Number 804390 

My CommlHion Expires 
fl MIV 18, 2020 

-413-

Item G.2.k. 



ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Grantee"), does hereby accept and approve the foregoing 
Easement. 

Dated this __ day of , 2018. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 

3 

-414-

Item G.2.k. 



EXHIBIT 

I EGFNQ 
PROPOSEO TEMPORARY EASEMENT ..._ PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

�PROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT • e--- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 
PROPOSED ROADWAY --PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

PROPOSED SIDEWALK PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE 
PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LDT -RETAINING WALL 

--EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

57 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREETM 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 55 - CARMEN S. NIMMO 
SCALE: 

1"=40' 

�IUIIU'I-I 

� DOT 
tt I l 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28}-2G-07 

�i: :ta; 

4 

-415-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. PO Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(515) 964-2020 
(319)273-8600 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 908 W. P1 St. COUNTY TAX PARCEL N0.8914-11-278-005 
PARCEL NO. 56 
PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
PROJECT NAME: West 151 St. I IA 57 PCC Pavement Reconstruction 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of , 2018, by and between OT Rentals, LLC, 
Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 

1. The Seller agrees to sell and furnish to the Buyer a warranty deed, permanent utility easement 
and temporary easement agreements, furnished by the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to 
purchase the following real estate, or interest in real estate, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises, described as follows: See Attached Exhibits 

FEE Acquisition 
See attached 

Temporary Easement 
See attached 

and which include the following improvements of whatever type situated on the premises: 

2. The premises include the estates, rights, titles and interests, including easements, as are 
described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the street or highway which is 
adjacent to the premises, and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages 
arising therefrom. SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES full settlement and payment from the Buyer for 
all claims per the terms of this agreement and discharges the Buyer from liability because of this 
agreement and the construction of this public improvement project. 

3. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and the Buyer may enter and 
assume full use and enjoyment of the premises in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
The Seller grants the Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
gathering survey and soil data. When Buyer has paid Seller the payment amount described in 
the following paragraph, and when Seller has executed and delivered a warranty 
deed/permanent easement agreement/ and/or temporary easement agreement(s) [strike 
inapplicable provisions], conveying title, or an interest in title, to the premises to Seller, as 
described in this agreement, Buyer shall then be entitled to immediate possession of the 
premises. 

4. Buyer agrees to pay and SELLER AGREES to grant the right of possession, convey title, or an 
interest in title, as provided in this agreement, and to surrender physical possession of the 
premises as shown on or before the dates listed below. 

-416-

Item G.2.k. 



Payment Amount Agreed Performance Date 

$�------- $ _ 
$ _ 
$_�5�5� 1� 7.� 20�- 

$_�5� ,5=2� 0.� 00�_ 

on right of possession 
on conveyance of title 
on surrender of possession 
on possession and 60 days after Buyer approval 
conveyance 
TOTAL LUMP SUM 

BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet 

Land by Fee Title 284 sq. ft. 
Permanent Utility Easement sq.ft. 
Temporary Easement 1 105 sq. ft. 
Miscellaneous/Other Tree/wall 
Buildings 
Severance Damages 

$ 2,556.00 
$ 
$ 1,591.20 
$1,370.00 
$ 
$ 

5. Seller also agrees to execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which 
is attached hereto. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, 
shaped and seeded, if applicable, upon completion of the project by Buyer. The Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

6. The Seller warrants that there are no tenants on the premises holding under lease except: 
Unknown. 

7. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller, and the 
SELLER AGREES to pay all liens and assessments against the premises, including all taxes 
and special assessments payable until surrender of possession, as required by Section 427.2 of 
the Code of Iowa, and agrees to warrant good and sufficient title. 

Names and address of lienholders are: ----------------- 
8. Each page and each attachment is by this reference made a part hereof and the entire 

agreement consists of Z pages. 

9. The Buyer may include mortgagees, lien holders, encumbrances and taxing authorities as 
payees on warrants as payment on the agreement. If this agreement involves a total taking, 
SELLER WILL furnish and deliver to the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613, an abstract of title to be updated, if requested by City. The abstract continued to date, or 
a title report obtained by the City if this agreement does not involve a total taking, must show 
merchantable title to the premises vested in Seller. Buyer agrees to pay the cost of any abstract 
continuation. SELLER AGREES to obtain court approval of this agreement, if requested by the 
Buyer, if title to the premises becomes an asset of any estate, trust, conservatorship or 
guardianship. Buyer agrees to pay court approval costs and all other costs necessary to 
transfer the premises to the Buyer, but not attorney fees. Claims for such transfer costs shall be 
paid in amounts supported by paid receipts or signed bills. 

10. If the Seller holds title to the premises in joint tenancy with full rights of survivorship and not as 
tenants in common at the time of this agreement, Buyer will pay any remaining proceeds to the 
survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 

2 

-417-

Item G.2.k. 



survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 
tenancy has not been destroyed by operation of law or acts of the Seller. 

11. This written agreement and the attachments together constitute the entire agreement between 
the Buyer and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as 
specifically provided for herein. This agreement is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls 
City Council. 

12. The Seller shall have five years from the date of settlement to renegotiate construction or 
maintenance damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement, as required by 
Section 68.52 of the Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by 
the Buyer, we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and 
unpaid. 

DT Rentals, LLC 

be_v�/\ \j�§Ce: 
Name/Title Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of :;Io w C,,... 

County of .B \ct.t>k hcu . .J K 
This record was acknowledged before me on --� -----l-1..-'�=f_,___-�___,1 

_ 

___ _,__;;;J"-'Q"""---'! ........ 25..._ (Date) by _ 

l-v..LCL$ -:Jo ��/\.Sen 
Name(s) of individual(s). 

Signature of notarial officer 

3 

-418-

Item G.2.k. 



2. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

DT Rentals, LLC 

County of 

State of __ :=ct �-'.?-rJ���-- 

(; \�v ��l 
This record was acknowledged before me on __ Jc_-� ] 'f_,___:;;--+ .'---- 

d0\8 (Date)by _ 

�CA.5 ]o�r1St:/"\ 

LUCAS JOHANSEN 
Notarial Seel - Iowa 

Commission Number 808621 
My Commission Expires Jan 26. 2021 

Name(s) of individual(s) as 5 ?\. �e f\ JC\ -\-Ar-"( 
_____ --,-- (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

Cv-t""' 
�c�-e �-\er h P-.cn �l� i.u: 

et-la f of whom -6cord was executed) . 

BUYER'S APPROVAL 

(date) 
By: _ 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

(date) 
By: � 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

4 

-419-

Item G.2.k. 



z 3: 
<i:: 
0::: 
0
 

b
 

""" II w
 

f- 
<r 
0

 

w
 

_
J 

<r 
u

 
l/) 

CX) 
..... 0

 
N

 
O') 
N

 

fr <( 
=> z <( 
--:, 

..... 

0
 

w
 

V
) 

>
 

w
 

0::: 

w
 

f- 
-er 
0

 

• CJ 
Q

) 
ff) 

U
) 
�

 

.c 
z
 

+- 
0
 

0
 

w
 

1- 
0... 0

 
<CZ
 

u
 w

 
• V

l 
L
-
 

. 
::::J 3: 
_J 0::: 

"
 

<CW
 

:r: 
1-1

- 
0
0
 

::vi � 
V

l 
o

w
 

Z
_

J
 

::::JZ
 

O
::::J 

LL-
 

Q
) 

ff) 
c Q

) 
0

 

_
J 

CJ 

" Q
) 

c Q
) 

Ct'. 

Q
) 

+ CJ 
0

 

>
, 

.D
 

<
( 

"O 
, 

Q
) 

�  
1- 

6 (() 
0

 
:r: 

ff) 
x
 

gw
 

>
, 

CJ 
::e 

Q
_ 

n
 L
 

Q
) 

-g Q
) 

0
 

Q
) 

0
 

U
) 

_
J 

L
 

Q
) 

f :::J 
c Q

) 
U

) 
c Q

) 
0

 

w
 

I 
<

( 
0
 

0
 

N
 

rn 

• LL 
Z

 
O

 
0
 

I- 
I- 

:r: 
u

 
C

) 
w 

-
_

J
 

V
l 

o:::-
 

0::: 
<

( 
o
w

 
0

0::: 
zz
 
z 

::::J 0::: 
::::J >- 

0
0
 
O
<C 

I.LU
 

LL3
 

Q
) 

t: 
+- 

+- c � :::J 
0

 
O

ff) 
+

- 
"O CJ-

 
0

 

"
 CJ 

CJl 
C

"O
 ffJ 

C
..1:'. 

0
 Ql 3' 

·-
 L

 
ffJ ffJ CJ 

>,O
L

C

 

Ql"
 

Q
) 

Q
) 

> 
Q

.O
Q

J 
L

 
>, 

·-
 .C

 
:::J ©+

--
+

 
<!) > 0

 
L

 
Ql >

,L
 

D
:::JL

-
Q

l 
C

 <JJ·-
 :JD

 
CJ 

"OD
 C

 
-

"O
 

:::J 
Q

) 
>, CJ 

<JJ+
- E 

L 
·-
 CJ 

E o 
.C
-

L
C

J>
, 

-+- 
Q

) 
0) 

Q
) 

L
 -0-

 > 
+- 

C 
L 

CJ 
Q

) :::J +- 
:::J 

.c.c 
o co 

-+-+
- L

 ..C 
0

 +- "O 
>

,"O
 

c 
't-C

Q
JD

C
J 

·-
 CJ E c _

J 
• 

+- 
CJ 

CJ 
L

"O
>

, 
-
3
' 

QJQ
J.D

C
C

JO
 

O
 L

 
O

 c-
 

CJ "O
 ·-

 0
 

>, Q
. Q

) 
ff)·

-
+

 
.D

 OJ E ·-
 <JJ O

 
Ql L

L
>

 
ffJ 

L
Q

.O
L

Q
JQ

J 
Q

) 
4-- 0)4--+

 
.C

 
<!J L

 Q
.O

 CJ 
CJ Ql 

:::J L
 + 

-
 
"
Q

.ff)Q
_
l/)

 

\I) 

Q
_ 

"' co 

"-' 
.. "' "' � 

f- 
0

 
_
J 

f- 
0
 

_
J 

!s3ll\i 

d,ZEI 
H,9

L"ZEI 
M,60

,0v.0
0N

 

� rsilSl 
N

 LD 
+ 

• 
N

 io
 

'<I"...- 

o- 
0
 

::,: 

"' r-, 
<si CXl 
N

 

w
 

t2 ;,. N
 

CT' 
co 
z
 

Q
.. 

O'J N
 

Q
.. 

io 
ISl 
cxi (") I 

Q
.. 

"' tD
 

( --, -. 

� cxi LD 
tD

 
(") 

+ 
• 

N
IS

l 
.,. ...- 

(") 
---: 

Q
.. 

N
 N

 Ul 
N
M

 
• 

+ 
. 

ISl 
N

 
ISl 

CO 
v

sr- 
N

 

CJ' 
CJ' 
u5 CJ' 
+ 
N

 
(") 

,0 
+' 
(!) C

) 
LLZ

 
o-
 z 

1-Z
 

z
 

-
c
, 

ow
 

Q
_(!) 

CXl 
'T

 
-: " + (") 
...- 0 
+' 
(!) 

u
 

Q
_ 

l I ' 
d'8W,0B I I I I I I I I ! I I ! I i i-1 

�
I 

�i 81·0' 
_
J 

...- 

<II lSi 
l'--·CX) 
isil�

 
N
' lw

 
�jM

 
w

,£'1 
e:1� 
(f)jc, 
f-. CXl 
(J)IZ

 
-. e-1 
(/)' 

� I I I I I I I I I d .. 
I I j I I I I I . I I 

I 

M
 

f- 
0

 
_
J 

a: 
.. ::,: 

�
 

133
t:11S

 
3Q

31
1

0J
 "N

 
-e- 

-r 
3: 
0

 

u
 

l/) 
_

J 
_

J 
<r LL 

LL 
D

 

> 
f-- 

0::: 
-r 
0
 

w
 

u
 

:::J 
:::J 

' 
0

 
0

 
.- 

u
 
U

 
o

 
<i:: <t 

l/) 
V

) 
2

 
f-- 

f-- 
D

 
::r:: ::r:: 

0::: 
('.) 

(.'.) 
LL 

o:::O
::: 

0
 

w
 

l/) 
l/) 

0::: 
l/) 

l/) 
w
w

 
:::J 

u
U
O
 

u
u
u

 
<r <r 

-r 

oO
 

w
W
 

0::: 
0::: 

wo
 

z
 

<r 
0

 
_

J 
0::: 

U
 

W
W

 
<r 

O
 
O

 

l/) V
l' 

w
 

w
 

LL I l/) 
l/) 
w

 
Uz
w
 

X
 

O
 

w <r 2 
V

) 
u

 
<r 

u
 

x
<r<rj

 
f-- 

f- 
l/) 

V
) 

l/) 
_

J 
<r 
f-- 
z w

 
0::: 

LL 
(f') 

s;j 
(X

) 
N

 

::r:: 
w

 
l/) 

l/) 
z
 

<r 
3: w 
0

 
f-- 

u
, 

I
 

�
 

0
 

z O
> 

CX) 
<t 

<r 
f-- 

f 
l/) 

V
) 

I 
C

/) 

lO
 
�

 

LO 
,;;t- 
..- 

0
 

z
 

w 
0

 
('.) 

_
J z

 z
 

0
 

<r 
0::: 

_
J 

0::: 
f-- w 
z
u

 
0

 
0::: 

u
 

<r 
n, 

w
 

f- 
<r 
f- 
V

) 

0
 

z
 

f-- z
 

w
 

>-- U
 O
 W
 

f-- 
W

 
LL 

Z
-
:
if-

-
 

I 
:::J 

O
 

U
 

3: 
0

 
0::: 

W
O

 
u

 
n

, 
V

) 
0::: 

z
 

0
 

I- 
en 
:::::, 
a

 
(.) 
<

( 

u
, 

0
 

1- 
z
 

w
 

2
 

l 
o:: 
<

( 
0.. 
w

 
C

l 

�
 

0
 

z
 

0
 

�
 

0:::: 
0

 
0.. 
en 

1- 
z
 ::s 
�

 
0.. 

I- 

-420-

Item G.2.k. 



\.0 
U"l 

0
 

z ...J 
LU

 
u

 
c::: 
<I: 
c, 
c::: 
0

 
L

L
 

�
 

c, 
C

l 
LU

 
:c 
u

 

�
 

L
L

 
0

 
z 0

 
F= c
, 

c::: 
u

 
v, 
LU

 
C

l 

r-- 
0

 I 
u

 
N

 I 00 
�

 
N

 I 
r- 
U

"l I 
c
, 

I 
v, 

o z t::; LU
 

0 c::: 
c
, 

�
 

z ::::> 
0
 

u
 

::..::: 

�
 

:c 
::..::: 
u

 
s co 

v, 
s 9 ...J 
0

 
L

L
 

�
 

C
l 

LU
 

co 
c::: 
u

 
v, 
LU

 
C

l 
C

l 
z ::; �

 
�

 
C

l 
LU

 
1- 
z <I: 
c::: 
(.9 
LU

 
...J 
I- 
F= LU

 
...J 
c, 
�

 
vi 
LU

 
LU

 
L

L
 

LU
 

:c 
I- 

ci c::: 
0

 
u

 
LU

 
c::: 
L

L
 

0
 

�
 

z LU
 

�
 

LU
 

�
 

LU
 

...J 
...J 
<I: 
C

l 
z <I: 
> 
z <I: 

�
 

t::; LU
 

-, 
co 
::::> 
v, 

�
 

LU
 

c, 
0

 
c::: 
c, 

:c 
I 
C::: 
0

 
z c::: 
<I: 
LU

 
co 

�
 

C
l 

LU
 

�
 

::::> 
l/') 
l/') 
<I: 
�

 
...J 
<I: 
L

L
 

c::: 
<I: 
C

l 
LU

 
u

 
0

 
1- 
z 0

 
F= 
ci C

l 
<I: 
v, 
> ::..::: 
c::: 
::; ...J 
::::> 
�

 
<i L

L
 

0
 

"'" ::..::: 
u

 9 co 
L

L
 

0
 

LU
 

z�
 

::J 
<I: 

:C
 

LU
 

�
�

 
On
 

LU
 Z � 

I- 
LU

 f" 
0

 :c 
C

l') 
Z

 
I- 

00 

-421-

Item G.2.k. 



I EGENO 

L 
("') 
'¢' 

= PROPOSED STORM SEWER 
- W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 
<·, PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 
--- PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 
-- PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE 
·--··- RETAINING WALL 

PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT 
PROPOSED FEE TITLE 

czs:2SJPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT* 
PROPOSED ROADWAY 
PROPOSED SIDEWALK 

��PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT 
---EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 
* INCLUDES UNDERLYING TEMPORARY EASEMENTS -------�� ........ �-.-�r-:-:-� 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 56 - OT RENTALS LLC 
SCALE: 

1"= 40' 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)--2G-07 

-422-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. P.O. Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
Return to: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

OWNER'S TEMPORARY GRADING EASEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

This instrument is made this day of , 2018, by DT Rentals, 
LLC, owner(s) (hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR(S)) of the following described 
property: 

See Attached Exhibit 

WHEREAS, the owner(s) in fee simple of the real property known and described 
as set out above is the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter referred to as GRANTEE) 
proposes to grade, shape and seed improvements upon a portion of the above real 
property owned by the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the GRANTOR(S) has agreed to grant to the GRANTEE, a 
Temporary Grading Easement for Construction for the purpose of grading, shaping and 
seeding, if applicable, upon a portion of the real property of the GRANTOR(S), for 
consideration of $1.00 and other valuable consideration duly paid and acknowledged. It 
is agreed the temporary easement granted herein shall terminate upon completion of 
the Project and final acceptance of public improvements by the City Council. 

THEREFORE, for the above consideration, the GRANTOR(S) hereby grants unto 
the GRANTEE the Easement and rights described below: 

See Attached Temporary Grading Easement for Construction Exhibit, 

which Easement and rights shall be binding upon the GRANTOR(S). 

GRANTEE agrees to restore the easement area in a timely manner including, but 
not limited to, the restoration of lawns by seeding, complete restoration of any 
driveways, fences or other structures modified as a requirement of the construction, 
upon completion of the construction or repairs. 

-423-

Item G.2.k. 



Words and phrases herein shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, 
and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. 

DT Rentals, LLC � �
 

�.,,�'kac"" -er lf:lv«er 7[->/15�� 
Name/Title r Date Name/Title Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

Name(s) of individual(s) 

�vii f c), 2t118(Date) 
t 

This record was acknowledged before me on 

by���-L-�_c_�_s�� ������-s�-c.r-..����- 

State of ':t:o ----""--'-v.J-=--A.--- 

� bL kA-_\( County of 

as s� (.., f\.l <J��( ¥ (type of authority •. such as officer or trustee) 

of CJ, ���h LLL ' 
�CV(--'- ()�l°rb. 

(name of party on behalf of whom record was executed): 

LUCAS JOHANSEN 
Notarial Seal - Iowa 

Commission Number 808621 
My Commission Expires Jan 26. 2021 

2 

-424-

Item G.2.k. 



ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Grantee"), does hereby accept and approve the foregoing 
Easement. 

Dated this __ day of , 2018. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 

3 

-425-

Item G.2.k. 



EXHIBIT 

PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT m PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

- W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 
-- PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE 

-PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT -RETAINING WALL 

--EXISTING RIGHT·OF·WAY 

LOT LINE 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREETAA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 56- DT RENTALS LLC 
SCALE: 

1"=40' 

��IUIII.IH 

� DOT 
'"'.l(i,I' Lj "l('.,I 1[ (, C• 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)-2G-07 

4 

-426-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. PO Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 (515) 964-2020 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319)273-8600 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 930 W. 151 St. COUNTY TAX PARCEL N0.8914-11-278-001 
PARCEL NO. 60 
PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
PROJECT NAME: West 181 St. I IA 57 PCC Pavement Reconstruction 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of , 2018, by and between Bradley K. 
Schultz, Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 

1. The Seller agrees to sell and furnish to the Buyer a warranty deed, permanent utility easement 
and temporary easement agreements, furnished by the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to 
purchase the following real estate, or interest in real estate, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises, described as follows: See Attached Exhibits 

FEE Acquisition 
See attached 

Temporary Easement 
See attached 

and which include the following improvements of whatever type situated on the premises: 

2. The premises include the estates, rights, titles and interests, including easements, as are 
described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the street or highway which is 
adjacent to the premises, and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages 
arising therefrom. SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES full settlement and payment from the Buyer for 
all claims per the terms of this agreement and discharges the Buyer from liability because of this 
agreement and the construction of this public improvement project. 

3. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and the Buyer may enter and 
assume full use and enjoyment of the premises in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
The Seller grants the Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
gathering survey and soil data. When Buyer has paid Seller the payment amount described in 
the following paragraph, and when Seller has executed and delivered a warranty 
deed/permanent easement agreement/ and/or temporary easement agreement(s) [strike 
inapplicable provisions], conveying title, or an interest in title, to the premises to Seller, as 
described in this agreement, Buyer shall then be entitled to immediate possession of the 
premises. 

4. Buyer agrees to pay and SELLER AGREES to grant the right of possession, convey title, or an 
interest in title, as provided in this agreement, and to surrender physical possession of the 
premises as shown on or before the dates listed below. 

-427-

Item G.2.k. 



Payment Amount Agreed Performance Date 

$---�--- 
$·-----�- $ _ 
$ __ -=6.J..C9'--=-6= 2·=6_,_ 4 __ 

$ __ ...,6 ..... . 9...._6= 5·:..;:.0.:.. 0 __ 

on right of possession 
on conveyance of title 
on surrender of possession 
on possession and 60 days after Buyer approval 
conveyance 
TOTAL LUMP SUM 

BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet 

Land by Fee Title 502 sq. ft. 
Permanent Utility Easement sq. ft. 
Temporary Easement 906 sq. ft. 
Miscellaneous/Other Landscaping/Wall 
Buildings 
Severance Damages 

$ 4,518.00 
$ 
$ 1,304.64 
$ 1, 140.00 
$ 
$ 

5. Seller also agrees to execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which 
is attached hereto. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, 
shaped and seeded, if applicable, upon completion of the project by Buyer. The Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

6. The Seller warrants that there are no tenants on the premises holding under lease except: 
Unknown. 

7. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller, and the 
SELLER AGREES to pay all liens and assessments against the premises, including all taxes 
and special assessments payable until surrender of possession, as required by Section 427.2 of 
the Code of Iowa, and agrees to warrant good and sufficient title. 

Names and address of lienholders are: ------------------ 
8. Each page and each attachment is by this reference made a part hereof and the entire 

agreement consists of Z pages. 

9. The Buyer may include mortgagees, lien holders, encumbrances and taxing authorities as 
payees on warrants as payment on the agreement. If this agreement involves a total taking, 
SELLER WILL furnish and deliver to the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613, an abstract of title to be updated, if requested by City. The abstract continued to date, or 
a title report obtained by the City if this agreement does not involve a total taking, must show 
merchantable title to the premises vested in Seller. Buyer agrees to pay the cost of any abstract 
continuation. SELLER AGREES to obtain court approval of this agreement, if requested by the 
Buyer, if title to the premises becomes an asset of any estate, trust, conservatorship or 
guardianship. Buyer agrees to pay court approval costs and all other costs necessary to 
transfer the premises to the Buyer, but not attorney fees. Claims for such transfer costs shall be 
paid in amounts supported by paid receipts or signed bills. 

10. If the Seller holds title to the premises in joint tenancy with full rights of survivorship and not as 
tenants in common at the time of this agreement, Buyer will pay any remaining proceeds to the 
survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 

2 

-428-

Item G.2.k. 



tenancy has not been destroyed by operation of law or acts of the Seller. 

11. This written agreement and the attachments together constitute the entire agreement between 
the Buyer and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as 
specifically provided for herein. This agreement is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls 
City Council. 

12. The Seller shall have five years from the date of settlement to renegotiate construction or 
maintenance damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement, as required by 
Section 68.52 of the Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by 
the Buyer, we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and un;�/�� 
Bradley K. Schultz Date (Spouse) Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of ...::z:;,,l,,LJ 19- 

County of $##,!fa,JX. 

This record was acknowledged before me on ¢31/t "7' 

____________ (Date) by .6'4f::i0t'==J4-.....5at-"'-r.e.. 

Name(s) of individual(s). 

Signat:?t,:i,i�ce� __/ 

3 

., .. , .� r.�r .. r-:y ANN CARNOCK 
1 : Coramlsston Number 181675 

<--- ..),;;&' My Com lo Expires 
IOW .. 

-429-

Item G.2.k. 



2. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

(Business Name, Trustee, name of person signing on behalf of) 

County of _ 

This record was acknowledged before me on _ 

______________ (Date) by _ 

Name(s) of individual(s) as------------------ 

____________ (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of -------------------------- (name of party on behalf of whom record was executed) . 

Signature of notarial officer 

BUYER'S APPROVAL 

By: _ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By: _ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

4 

(date) 

(date) 

-430-

Item G.2.k. 



..- z 3: 
<

( 
0:: 
0

 

b
 

s:f' 
II w

 
f 
<

( 
0

 

w
 

_J 
<t: 
u

 
(/) 

co 
..- 
0

 
N

 
0
) 

N
 

�
 

<( 
:::, 
z <( 
-, 

0
 

w
 

(/) 

>
 

w
 

0:: 

w
 

f 
<

( 
0

 

• 0
 

w
 

1
- 

0..0
 

<CZ
 

u
 w

 
• l/) 

2
-
 

- 
::J3

 
__] 0:: 

v
 

<CW
 

:r: 
f- f- 
0
0

 

�
l/)

 2 
l/) 

ow
 

Z
_

J 
::J z 
O

::J 
LL�

 

0
 

Ql 
U

) 

U
) 

:
:
 

s: 
z
 

+- 
0
 

>
, 

.D
 

<
( 

OJ 
U

) 
c OJ 
0

 

L
 

Ql 

� Ql 
0

 
Ql 
0

 

U
) 

0
 

"' Ql 
c OJ 

er: 
1J 
OJ 
�  

f- 

� 
co 

0
 
I
 

U
) 

x
 

�w
 

>
, 

0
 

2
 

0.. 

Ql 
+- 0

 
0

 

_
J 

• 

O
'l 

0
 

N
 

LL 
0
 

f- 
:r: 
<..'.) 
�

_
_

] 
0:: �

 
<

( 
0
 0::: 

z
 

::J >- 
0
 <

( 
LL 3

 

L
 

Ql 

� :::, c Ql 
U

) 
c Ql 
0

 

--' 

z 0
 

f 
u

 
w

 
l/) 0:: 
ow
 

zz
 

::J 0:: 
0
0
 

LLU
 

Ql 
r:: 
+- 

+- c � :::, 
0

 
O

U
) 

't- 
"O

 0
-
 

0
 

"'0 
O> 

C
"O

U
l 

C
.>:: 0

 Ql Jt 
·-
 

\.. 
U

) 
U

) 0
 

»
O
L

C

 

Ql "' Ql Ql 
> 

Q
.()Q

l 
L

 >
, 

<
t
:
 

:::, QJ+
--

+
- 

U
) > 0

 
L

 Ql »
L

 
"O

:J
L
-

Q
l 

c 
U

),
-
 

:J"O
 

0
 

1J1
JC

 
-

1
J 

:::, 
Ql >

,O
 

Ul+
- E 

L
 

·- o 
E o 

r::-
1

..0
>

, 
+- Ql 

Ql 
Ql 

L
1
J-

>
 

+- 
c 

\.. 
O

Q
J:J

+
-:J

 
t:s: 

O
V

l 

;;�:§ � 
·-O

E
 c-' 

, 
+- 

0
 

0
 

L
1

J
>

, 
-

3
: 

QJQ
J.D

C
O

O
 

UL
 

O
C
-
 

0
1
J ·-

 0
 

tit�-�·;;; b 
QJL

L
>

U
l 

L
O

.O
L

Q
JQ

J 
Ql 

't- Ql 't- + 
£:U

lL
0

.0
0

 
O

Q
J:J

L
+

 
-
 "'Q

.U
)O

..V
) 

0.. 
tD 
<.D 

z; 

t 
co 

ui 
<.D 

r. 
0

 
w

 
...J 

0- -e- 

"' ir co 
z
 

( d,Z
C! 

W,<::ib'Z
CI 

/o\,90
,Z

C.0
0

N 

3: 

co 
0

 

L1l 
N

 
0 

ST 
ST 

S
T 

'R 
en.,,- 

[JI 
N
•
 

C
,
 

.... 
co... 

·- LO 
-

,;;;;rN
r'--W

O
L

N
 

lf)o
 

011"10
 0

 
Q

)g
 

U
) 

• 
Q

)(O
 

>
C

TH
0
0
)..---0

0'.)N
 

L
c:oN

�
l")N

 
II 

:::J II 
II 

II 
II 

II :r::r: 
U

<
)O

f----
'O

:::U
U

 

>- 
0

 
..J 

>- 
0

 
...J 

f- 
0

 
..J 

N
 

f- 
0

 
..J 

133tH
S 

lcJ'd3d 

a.zct 
W,<::ib'Z

£l 
/o\,9

0
,Z

£
.0

0
N

 

d,Z
£1 

W,0
b
'Z

£l 
/o\,L0

,t,£
.0

0
N 

U
) 

.... ,< ISi 
ISi ,n 
+ 

• 
ISi <D 
... ...- 

"- 
0
 

.,,. rv-,, 
0
 

0
) 

O
C

\J 
0

 
V

)I.O
 

(J
' 

(J
' 

ui 
(J

' 
+ N

 
(") 

d'l!W
,08 I I I 

co 
f- 
0

 
...J 

f- 
0.. 

co 
f- 
0

 
..J 

r-. 
0

 
..J 

f 
(1_ 

>- 
0

 
...J 

> 
"- N

 

"""f
 

"-o
 

...J 

-
.y

.tf\) 

�
;.{,o 

.(I 
\>

-. 

\J) Ir\
 

- t(\ 
(\;·\ \\ 
jO 
'?• 

�
�
�
�

�z-
�
�
�
�
�

--1 
d. 

-r 
3: 
D

 

LL 
0
 

> 
f- 

u
 

a: 
<l'. 
0

 
w

 
u

 

(/) 
_J 
_J 
<l'. 
LL 

:::<'.'. 

O
 
O

 > 
w

 
W

 w
 

0::: 
0::: 

_J 
0

 
:::J 

:::J 
-er 

0
 0

 a: 
u
U

 co 
<l'. <t: 
(/) (/) 

2
 

f- 
f- 

0
 

:r: :r: a: 
(_) 

(_) 
LL 

a: a: 
0

 
w

 
w

 
w

 
(/) (/) a: 

LL 
(/) 

(/) 
I 

w
w

 
:::J 

3: 
U

 U
 

O
 

o
u

u
u

 
a: 

<t: <t: 
<l'. 

<t: 
2

 
(/) 

u
 

<l'. 

LL 
(f) 

N
 

IS! 
lf) 

n
, 

:r: 
w

 
(/) 

(/) 
z
 

-er 
3: w 
0

 
f- 

:c I 
C::: 
0

 
z 0
) 

co 
<t: 

<l'. 
f- 

f 
(/) 

(/) 

U
 

W
W

 
-er 

0
0

 

(/) 
(/) 

0
 

z
 

w
 

f 
<l'. 
f 
l/) 

1- 
(/J 
LU 

IS! s: 
U

) 
w

 
w

 
LL 

W
O

 
I 

Z
 

-er 
l/l 
�

 
D

 
W

V
1
_
J

O
:: 

O
 

D
 

W
 

_JZ
Z

U
z

w
 

0
 

<t 
X

 
O

 
O::_

J
O

::W
 

f- w 
zu

 
O
 a: 

u
 

<l'. 
o, 

0
 

z f- z 
>- U

 O
 

f- w 
z 

J
 
f 

:::JO
 
u

 
0

 
0::: 

W
 

u
 

n
, 

(/) 

z
 

0
 

1- 
U

) 
:::, 
0

 
(.) 
<

( 

z
 

0
 

�
 

0:::: 
0

 
o
, 

U
) 

1-- 
z
 ::s 
�

 
a.. 

I- 
LL 
0

 
1- 
z
 

w
 

::a: 
l 
o:::: 
<

( 
o
, 

w
 

0
 

�
 

0
 

-431-

Item G.2.k. 



0
 

I.O 

0
 

z ...J 
LU

 
u

 c:: 
<t 
c.. 
c:: 
0

 
L.1. 

5 c.. 
C

l 
LU

 
:::r:: 
u

 

s L.1. 
0

 
z 0
 
�

 
c.. 
c:: 
u

 
V

) 
LU

 
Cl 

r-, 
0
 I 

u
 

N
 I - 00 � N
 I 

" L
I) 
I 

c.. 
In 0 z t:; LU

 

a c:: 
c.. 

�
 

z => 
0

 
u

 ::..:: 

�
 

:::r:: 
::..:: 
u

 
:'.:i co 

�
 

9 ...J 
0

 
L.1. 

�
 

C
l 

LU
 

co 
ii:: 
u

 
V

) 
LU

 
Cl 
Cl 
z :'.:i �

 
�

 
Cl 
LU

 
1- 
z <t 
c:: 
o LU

 
...J 
I 
�

 
LU

 
...J 
c.. 
�

 
vi 
LU

 
LU

 
L.1. 
LU

 
:::r:: 
I- 

C
l 

c:: 
0

 
u

 
LU

 
c:: 
L.1. 
0

 
�

 
z LU

 

�
 

LU
 

V
) 

<t 
LU

 
...J 
...J 
<t 
Cl 
z <t 
> 
z <t 
�

 
t:; LU

 

a3 
=> V

) 

�
 

LU
 

c.. 
0

 
c:: 
c.. 

:::r:: 
�

 
0

 
z c:: 
<t 
LU

 
co 

�
 

C
l 

LU
 

�
 

=> V
) 

V
) 

<t 
�

 
...J 
<t 
L.1. 
c:: 
-c Cl 
LU

 
u

 
0

 
1- 
z 0

 
�

 
2S 
Cl 
<t 
V

) 

>- ::..:: 
c:: 
:'.:i ...J 
=> � <i. L.1. 
0

 
<::!" 
::..:: 
u

 
9 co 
L.1. 
0

 
LU

 
z t;; 
::::::i <t 
:::C 

LU
 

�
�

 
0

 
,-t 

LU
 

Z
 
�

 
I- 

LU
 f'I 

0
 

:::r:: 
en 

Z
 
I- 

00 

-432-

Item G.2.k. 



A 57 

PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT = PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

[Z;2SJPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * c.;,----------- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY - PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

-PROPOSED SIDEWALK -- PROPOSED SANITARY 

-PROPOSED DRIVEWAY/PARKING LOT -RETAINING WALL 

---EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY 

LOT LINE 

I EGENO 

West 1st Street I 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1 ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 60 - BRADLEY K. SCHULTZ 
SCALE: 

1"= 40' 

$PL 1DRYL$ 
.$P[NTBlli' 
tSHEHNiU,IU 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)--2G-07 

-433-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. P.O. Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
Return to: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

OWNER'S TEMPORARY GRADING EASEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

This instrument is made this day of _, 2018, by Bradley K. 
Schultz, owner(s) (hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR�J) of the following described 
property: 

See Attached Exhibit 

WHEREAS, the owner(s) in fee simple of the real property known and described 
as set out above is the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter referred to as GRANTEE) 
proposes to grade, shape and seed improvements upon a portion of the above real 
property owned by the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the GRANTOR(S) has agreed to grant to the GRANTEE, a 
Temporary Grading Easement for Construction for the purpose of grading, shaping and 
seeding, if applicable, upon a portion of the real property of the GRANTOR(S), for 
consideration of $1.00 and other valuable consideration duly paid and acknowledged. It 
is agreed the temporary easement granted herein shall terminate upon completion of 
the Project and final acceptance of public improvements by the City Council. 

THEREFORE, for the above consideration, the GRANTOR(S) hereby grants unto 
the GRANTEE the Easement and rights described below: 

See Attached Temporary Grading Easement for Construction Exhibit, 

which Easement and rights shall be binding upon the GRANTOR(S). 

GRANTEE agrees to restore the easement area in a timely manner including, but 
not limited to, the restoration of lawns by seeding, complete restoration of any 
driveways, fences or other structures modified as a requirement of the construction, 
upon completion of the construction or repairs. 

-434-

Item G.2.k. 



Words and phrases herein shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, 
and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. 

Spouse 

1. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

State of ..::r:b W It 

County of 8/�L.. 
This record was acknowledged before me on 

by &e:o � K. Sc.1t1t. t.rz. 

Date 

s/3&11/'1 (Date) 
I 

Name(s) of individual(s) 

as � if! t,> e:< (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of /3;;.A-DtA!I � /{: �II" t..T :c;...,.. 
(name of party on belf of whom record was executed). 

2 

-435-

Item G.2.k. 



ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Grantee"), does hereby accept and approve the foregoing 
Easement. 

Dated this __ day of . 2018. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 

3 

-436-

Item G.2.k. 



EXHIBIT 

I EGENO 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT � PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

(2S2SJPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * <>---- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY -- PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE . 

-RETAINING WALL 

West 1st 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 60 - BRADLEY K. SCHULTZ 

�DOT 

4 

SCALE: 
1"=40' 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28}--2G--07 

-437-

Item G.2.k. 



-438-

Item G.2.k. 



-439-

Item G.2.k. 



-440-

Item G.2.k. 



-441-

Item G.2.k. 



-442-

Item G.2.k. 



-443-

Item G.2.k. 



-444-

Item G.2.k. 



-445-

Item G.2.k. 



-446-

Item G.2.k. 



-447-

Item G.2.k. 



-448-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. PO Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
OWNER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(515) 964-2020 
(319)273-8600 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1216 W. 1st St. COUNTY TAX PARCEL N0.8914-11-276-002 
PARCEL NO. 68 
PROJECT NO. STP-57-2(28)-2C-07 
PROJECT NAME: West 1st St. I IA 57 PCC Pavement Reconstruction 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of , 2018, by and between David H. 
Johnson, Seller, and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 

1. The Seller agrees to sell and furnish to the Buyer a warranty deed, permanent utility easement 
and temporary easement agreements, furnished by the Buyer, and the Buyer agrees to 
purchase the following real estate, or interest in real estate, hereinafter referred to as the 
premises, described as follows: See Attached Exhibits 

FEE Acquisition 
See attached 

Temporary Easement 
See attached 

and which include the following improvements of whatever type situated on the premises: 

2. The premises include the estates, rights, titles and interests, including easements, as are 
described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the street or highway which is 
adjacent to the premises, and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages 
arising therefrom. SELLER ACKNOWLEDGES full settlement and payment from the Buyer for 
all claims per the terms of this agreement and discharges the Buyer from liability because of this 
agreement and the construction of this public improvement project. 

3. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and the Buyer may enter and 
assume full use and enjoyment of the premises in accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
The Seller grants the Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of 
gathering survey and soil data. When Buyer has paid Seller the payment amount described in 
the following paragraph, and when Seller has executed and delivered a warranty 
deed/permanent easement agreement/ and/or temporary easement agreement(s) [strike 
inapplicable provisions], conveying title, or an interest in title, to the premises to Seller, as 
described in this agreement, Buyer shall then be entitled to immediate possession of the 
premises. 

4. Buyer agrees to pay and SELLER AGREES to grant the right of possession, convey title, or an 
interest in title, as provided in this agreement, and to surrender physical possession of the 
premises as shown on or before the dates listed below. 

-449-

Item G.2.k. 



Payment Amount Agreed Performance Date 

$ _ 
$ _ 
$ _ 
$ __ 5�7_2_ 1._44 __ 

$ __ ....;:;5..i...a , 7-=2= 5= .o-=- o __ 

on right of possession 
on conveyance of title 
on surrender of possession 
on possession and 60 days after Buyer approval 
conveyance 
TOTAL LUMP SUM 

BREAKDOWN: ac. = acres sq. ft. = square feet 

Land by Fee Title 391 sq. ft. 
Permanent Utility Easement sq.ft. 
Temporary Easement 1,026 sq. ft. 
Miscellaneous/Other Tree, Bushes 
Buildings 
Severance Damages 

$ 3,519.00 
$ 
$ 1,477.44 
$ 725.00 
$ 
$ 

5. Seller also agrees to execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which 
is attached hereto. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, 
shaped and seeded, if applicable, upon completion of the project by Buyer. The Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

6. The Seller warrants that there are no tenants on the premises holding under lease except: 
NONE. 

7. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller, and the 
SELLER AGREES to pay all liens and assessments against the premises, including all taxes 
and special assessments payable until surrender of possession, as required by Section 427.2 of 
the Code of Iowa, and agrees to warrant good and sufficient title. 

Names and address of lienholders are: David H. Johnson - P.O. Box 435 Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

8. Each page and each attachment is by this reference made a part hereof and the entire 
agreement consists of Z pages. 

9. The Buyer may include mortgagees, lien holders, encumbrances and taxing authorities as 
payees on warrants as payment on the agreement. If this agreement involves a total taking, 
SELLER WILL furnish and deliver to the City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 
50613, an abstract of title to be updated, if requested by City. The abstract continued to date, or 
a title report obtained by the City if this agreement does not involve a total taking, must show 
merchantable title to the premises vested in Seller. Buyer agrees to pay the cost of any abstract 
continuation. SELLER AGREES to obtain court approval of this agreement, if requested by the 
Buyer, if title to the premises becomes an asset of any estate, trust, conservatorship or 
guardianship. Buyer agrees to pay court approval costs and all other costs necessary to 
transfer the premises to the Buyer, but not attorney fees. Claims for such transfer costs shall be 
paid in amounts supported by paid receipts or signed bills. 

10. If the Seller holds title to the premises in joint tenancy with full rights of survivorship and not as 
tenants in common at the time of this agreement, Buyer will pay any remaining proceeds to the 
survivor of that joint tenancy and will accept title solely from that survivor, provided the joint 

2 

-450-

Item G.2.k. 



tenancy has not been destroyed by operation of law or acts of the Seller. 

11. This written agreement and the attachments together constitute the entire agreement between 
the Buyer and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as 
specifically provided for herein. This agreement is subject to the approval of the Cedar Falls 
City Council. 

12. The Seller shall have five years from the date of settlement to renegotiate construction or 
maintenance damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement, as required by 
Section 68.52 of the Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by 
the Buyer, we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and 
unpaid. 

Qr�-./ r--1 � -4? -I� .. ;g- 
David H. Johnson Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of _::;;,, L>"'ff 

Countyof 5� 

Date 

This record was acknowledged before me on -�9-ti-�..,.J;�s,�--- 
_______________ (Date) by _ 

Name(s) of individual(s). 

3 

-451-

Item G.2.k. 



2. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

(Business Name, Trustee, name of person signing on behalf of) 

County of _ 

This record was acknowledged before me on _ 

______________ (Date) by _ 

Name(s) of individual(s) as------------------ 

____________ (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of -------------------------- (name of party on behalf of whom record was executed) . 

Signature of notarial officer 

BUYER'S APPROVAL 

By: _ 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By: _ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

4 

(date) 

(date) 

-452-

Item G.2.k. 



w
 

_
J 

<
( 

u
 

V
l 

0
 

""' II : .... z 3: 
<

( 
0:: 
0

 

w
 

I 
<

( 
0

 

0
 

w
 

l/l 

> 
w

 
0:: 

w
 

f 
<

( 
0
 

• 

0
 

w
 

t- 
0... 0

 
<

!Z
 

u
 w

 
• VJ 
2
-
 

::i 3
: 

_J 0:: 
., 

<
!W

 
I
 

t-i 
O
D
 

�
V

J 
�

 
VJ 

ow
 

Z
_

J 
::iz

 
0
 ::i 

LL-
 

0
 

Q
) 

VJ 

11) 
:'::; 

t: 
z 

+- 
0
 

L
 

Q) 
g Q) 
o Q) 
D

 

11) 

OJ 
11) 
c II) 
u Q) 
+- 0

 
D

 

...J 

>
, 

.D
 

<
( 

u
 

, 
Q) 

�  
t- 

6 
co 

u 
I
 

VJ 
>< 

� 
w

 
>

, 
0

 
:::; 

0.. 

0
 

N
 

LL 
0

 

• I 
I
 

C
) 
-

_
J 

o::-
 

<
( 

0
0:: 

z :::J>
- 

0
<

! 
LL3

: 

0
 

;,: 
QJ 

Q) 
11) 

c 
c 

Q) 
Q) 

CI'. 
u L

 
QJ 
g :::J 
c 

...J 

z 0
 

t 
u

 
w

 
V1 0:: 
ow 
zz 
::i 0:: 
0
0
 

LLU
 

Q) 
.c +- 

.. 
� 

:' 
l' 

,llh
',4' • 

.,:·o
·,.:_ 

�./- 
... - 

- -- 
- 

- 
-:. 

.- 
-.,:; 

'; 

*.-,- 
.': = 

+- c � :::J 
u 0

11) 
'+- 

u o-
 

o 
3:o

 
O

l 
C
U

V
J 

C
.!C'.0

Q
l3

: 

·�btl!!�
 

Q) ;,: 
Q

) Q) 
> 

0.U
Q

) 
L

 
>, 

·-
 .c. 

::J ID+
--

+
 

IJ) > 0
 

L
 Ql >,L

 
U

:::JL
-

Q
) 

C
 VJ,-

 :JU
 

O
 

uu
c
 

-
u

 
:::, 

Ql >,O
 

11)+
- E 

L 
·- o 

E O
 

.C-
L

O
>

, 
+- 

Cl) 
(I) 

Q
) 

L
U
-

>
 

+- 
c 

L 
O

 QJ :::J +- :::, 
.c.c 

0
(1') 

+-+
 L

.C
 

0
 +- U

 
>,U

 
C

 

:: § H
� . 

+- 
0
 

0
 

L
U

>
, 

-
3
: 

QJQ
).D

C
O

O
 

U
L

 
O
C
-
 

O
U

•-
 
0

 
3g� .�·u; 't 
OJ L

L
'.>

 
(I) 

L
O

.O
L

Q
JQ

J 
OJ 

'+- 
Q

) '+- + 
.CIJ)L

0
.0

0
 

O
 Ql :::J L

 + 
-
 3: 

0..U
)Q

..V
) 

w
 

I- 

I
 

;,: 

w
 

I- 

:,: 
3

: 

w
 

V
l 

0.. 
Ul 
<D 

� t ui 
<D 

w
 

is, 
.... "' N

 
()" 
CD 
z � t ui 
U

J 

w
 

is, 
.... (") 
N

 
()" 
CD 
z 

a. 

"' <D 

"
) \ 

133815 
NOJS

J/\10
 

d,Z
£! 

W,£Z'1>£! 
3,0

l.Z
0.0

0N
 

l.O
 

l{\ 

l{\ 
I') 

O
"l 

eo 
V

) 

N
 

a
- 

' " 
Q

a::, 
c:,.
 

<lrl 

a • 
l.O

 
aa 
a. 
V

)l.O
 � a' cs, 
-
 U1 

+ 
• 

-
 

lD
 

C"I 
V

 

Q
_ 

Ul 
U

J 

z "' UJ 
in 
UJ 

w
 

"' ;, N
 

er co 
z 

CI'. 
w

 
zw 
CI'.Z

 
u..10

-
 

0..U
...J 

Q
_ LL;,: 
o, Lu 

�
:r: 
1

-0
:: 

O
C

I'.O
 

Z
O

LL 
:::::,z

 
D 

o
 

LL- 
...J 

tn
W

 
l""l:J: 

0 

in
 

0.. CT' 
CT' 
ui 
CT' 
+ N

 
(") 

0 
+' 
U

) 

a: r- 
(D

 

ui 
(") 

• <.O N
 " +' U

) 
j_ m

us 
NOJS

J/\IO
 'N 

(/) 
_

_
J 

__J 
<

( 
LL. 

L
L

 
D

 

0
:: 

<
( 

0
 

w
 

u
 

>- 
f
-
 

(_
) 

wo
 

z 
<

( 
D

 
_

J
 

0:: 

V
l 

V
l 

L
 

I- 
I- 

D
 

I
 
I
 

0:: 
<..'.) 

(.'.) 
LL 

0:: a:: 
0
 

w
 

lf) 
l/) 

0:: 
l/) 

(/) 
w

 w
 

=::) 
uu
o
 

uu
u
 

<
( 

<
( 

<
( 

w
 

.... 
w

 
LL I V

) 
V

l 
w

 
uz
w
 

x
 

O
 

w <( 
u 

L
 

V1 
<

( 

I
W
 

V
l 

(/) 
z 

<( 
3: w 
0
 

I- 

�
 

c::: 
0
 

z C
J) 

CX) 
<

( 
<( 

I- 
I 

V
) 

V
l 

0
 

z
 

1- 
U

) 

ro �
 

U
) 

U
 

W
W

 
<

( 
0
 0

 

V
) 

l/) 

w
 

0
 

(.'.) 
_

J z z 
0

 
<

( 
0:: 

_
J 

0:: 
I- w 
zu
 

0
 

0:: 
u

 
<

( 
Q

. 
w

 
I 
<

( 
I 
V

) 0
 

z 
I- z

 w 
>- U

 O W
 

I- 
W

 
LL 

Z
 

-:i 
I- 

I 
=:J 

O
 

U
 

3: 
0
 

0:: W
 O
 

u
 

Q
. 

V
l 

0:: 

z
 

0
 

j::: 
U

) 
:::::, 
0
 

(.) 
<

( 

z
 

0
 

I- 
�

 
0:: 
0

 
a.. 
U

) 
1

- 
z
 :5 

�
 

a.. 
I- 
LL 
0

 
1

- 
z
 

w
 
�

 
0:: 
�

 
w

 
C

l 

�
 

0
 

-453-

Item G.2.k. 



00 
\D

 

0
 

2
 

_
J
 

U
J 

u
 

c:c: 
<

( 
Q

.. 

c:c: 
0
 

u
, 

�
 

Q
.. 

0
 

U
J 

:::c 
u

 

�
 

<
( 

u
, 

0
 

2
 

0
 

�
 

Q
.. 

c:c: 
u

 
V

l 
U

J 
0

 

r--- 
0
 I 

u
 

N
 I 00 

N
 

r:f I 
r--- 
1.I') 

I 
Q

.. 

t;; o 2
 

b U
J 

a c:c: 
Q

.. 

�
 

2
 

::, 
0
 

u
 

:::.,:: 
s <

( 
:::c 
:::.,:: 
u

 
::i co 

V
l 

s 9 _
J
 

0
 

u
, 

�
 

0
 

U
J 

co 
ii: 
u

 
V

l 
U

J 
0

 
0

 
2
 

::i �
 

!::'.::? 
0
 

U
J 

1- 
2
 

<
( 

c:c: 
(!:! 
U

J 
_

J
 

I 
�

 
U

J 
_

J
 

Q
.. 

� 
vi 
U

J 
U

J 
u.. 
U

J 
:::c I- 

0
 

52
 

0
 

<
( 

2
 
�

 

�
Q

 
'.:; 
�

' 

<
( 

2
 

iJ ::, 
u.. 

0
 

u
, 

u
 

0
:::.,:: 

23
 

<
( 

<
( 

�' ! 
...I 

u
 

<
( 

<
( 

u.. 
...I 

cc: 
co 

t5 1 
U

J 
...I 

u�
 

�
 

c:c: 
z 

<
( 

08 
Eu
 

C
l 

u.. 
C

l 
O

 

�
�

 
t2 
c:c: :::c 
::i 

1- 
....1 

u.. 
::, 

0
 

� 
�

 
<( t <

( 

0
 

c:c: 
0
 

u
 

LU
 

c:c: 
u.. 
0
 
�

 
2
 

U
J 

�
 

U
J 

V
l 

<
( 

U
J 

_
J
 

...I 
<

( 
0
 

2
 

<
( 

>- 2
 

<
( 

�
 

b U
J 

--, 
co 
::, 
V

l 

�
 

U
J 

Q
.. 

0
 

c:c: 
Q

.. 

c:c: 
<

( 
LU

 
co 

�
 

C
l 

LU
 

� :::) 
V

l 
l/1 
<( 

�
 ...I 

<( 
u

, 

cc: 
<

( 
C

l 
LU

 
u

 
0
 

1- 
z 0
 

� ci C
l 

<
( 

l/1 

t cc: 
::i ...I 
::, 
� <( 
LL 
0
 

LI') 
..-1 
� u
 
�
�

 

O 
U

J 

LU 
�

 
Z
.-

i 
:J 
�

 
:::c r- 
t;: � 
0
 :::c 

U
J z 

I 
I- 

LU
 

0:: 
O

:::cO
 

z 
I- 

2
 

-454-

Item G.2.k. 



I EGENO 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT ====:=e=PROPDSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

czs::z::;JPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT -II- 0--- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY --- PROPOSED SANITARY 

- PROPOSED SANITARY 

- RETAINING WALL 

W�st 1st St et I IA 57 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 68 - DAVID H. JOHNSON 
SCALE: 

1"= 40' 

.f ;;;j . 
. __, DOT 
At l ltlPw lU�LI ._.IN� '1 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57·2(28)--2G-07 

SFk.EL$ 
ID"TEl 
tUSERt 

-455-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder and Associates - 2727 SW Snyder Blvd. P.O. Box 1159, Ankeny, IA 50023 
Return to: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

OWNER'S TEMPORARY GRADING EASEMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

This instrument is made this day of , 2018, by David H. 
Johnson, owner(s) (hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR(S)) of the following described 
property: 

See Attached Exhibit 

WHEREAS, the owner(s) in fee simple of the real property known and described 
as set out above is the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls (hereinafter referred to as GRANTEE) 
proposes to grade, shape and seed improvements upon a portion of the above real 
property owned by the GRANTOR(S), and 

WHEREAS, the GRANTOR(S) has agreed to grant to the GRANTEE, a 
Temporary Grading Easement for Construction for the purpose of grading, shaping and 
seeding, if applicable, upon a portion of the real property of the GRANTOR(S), for 
consideration of $1.00 and other valuable consideration duly paid and acknowledged. It 
is agreed the temporary easement granted herein shall terminate upon completion of 
the Project and final acceptance of public improvements by the City Council. 

THEREFORE, for the above consideration, the GRANTOR(S) hereby grants unto 
the GRANTEE the Easement and rights described below: 

See Attached Temporary Grading Easement for Construction Exhibit, 

which Easement and rights shall be binding upon the GRANTOR(S). 

GRANTEE agrees to restore the easement area in a timely manner including, but 
not limited to, the restoration of lawns by seeding, complete restoration of any 
driveways, fences or other structures modified as a requirement of the construction, 
upon completion of the construction or repairs. 

-456-

Item G.2.k. 



Words and phrases herein shall be construed as in the singular or plural number, 
and as masculine, feminine or neuter gender, according to the context. 

9� 
Davia H. Johnson Spouse Date 

1. For an acknowledgment in a representative capacity: 

State of _z;; JA.-) r} 

County of d}t, � 
This record was acknowledged before me on _----'t-;.:,,<..,h <-=� ........ � '--'....,'J ""- __ (Date) 

7 

by IJ>'tVJ () M .:lottJV:s� A.,) Name(s) of individual(s) 

as (2 � p � (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of �e+�· 
(name ofp ty on be�f whom record was executed). 

2 

-457-

Item G.2.k. 



ACCEPTANCE OF EASEMENT 

The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa ("Grantee"), does hereby accept and approve the foregoing 
Easement. 

Dated this __ day of , 2018. 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

James P. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

STATE OF IOWA ) 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on , 2018, by 
James P. Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

My Commission Expires: 

3 

-458-

Item G.2.k. 



EXHIBIT 

W�st 

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVI 

-RET..l!NING WALl. 

PROPOSED SIDEWALK 

EGFND 
PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT !!!!!!C!!!C!!!! PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

�PROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * .,...__ PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY 

LOT LINE 

INCLUDES UNOERLYING TEMPORARY EASEMENTS 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 68 - DAVID H. JOHNSON 
SCALE: 

1"=40' 

DATE: 
02/08/2018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28}-2G--07 

lfl.ll.0 = 

4 

-459-

Item G.2.k. 



Prepared by: Snyder & Associates, Inc., 2727 SW Snyder Blvd., Ankeny, IA 50023 
For: City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
TENANT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

(515) 964-2020 
(319) 273-8600 

Property Address: 1216 W. pt St. County Tax Parcel No.: 8914-11-276-002 
Parcel Number: 68 Project Name: West 1st Street Cedar Falls IA 57 Reconstruction Proiect 
Project Number: STP-57-2(28)--2c-07 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into this __ day of------' 2018, by and between Michael Thornton, 
Seller and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, Buyer. 

1. Buyer agrees to buy and Seller hereby conveys Seller's leasehold interest in the following real estate, 
hereinafter referred to as the premises: 

See Attached Acquisition Plat 
See Attached Temporary Easement Area(s) 

and more particularly described on page(s) 4- 6, and all improvements of whatever type situated on the 
premises. 

2. The Premises also includes all of the Seller's estates, rights, title and interests in any leaseholds, 
including easements as are described herein. Seller consents to any change of grade of the adjacent 
roadway and accepts payment under this agreement for any and all damages arising therefrom. Seller 
acknowledges full settlement and payment from Buyer for all claims per the terms of this agreement and 
discharges Buyer from liability because of this agreement and the construction of this public improvement 
project. 

Seller is tenant on the property of the following owner: David H. Johnson 

3. In consideration of Seller's conveyance of Seller's leasehold interest in the premises to Buyer, Buyer 
agrees to pay to Seller the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00). Seller agrees to surrender physical 
possession of the premises effective upon commencement of construction activity. Seller also agrees to 
execute a Temporary Grading Easement for Construction, a copy of which is attached hereto. 

4. Seller grants to the City a Fee Acquisition and Temporary Construction Easement Plat. Any Temporary 
Construction Easement shall terminate upon completion of the project. 

5. Possession of the premises is the essence of this agreement and Buyer may enter and assume full use 
and enjoyment of the Seller's interest in the premises per the terms of this agreement. Seller grants 
Buyer the immediate right to enter the premises for the purpose of gathering survey and soil data. 

6. This agreement shall apply to and bind the legal successors in interest of the Seller. 

7. Any portion of the premises served by the above project shall be graded, shaped and seeded, if 
applicable, upon completion of the project by the Buyer. 

8. This written agreement and all attachments hereto constitute the entire agreement between the Buyer 
and the Seller and there is no agreement to do or not to do any act or deed except as specifically 
provided for herein. 

9. The Seller states and warrants that, to the best of the Seller's knowledge, there is no known burial site, 

Page 1 of 3 

-460-

Item G.2.k. 



well, solid waste disposal site, private sewage disposal systems, hazardous substance or underground 
storage tank on the premises, except: 

Request Info from Seller and describe what it is and where it is located, otherwise state "None Known" 
if they are unaware of anything 

10. The Buyer hereby gives notice of Seller's five-year right to renegotiate construction or maintenance 
damages not apparent at the time of the signing of this agreement as required by Section 68.52 of the 
Code of Iowa. 

SELLER'S SIGNATURE AND CLAIMANT'S CERTIFICATION: Upon due approval and execution by the Buyer, 
we the undersigned claimants certify the total lump sum payment shown herein is just and unpaid. 

� 'filim. :(hof>lfu., Micha h mton (Spouse) 

For an acknowledgment in an individual capacity: 

State of l og.s-(1,,, 

County of i� � 
This record was acknowledged before me on _ 

" - 2 r - 'Z.Of � (Date) by N-.-\� 

T�� ��c.�\� 
Name(s) of individual(s) as __ "]i ..._b) .-c.z.:b..::...:..:.•=�� � .. ·---------- 

_____________ (type of authority, such as officer or trustee) 

of 11..\t. �. l � � �� � :::C� 
(name of party on b al f whom record was executed) . 1 

(stamp) 

Printed name of notarial officer 

,------"'"::��----------�·, 
� · BRIAN DEPREZ r CommlSslor:i Number 73642'4 

Mv Cammlalon ExplNl8 
, September 1, 2020 �.--------.;.:;..;;;;;.;.;.;:.:.;..:.:..:::::::._� ., 

( 
'? - � - 2.oz.o 

My commission expires 

Page 2 of 3 

-461-

Item G.2.k. 



BUYER'S APPROVAL 

By: ����-� 
James P. Brown, Mayor 

By: � 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk 

MUNICIPALITIES ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss: 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __ day of , 2018, by James P. 
Brown, Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 
My Commission Expires: 

Page 3 of 3 

(date) 

(date) 

-462-

Item G.2.k. 



w
 

_
J 

<
[ 

u
 

(/) 

b
 

-.:!" 
II z

 
3
 

<
( 

er:: 
0
 

w
 

f 
<

( 
0

 

CX) 
..... 0

 
N

 
0
) 

N
 

�
 

<
( 

:::> 
z <

( 
-, 

0
 

w
 

(/) 

>
 

w
 

er:: 
w

 
f--- 
<

[ 
0

 

• >
, 

.0
 

<
( 

0
 

Q
) 

U
) 

U
) '.:i 

.c. 
z 

+- 
0
 

0
 

w
 

f- 
o_ o

 
<CZ

 
u

 w
 

• V
) 

2
-
 

::J 3
: 

_
J er: 

... 
<CW

 
I
 

f-f- 
0
0
 

o
 

a- 
-
v
i 

N
 

V
) 

ow
 

Z
_

J
 

Bs o 
LL-

 

OJ 
U

) 
c Q

) 
0

 

--' 0
 

" Q
) 

c Q
) 

er: Q
) 

+- 
0

 
0
 

u
 Q

) 

�
 

f- 

6 
(l) 

0
 
I
 

U
) 

x
 

� 
w

 
>

, 
0

 
::;;: 

o, 

I") 

L
 

Q
) 

-g OJ 
0

 
Q

) 
0

 
U

) 

(Y
I 

0
 

N
 

• LL 
0
 

f- 
:c 
('.) 
-

_
J
 

er: -
 

<
( 

o
cr: 

z
 

::J >- 
0
 <

( 
LL3

: 

--' 

L
 

OJ 

f :::J 
c OJ 
U

) 
c Q

) 
o 

z 0 f 
u

 
w

 
V

) er: 
ow
 

zz
 

::J er: 
0
0
 

I.LU
 

OJ 
.c. +- 

+- 
c � :::J 
o O

U
) 

't- 
u o-

 
o 

,. 
0

 
O> 

C
U

U
l 

C
-'<'. 0

 OJ 3' 
·-
 L

 Ul Ul O
 

»
O

L
C

 

OJ ,. OJ OJ 
>

 
O

.O
O

J 
L

 >
, 

·-
.C

. 
::J ID+

-
-+- 

U
) > o 

L
 OJ »

L
 

U
 :::J L

-
 OJ 

c 
U

) ·-
 :::Ju

 
O 

u
u
c
 

-
u

 
:::J 

OJ >,O
 

Ul+
- E 

L
 

·- o 
E o 

.C.-
L

O
>

, 
+- OJ OJ 

OJ 
L
U
-

>
 

+- 
C 

L 
O

 OJ :::J+
- :::J 

.C..C
. 

O
V

l 
-+-+

-L
.C

 
0

+
-U

 
>

,U
 

C
 

't-C
 OJU

 O
 

·- o E c--' 
. 

+- 
0

 
0

 
L
U
»

 
-
)
, 

OJO
J.O

C
O

O
 

O
L

 
O
C
-
 

O
U

•-
 0

 
>, 0. Q

l 
U

) ·-
 't 

.0
 OJ E ·- Ul o 

OJL
L

>
U

l 
L
O

.O
L

O
JO

J 
Q

) 
4- 0)4---t 

.C.U
lL

0
.0

0
 

O
 OJ :::J L

+
 

-
 3' 0.U

lC
LV

l 

w
 

I- 
w

 
(/) 

w 
z�

9��___..--r 
� 

�
 

0
 

0:: 
I
 

I- 

l' 

t- 
0
 

_
J 

t 
o
 

_
J 

133
tl1S

 
NO!S

IAIO
 

7 n, 

'° (!) 

z " C
') 

Lf) 
(!) 

( o, 

'° (!) 

::;:: 

"' (!) 
Lf) 
(!) 

w
 

("l 

� N
 

0- 00 
z 

d"IN.09 

I I 
-
 

s<Z
W

 
I 

u
o

C
L 

I 
�;:0:: 
m�8 

: 
0-:�5 
1-V

lz
 

! 
5>-� 

I 
LL�

".,,- 

1 
0:5, 
O::-

'"
' 

I 
�
�
�

 
I 

§§ ·is 
U

<
iL

L
 

I 
w

 

I =--------- 

-"?
 i 

['-. 

� lf) 
("") 
+ co 
N

 IO 
+> 
(!) 

IO 
+> 
(!) 

0:: 

N
 

t 
o
 

_
J 

t 
Q

_ 

t 
Q

_ 

t 
Q

_ 

t 
o
 

_
J 

N
 

t 
o

 
_
J 

t 
Q

_ 

(") 

t 
o
 

_
J 

t 
Q

_ 

133tl1S
 

NO
IS

!AIO
 "N

 

l/) 
_

J 
_

J 
<

[ 
LL 

<
[ 

3
 

D
 

0::: 
<

[ 
0

 
w

 
u

 
LL 
D

 

> 
f- 

u
 

0
 
0

 
I
 

wW
 

cr::cr:: 
0
 

:::J 
:::J >

 
O

 
O

 -r 
u
u
o

 
<

[ 
<

[ 

l/) 
l/) 

2
 

f- 
f- 

0
 

I
 
I
 er:: 

C
) 

C
) 

LL 

cr::cr:: 
0

 
w

 
l/) 

l/) er:: 
l/) 

l/) 
w
w

 
:::J 

u
U
O
 

u
U
U
 

<
[ 

<
[ 

<
[ 

wo
 

z
 

<
[ 

0
 

_
J er:: 

z
w

 
0

 
<

( 
2

 
l/) 

u
 

<
[ 

LL 
(f) 

I
 

W
 

l/) 
l/) 

z
 

<
[ 

3-:W
 

0
 

f- 

I
 

�
 

0
 

z 0
) 

CX) 
<

[ 
<

[ 
f- 

f 
l/) 

l/) 

w
 

f--- 
<

[ 
f 
(/) 

D
 

z f- z w 
>-- U

 D
 W
 

f- 
W

 
LL 

Z
 

----:> 
f- 

I 
:::JO

U
 
3

 
O

 er:: 
W
O

 
u

 
o, 

l/) er:: 

D
 

z
 

w
 

w
 

LL I l/) 
w

 
l/) 

0
 0
 W
 

_
J z z

 u
 

0
 

<C X
 

0::: 
_

J 
0::: w

 
f- w 
z
u

 
0
 

0::: 
u

 
<

( 
o

, 

z
 

0
 

1- 
U

) 

=> 
0

 
(.) 
<

( 

LL 
0

 
1- 
z
 

u
i 
�

 
b:: <

( 
a.. 
u

i 
0

 

�
 

0
 

z
 

0
 

�
 

a::: 
0

 
a.. 
U

) 
1- 

z
 ::5 

c2 
a.. 

I- 

-463-

Item G.2.k. 



00 
U

) 

0
 

z _
J
 

LJ.J 
u

 
0:: 
<

( 
0... 
0:: 
0
 

LI.. 

�
 

0... 
0
 

LJ.J 
I
 

u
 

�
 

LI.. 
0

 
z 0

 
�

 
0... 
0:: 
u

 
(./) 
LJ.J 
0
 

r-, 
0
 I 

u
 

N
 I 00 

N
 
- N I 
r-,.. 
LI') 

I 
0... 
ti; o z t LJ.J 

a 0:: 
0... 

(./) 

$ 9 _
J
 

0
 

LI.. 
(./) 
<

( 

0
 

LJ.J 
co 
0:: 
u
 (./) 

LJ.J 
0

 
0

 
z s 0

 
I- 
�

 
0

 
LJ.J 
1- 
z <

( 
0:: 
o LJ.J 
_

J
 

I 
�

 
LJ.J 
_

J
 

0... 
�

 
(./) 

LJ.J 
LJ.J 
LI.. 
LJ.J 
I
 

I- 

0 0:: 
0

 
u

 
LJ.J 
0:: 
LI.. 
0

 
�

 
z LJ.J 

�
 

LJ.J 
(./) 
<

( 
LJ.J 
_

J
 

_
J
 

<
( 

0
 

z <
( 

> 
z
 

<
( 

�
 

t LJ.J 

co => 
(./) 

�
 

LJ.J 
0... 
0

 
0:: 
0... 

0:: 
<

( 
LJ.J 
co 

�
 

0
 

LJ.J 

�
 

=> (./) 
(./) 
<

( 

�
 

_
J
 

<
( 

LI.. 
0:: 
<

( 
0
 

LJ.J 
u

 
�

 
z 0

 
�

 
0

 
0

 
<

( 
(./) 

�
 

0:: 

::i _
J
 

=> � <( 
LI.. 
0

 
LI') 
.-I 
::,,,:: 
u

 
9�

 
co �

 
LI.. 

LJ.J 
0

 
LJ.J ?,,,i 
z 

.-I 
:::::i 
�

 
I
�
 

I- 
O

'l 
0:: 

00 
0
:r: 

LJ.J z 
I 

I- 
LJ.J 

0:: 
O
:r:O

 
z 

I- z 

-464-

Item G.2.k. 



I EGFNO 

IA 57 

PROPOSED TEMPORARY EASEMENT ======ea PROPOSED STORM SEWER 

PROPOSED FEE TITLE - W PROPOSED WATER MAIN 

(2;2SJPROPOSED PERMANENT EASEMENT * Ci)----------- PROPOSED WATER SERVICE 

PROPOSED ROADWAY --- PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER 

PROPOSED SANITARY SERVICE 

-RETAINING WALL 

West 1st 

PROJECT NAME: WEST 1ST STREET/IA 57 PCC PAVEMENT RECONSTRUCTION 

PARCEL 68 - DAVID H. JOHNSON 
SCALE: 

1"= 40' 

Sr'LIWOLS 
tPEN18LLJ 
itSff[ETNA.�ES 

�DOT 
0210812018 

PROJECT#: 
STP-57-2(28)--2G-07 

,ru1.• 
&DAIES 
tUJi[A$ 

-465-

Item G.2.k. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com  

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

Administration Division

  

  

 

 

  

 
 
  

 TO: Mayor Brown & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: August 27, 2018 

 SUBJECT: Arbors Third Addition – Final Occupancy Request 

 
 
The Final Plat for Arbors Third Addition (Midwest Development Co.) was approved by 
City Council November 20, 2017.  It included a contract for completion of the remaining 
public improvements with a cash escrow.  This allows a developer to obtain building 
permits.  This is a typical approach in the City and is allowed by our Subdivision Code.   
 
In June staff and the developer requested occupancy of five homes in advance of final 
acceptance, due to some unique construction coordination issues that supported the 
construction of the new elementary school. 
 
An inspection of the public infrastructure was completed in June and the City has been 
working with Midwest Development to address them.  The developer has a schedule to 
address the remaining issue of removing and replacing several deficient road panels, 
where significant cracking is occurring.  It will take until the end of September.  Final 
acceptance is anticipated in October, following those corrections. 
 
At this time, approval for occupancy of three additional lots: 2703 Autumn Woods Drive, 
5312 Red Oak Lane, and 2621 Maple Grove Drive is requested.  This is permitted by 
the Subdivision Code, Section 24-54(e). 

-467-

Item G.2.l. 



 



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor James P. Brown and City Council  

 FROM: Iris Lehmann, Planner I 

 DATE: August 30, 2018 

 SUBJECT: FY17-18 Community Development Block Grant and HOME Programs 
    Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) 
 
The Community Development Department would like to request that a public hearing be 
scheduled for Monday, September 17, 2018 regarding the above referenced project. The 
report contains the progress made on Community Development Block Grant funded activities 
from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018. The CAPER is available for public review at the City 
Clerk’s office.   
 
If you have any questions, please contact the Community Development Department. 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
       Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

-469-

Item G.2.m. 



 



-471-

Item
 H

. 



-472-

Item
 H

. 



-473-

Item
 H

. 



-474-

Item
 H

. 



-475-

Item
 H

. 



-476-

Item
 H

. 



-477-

Item
 H

. 



-478-

Item
 H

. 



-479-

Item
 H

. 



-480-

Item
 H

. 



-481-

Item
 H

. 



-482-

Item
 H

. 



-483-

Item
 H

. 



-484-

Item
 H

. 



-485-

Item
 H

. 



-486-

Item
 H

. 



-487-

Item
 H

. 



-488-

Item
 H

. 



-489-

Item
 H

. 



-490-

Item
 H

. 



-491-

Item
 H

. 



-492-

Item
 H

. 



-493-

Item
 H

. 



-494-

Item
 H

. 



-495-

Item
 H

. 



-496-

Item
 H

. 



-497-

Item
 H

. 



-498-

Item
 H

. 



-499-

Item
 H

. 



-500-

Item
 H

. 



-501-

Item
 H

. 



-502-

Item
 H

. 



-503-

Item
 H

. 



-504-

Item
 H

. 



-505-

Item
 H

. 



-506-

Item
 H

. 



-507-

Item
 H

. 



-508-

Item
 H

. 



-509-

Item
 H

. 



-510-

Item
 H

. 



-511-

Item
 H

. 



-512-

Item
 H

. 



-513-

Item
 H

. 



 


	AGENDA
	A. Call to Order by the Mayor.
	B. Roll Call.
	C. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 20, 2018.
	[180820MINUTES.doc]

	D. Agenda Revisions.
	E. Special Order of Business:
	1. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District.
	[PH-CBD Overlay Ordinance-ALL.pdf]
	a. Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 24, 2018)
	b. Written objections filed with the City Clerk.
	c. Oral comments.

	2. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 29, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to design guidelines in the Central Business District Overlay Zoning District, upon its first consideration.

	F. Old Business:
	1. Pass Ordinance #2929, amending Chapter 29, Zoning, and Chapter 27, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to the City's floodplain regulations, upon its third & final consideration.
	[2929-Floodplain Ordinance.docx]

	2. Pass Ordinance #2930, rezoning property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement associated with Ordinance #2080, which placed said property in the R-4 Residential Zoning District, upon its third & final consideration.
	[2930-Rezoning Ordinance.doc]

	3. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement to Amend Restrictions in Deed of Dedication relative to property located generally on Lots 7 & 8 of the Midway Business Park Addition.
	[1-CC staff report for midway park amendment to DOD 8-29-18.docx]
	[2-signed amendment to DOD.pdf]


	G. New Business:
	1. Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.)  
	a. Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 20, 2018 relative to the following items:
(1) Parking along Bergstrom Boulevard. 
(2) Hearst Center and Cultural Programs Presentation.
(3) Pavement Management Program.
(4) Comprehensive Plan/Zoning Ordinance Update.
(5) Review of urban chickens.
(6) Bills & Payroll.
	[Comm of the Whole 08 20 18.doc]

	b. Receive and file the Administration Committee minutes of August 21, 2018.
	[Admin Committee Minutes (Grievance Hearing) 08.21.18.doc]

	c. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2018.
	[Monthly Report - July 2018.pdf]

	d. Receive and file the FY18 Annual Report of the Public Works & Parks Division.
	[1-180827145900_0001.pdf]
	[2-180827141114_0001.pdf]

	e. Receive and file the bid received for the 2018 Seal Coat Project.
	[1. Bid Opening Memo.docx]
	[2. BIDTAB.pdf]

	f. Approve the following special event related requests: 
(1) Street closure, Coventry Lane, September 13, 2018.
(2) Parking variance, West 2nd Street, September 15, 2018.
(3) Street closure, College Street, September 20, 2018 & October 18, 2018.
(4) Grant Wheeler Memorial 5K Run/Walk, October 27, 2018.
	[0-Special Events memo.doc]
	[1-Street Closure - Coventry Lane.pdf]
	[2-Parking Variance-W 2nd.pdf]
	[3-Street Closure - Farmers Market.pdf]
	[4-Grant Wheeler Walk-Run.pdf]

	g. Approve the application of Masala Market, 913 West 23rd Street, for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit.
	[09042018 Tobacco Application.pdf]

	h. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:
(1) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal.
(2) Sidecar Coffee, 2215 College Street, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(3) The Brass Tap, 421 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.
(4) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal.
(5) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal.
(6) Great Wall, 2125 College Street, Class E liquor - renewal.
(7) The Music Station, 1420 West 1st Street, Class E liquor - renewal.
(8) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 21-23, 2018)
(9) Mary Lou's Bar & Grill, 2719 Center Street, Class C liquor - temporary outdoor service. (September 7-8, 2018 and September 29-30, 2018)
(10) College Hill Partnership (Oktoberfest), Municipal Lot G, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day permit.

	[Liquor Beer 8-30-18.doc]


	2. Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 
	a. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow and clear overgrown vegetation on the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane.
	[Assessment-2208 Coventry Lane-Supporting Docs.pdf]

	b. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Utilization of School Bus Services for Non-School Travel with Cedar Falls Community School District relative to summer travel for the Camp Cedar Falls program.
	[1-School Bus Contract Memo - Summer.doc]
	[2-bus agreement.pdf]

	c. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with the Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau (GTSB) relative to funding for traffic enforcement and training.
	[1-GTSB 2018 council memo.doc]
	[2-GTSB 2018.pdf]

	d. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Consolidated Public Safety Communications 28E Agreement with participating government agencies in Black Hawk County relative to providing consolidated dispatch and communications services.
	[1-Dispatch 28e Memo.doc]
	[2-28E Agreement CCC 8-1-18 FINAL.PDF]

	e. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station.
	[1. 2019 River Gauge Agreement memo.docx]
	[2. Agreement.pdf]

	f. Resolution approving and accepting the bid of Blacktop Service Company, in the amount of $136,174.67, for the 2018 Seal Coat Project.
	[1. Bid Opening Memo.docx]
	[2. BIDTAB.pdf]

	g. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop Service Company for the 2018 Seal Coat Project. (Contingent upon approval of Item G-2.f.)  
	[1. 2018 Seal Coat - Contract.docx]
	[2-4. Contract, Bond and Insurance.pdf]
	[5. Form of Proposal.pdf]

	h. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Feldman Concrete for the 2018 Sidewalk Assessment Project, Zone 9.
	[1. Contract Memo 18 Sidewalk.docx]
	[2. Contract.pdf]
	[3. Bonds.pdf]
	[4. Insurance.pdf]
	[5. Form of Proposal.pdf]

	i. Resolution approving the preliminary plat of West Village.
	[1_City Council Memo for West Village Preliminary Plat on 09-04-18.docx]
	[2_ZoningLocationMap.pdf]
	[3_Prel Plat Sheet 1 - 8-2-2018.pdf]
	[4_Prel Plat Sheet 2 - 8-2-2018.pdf]
	[5_deed of dedication clean.pdf]
	[6_Resolution for the Village West Preliminary Plat on 09-04-18.doc]

	j. Resolution approving and accepting a Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for property located at 2103 Washington Street relative to the Rental to Single Family Owner Conversion Incentive Program.
	[1. Memo to Council - 2103 Washington.docx]
	[2. Lien Notice and Special Promissory Note for 2103 Washington.docx]
	[3. supplimental materials.pdf]
	[4. Rental Conv Single Family Trifold.pdf]

	k. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of eleven Owner Purchase Agreements and one Tenant Purchase Agreement, and approving and accepting ten Owner's Temporary Grading Easements and one Public Utility Easement, in conjunction with the West 1st Street Reconstruction Project.
	[1-council memo on w 1st street ROW acquisitions 8-31-18.docx]
	[2-W1stPropAcq180904.pdf]
	[3-W 1st street acquisition docs 9-4-18.pdf]

	l. Resolution approving three occupancy permits prior to the acceptance of the public improvements in Arbors Third Addition.
	[Council-Occupancy permit request 9-4-18.docx]

	m. Resolution setting September 17, 2018 as the date of public hearing on the City's FY17-18 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report for the Community Development Block Grant & HOME Programs.
	[1. Memo to Council - Setting PH for CAPER 17.docx]



	H. Allow Bills and Payroll.
	[1-Daily Invoices 090418.pdf]
	[2-Council Invoices 090418.pdf]

	I. City Council Referrals.
	J. City Council Updates.
	K. Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City business.)
	L. Adjournment.
	c. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of July 2018.



